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FEWmES
Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW

Operating income increased by approximately HK$54,563,000
due to consolidation of the operating income of Guangdong
Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited (“Tiannuo”) upon completion of
its acquisition by the Group in September 2020. Operating income
from wellness elderly care business substantially increased by
approximately HK$75,447,000 as the Group took over Foshan
City Nanhai District Taoyuan Welfare Center Co., Limited (“Taoyuan
Welfare Center”) and Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan
Rehabilitation Hospital Co., Limited (“Taoyuan Rehabilitation
Hospital”) in mid-May 2021 by leveraging the reorganization of the
welfare center of Nanhai District. Operating income from property
and industrial park investment business also substantially increased
by approximately HK$31,656,000 due to the operating income
generated by the new energy industrial park in Danzao Town,
Nanhai District, Foshan City, the PRC (“Danzao Industry Park”)
following the completion of the construction and the inauguration
of its first phase during the year. In addition, operating income from
the growing financial leasing business increased by approximately
HK$57,542,000, and operating income of other businesses also
delivered satisfactory performance as compared with the same
period of last year. All these, together with other factors, contributed
to a substantial increase in total revenue from continuing operations
of the Group to HK$227,291,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021, representing a significant increase of 77.4% year-on-year.

Compared with the loss of disposal amounting to approximately
to HK$39,177,000 and an impairment loss on other receivables
of part of the remaining unpaid consideration amounting to
HK$38,033,000 generated from the disposal of 25% interest of
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.*, there was no similar loss
incurred for the year. Besides, other income for the year, including
government grants for the Danzao Industrial Park project which
can be included in profit and loss for the current period under
Hong Kong Accounting Standards, increased by 60.8% vyear-
on-year, with an increased profit contribution of approximately
HK$35,377,000. Additionally, as interest rate generally continued to
decline, the Group refinanced a sum of US$90,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$701,756,000) last year, leading to decreased
finance costs such as interest expenses and refinancing bank
charges by approximately HK$16,631,000 for the year as compared
to that of last year. However, special fair value gains of approximately
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HK$20,094,000 were recorded for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss last year, as compared to fair value loss of
approximately HK$16,295,000 for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss for the year. Moreover, the sharp rise in coal
prices for the year resulted in a significant increase in costs and a
decrease in profits for Nanhai Changhai Power Co., Ltd.* (“Changhai
Power”), a 31.875%-owned associate of the Group, and thus the
profit shared by the Group decreased substantially by approximately
HK$42,536,000 as compared with last year. Combined with other
factors, the Group was able to turning net loss of HK$66,036,000
last year into net profit of approximately HK$10,887,000 for the year.

FINANCIAL LEASING BUSINESS

Although the financial leasing business was exposed to the
challenges brought by the intensified market competition and the
impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group consistently adhered to
the established strategic positioning and business direction, focused
on stability while seeking progress and professional development
in a strategically flexible manner. The Group closely focused on the
strategic goal of developing into a first-class environmental-friendly
and professional financial leasing company in China, continued to
cultivate the subsectors of the municipal environmental protection
industry, and capitalised on opportunities brought about by the
national “Carbon Peak” and “Carbon Neutrality” macro policy and
the green financial policy. In September 2021, Canton Greengold
Financial Leasing Ltd.* (“Greengold Leasing”), a subsidiary of the
Company, was certified as a G-1 (highest) green enterprise, which is
conducive to the development of business and financing capabilities
of Greengold Leasing. With the joint efforts of all staff of Greengold
Leasing, the Group continued to carry out high-quality municipal
environmental protection business in Nanhai District of Foshan
City and China, and effectively managed relevant risks by strictly
reviewing the financial leasing projects before leasing, selecting the
best projects among the best and supervising the implementation of
post-leasing management. Therefore, no bad debts have incurred so
far. Thanks to our unremitting efforts, the operating income increased
by 36.3% to approximately HK$216,144,000 and the operating profit
increased by 5.0% to approximately HK$85,187,000 during the year.
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Chairman’s Statement

INVESTMENTS IN PROPERTIES AND
INDUSTRIAL PARKS

With its solid position in the property development and investment
sector and by leveraging its experience in such fields, the Group
is striving to develop the new energy industrial park in Danzao
Town, Nanhai District, Foshan City, the PRC, which comprises
production plant, pilot test base, research and development center
and related supporting facilities. During the year, phase | project
has been partially completed, with a leasable area of approximately
240,000 square meters. In 2021, the Group entered into plant lease
agreements with 18 enterprises and completed relevant delivery
works. As of 31 December 2021, the cumulative area actually
delivered reached approximately 182,000 square meters, and
the occupancy rate at the end of the year reached approximately
68.75% based on the leasable area. The Group will continue to
strengthen business attraction, step up publicity and planning,
identify relevant industry customers for investment attraction in a
targeted manner and carefully select suitable customers. The Group
will also control the proportion of various types of customers to
establish a healthier industrial structure of the parks. Meanwhile,
we will maintain full communication with the settled enterprises,
strengthen the service awareness of our team, strictly supervise the
quality of property management services, and effectively carry out
supporting work and provide services for the settled enterprises.
Accordingly, with the completion, delivery and commencement
of operation of some factories and related supporting facilities,
the operating income during the year amounted to approximately
HK$30,784,000.

In terms of rental income from other properties, rental income
increased by 24.1% to approximately HK$11,128,000 for the year
as compared with the decreased rental income last year as a result
of our rental concessions offered to some tenants suffering from
the COVID-19 pandemic. Specifically, the overall occupancy rate of
China Holdings Building rose to approximately 98.69%, contributing
to an increase of 24.3% in rental income to approximately
HK$10,427,000 due to rental adjustment during the period. Shantou
Commercial Plaza recorded a decreased by 58.7% in rental income
year-on-year to approximately HK$140,000 as the lease term was
not renewed upon maturity in May 2021 and it did not secure new
tenants. As for properties in Hong Kong, despite the rental reduction
measures offered last year, the tenants terminated the lease in May
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2020 ahead of expiration due to the impact of the pandemic, and
leases with new tenants were not signed until November 2020,
leading to an increase in rental income by 132.8% year-on-year to
approximately HK$561,000.

Based on the aforesaid operating results, the operating income
from the business of investments in properties and industrial parks
recorded an increase of 308.7% to approximately HK$41,912,000
during the year, making the operating profit turn from loss to a profit
of approximately HK$20,104,000.

WELLNESS ELDERLY CARE BUSINESS

The Group will continue to develop a three-tier elderly care system
comprising institutions, communities and households in Nanhai
District. During the year, capitalizing on the reorganization of welfare
center of Nanhai District, the Group took over Foshan City Nanhai
District Taoyuan Welfare Center Co., Limited (“Taoyuan Welfare
Center”) and Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan Rehabilitation
Hospital Co., Limited (“Taoyuan Rehabilitation Hospital”) in mid-May
by virtue of entrusted management, thereby successfully extending
the institutional elderly care services. Currently, Taoyuan Welfare
Center and Taoyuan Rehabilitation Hospital have 990 nursing beds
and 250 hospital beds, respectively. As of 31 December 2021, the
occupancy rates of nursing beds and hospital beds were 98% and
77%, respectively. In addition, Jiujiang Taoyuan Nursing Home,
which is under the Group’s entrusted management, temporarily
suspended admission of new elderly residents last year due to
the prevention and control of the pandemic, which affected the
occupancy rate, and is currently open to accept application for
nursing beds. As such, the occupancy rate of nursing beds has
improved from only approximately 43% as of 31 December 2020 to
approximately 60% as of 31 December 2021. In order to promote
the further growth of institutional elderly care service leveraging the
premium elderly model “integrating medical and care services”, and
to cater for the nursing needs of Jiujiang Taoyuan Nursing Home
which is under the Group’s entrusted management, the Group
established the self-operated Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan
Nursing Home Company Limited* (“Taoyuan Nursing Home”) and
officially commenced private trial operation on 26 April 2021. As the
bed occupation rate is temporarily low, no immediate benefit has
been produced at this stage. In addition, the Group will continue
to improve the elderly care environment and facilities, including the
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Chairman’s Statement

renovation and refurbishment of Comprehensive Services Building
for the Disabled* GRE AR S RFEEFKARE), also known as the
Composite Building for the Disabled* (325t X#2), a 15-storey
building with a gross floor area of 18,359 square metre situated in
Luocun, Shishan Town, Nanhai District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC for medical rehabilitation use so as to improve
the facilities of Taoyuan Rehabilitation Hospital. The Group will also
adjust elderly care services according to needs and optimize nursing
services for the elderly, striving to achieve standardized, quality
and brand-oriented operation. At present, welfare center of Nanhai
District and Jiujiang Nursing Home have been rated as provincial
“five-star” and “four-star” elderly care institutions. On the other hand,
the Group will vigorously promote the upgrade of the Smart Elderly
Care Services Platform, continue to introduce home-based elderly
care service providers, innovate home-based elderly care service
offerings, diversify product portfolios and simultaneously employ
multiple channels to promote home-based elderly care business.
The Group will also explore the operating model integrating home-
based and community elderly care services through combing online
and offline operations. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
wellness elderly care business recorded revenue of approximately
HK$77,754,000, representing a significant increase of 32.7 times
as compared with last year, and turned operating loss into a slight
operating profit of approximately HK$2,876,000.
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BIG DATA BUSINESS

The Group will continue to actively develop big data industry
projects, focusing on special construction and qualification
declaration, construction of existing projects, expansion of new
projects and market-oriented business development. In 2021, the
Group obtained the first national secondary node service license
for industrial Internet logo analysis issued by the Guangdong
Communications Administration, and received the honorary title of
“2021 Science and Technology Small and Medium-sized Enterprise”*
and won awards in the Foshan Industrial and Internet Security Staff
Skills Competition*, evidencing our improving corporate image and
market competitive strength. In terms of technology and industry
research, the Group completed 4 patent applications and applied
for a total of 5 patents, of which 2 have been granted. The Group
also actively participated in the formulation of industry standards
and the compilation of industry guidelines, with a view to creating
a favourable industry environment. In terms of the marketisation
of technology research and development, however, the Group’s
scale of market-oriented operation of projects is still small. The
Group shall further explore the breakthrough point of long-term
operation, expand the scale of market-oriented operation and
secure more excellent market-oriented operation projects to step
up technology transformation efforts and continue to deepen the
exploration of innovative applications and business models. It
will not only proactively promote existing special projects, enrich
business qualifications, and strengthen the establishment and
management of existing projects, but also actively venture into
new projects and continue to advance big data business with an
emphasis on industrial Internet. Moreover, the Group will deepen
the application and promotion of the industrial Internet identification
analysis system, promote the construction of the industrial Internet
security public service platform projects, explore the breakthrough
point of market-oriented operation, focus on the open platform of
Internet of Things and extend business presence into the fields of
smart hospitals, smart energy and smart city and develop related
products. During the year, despite the COVID-19 pandemic, the
operating income increased by 23.7% year-on-year to approximately
HK$32,058,000, and the operating profit increased by 212.3% year-
on-year to approximately HK$5,955,000.
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CIVIL EXPLOSIVES BUSINESS

The Group completed acquisition of Tiannuo in September 2020
and consolidated the results of the business of Tiannuo, facilitating
the Group to improve its profitability and explore domestic civil
explosives business. However, as Tiannuo is currently at the critical
stage for technology upgrade and transformation, certain of its
production lines have accordingly suspended operation, leading to
a slump in production volume and in turn a substantial impact on
sales activities. In addition, disposal and/or scrapping of existing
fixed assets due to the transformation resulted in millions of one-
off losses, which therefore incurred losses of HK$12,048,000
to Tiannuo. Nevertheless, Tiannuo has completed all technical
upgrading and transformation projects and trial production by
the end of 2021, and some of the production lines have passed
the acceptance and inspection. The Group expects that Tiannuo
will significantly improve its future performance by carrying out
such technological upgrade and modification, releasing excessive
mixed assembly production capacity and effectively implementing
corresponding cost-reduction reform measures.

HOTEL BUSINESS

As Guilin Plaza (“Guilin Plaza”) was deeply impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic in the past year, the hotel room sales
business was suspended until late March 2020. Even after it
resumed business, the operating results were not satisfactory as it
continued to suffer from the repeated outbreaks of the pandemic.
Due to numerous uncertainties in the prospects of the tourism
market, recovery of guests from foreign markets was especially
difficult, with most of the tourists coming from domestic markets.
The hotel flexibly adjusted its customer mix through adopting
flexible strategies, but its income was still deeply dented with
an unsatisfactory occupancy rate. Although the occupancy rate
undesirably fell by 3.78% to 40.41%, the average room rate
increased by approximately 10.87% year-on-year, the operating
income increased by 19.0% year-on-year to approximately
HK$12,131,000, and the operating loss narrowed by 18.7% year-on-
year to approximately HK$6,422,000.
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PROFIT FROM INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Due to the soaring unit price of raw coal, Changhai Power suffered
an increase in cost. Even if the unit price of sales increased as
compared with last year, it was not enough to fully offset the
incremental cost,
results in 2021.
approximately HK$80,273,000, contributing a profit of approximately
HK$25,361,000 to the Group, down by 62.6% year-on-year.

resulting in a significant decline in operating

Accordingly, it recorded an operating profit of

FINANCIAL POSITION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total assets of
HK$8,299,701,000 (31 December 2020: HK$6,105,371,000),
total liabilities of HK$6,107,245,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$4,117,039,000), a gearing ratio (being total liabilities divided by
total assets) of 73.6% (31 December 2020: 67.4%), net assets of
HK$2,192,456,000 (31 December 2020: HK$1,988,332,000), and
equity attributable to owners of the Company per share of HK69.45
cents (31 December 2020: HK66.83 cents).

Notwithstanding that the Group had incurred net current liabilities
of approximately HK$48,709,000 as at 31 December 2021, the
consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2021 have been
prepared on a going concern basis as the Board is satisfied that
the liquidity of the Group can be maintained in the coming year as
up to the date of the consolidated financial statements authorised
for issue, the Group obtained approval from bank for granting the
bank facilities of USD90,000,000. On the other hand, the Group had
bank balance and cash of HK$526,837,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$798,263,000), are sufficient for capital requirements for future
operation and new projects or business development of the Group.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, properties of the Group for own use and
investment, bank deposits, paid-up capital of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary held by the Group and finance lease receivables with
a carrying value of approximately HK$4,073,813,000, in which
approximately HK$2,643,168,000 were pledged finance lease
receivables, were pledged to banks as the security for the bank
borrowings granted to the Group (31 December 2020: properties
of the Group for own use and investment, bank deposits, paid-up
capital of a non-wholly owned subsidiary held by the Group and
finance lease receivables with a carrying value of approximately
HK$2,011,973,000, in which approximately HK$1,211,168,000 were
pledged finance lease receivables, were pledged to banks).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s main operating income and costs are denominated
in RMB. In the business operation of the Group, foreign exchange
fluctuation of income and costs would be mutually offset. However,
as the Hong Kong-based Group has invested substantial borrowings
into domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries in the Mainland whilst owning
substantial RMB-denominated monetary assets, an exchange gain
or loss will be recorded due to the appreciation or depreciation of
RMB. It is expected that an increase or a decrease of approximately
HK$5,214,000 in the Group’s profit for the year would be resulted if
the exchange rate of RMB to HK dollars appreciates or depreciates
by 5%. Over the few past years, RMB constantly showed an upward
trend and gradually became stable in the second half of 2008, starting
to fluctuate upward and downward repeatedly. Due to the Sino-US
trade war and the deterioration of Sino-US relations in recent years,
the exchange rate of RMB against USD continuously weakened;
however, China’s economy began to recover vigorously after controlling
the pandemic effectively while the global economy was staggered
by the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak last year, stimulating the
appreciation of RMB. As a result, an exchange gain of approximately
HK$17,308,000 was recorded last year, as compared to only
approximately HK$389,000 this year. In addition, the Board expects
that USD will enter an interest rate hike cycle in 2022, and the war in
Ukraine will lead to risk aversion, which will also have an incalculable
impact on the exchange rate of USD and the RMB. Therefore, the
Board believes that RMB will be immensely affected by Sino-US
relations, pandemic developments, USD interest rate hike cycle and
developments of the Ukraine war in the short term, the path of which is
hard to predict, but in the long run, it is expected that RMB will remain
stable and will not expose the Group to significant and long term
adverse foreign exchange risk. Accordingly, it is not necessary for the
Group to hedge against foreign exchange risk for the time being.
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OUTLOOK

Although the Group faces the impact of economic uncertainty
worldwide and in China brought about by epidemic rebounds,
coupled with the fact that the economic sanctions against Russia
triggered by the war in Ukraine in early 2022 are expected to impact
the global economy and bring more uncertainties, the Group will
continue to proactively adjust business layouts based on market
trends to rise to potential challenges ahead and navigate through
adversities. With experience accumulated during the course of
transformation and upgrade over past years, the Group will strive
to constantly enhance its business activities, and steadily develop
wellness elderly care, financial leasing, industrial parks/property
investment, big data and civil explosives businesses. The year of
2021 marked a breakthrough year for the wellness elderly care
business. Capitalizing on the reorganization of the welfare center of
Nanhai District, the Group took over Taoyuan Welfare Center and
Taoyuan Rehabilitation Hospital by virtue of entrusted management,
thereby not only successfully extending the institutional elderly
care services, but also fully gaining the recognition and support
of the People’s Government of Nanhai District for the Group’s
elderly care business. In the context of the “national strategy of
proactively addressing population aging” proposed in the Outline
of the 14th Five-Year Plan (2021-2025) for National Economic and
Social Development, and the Long-Range Objectives Through the
Year 2035%, Nanhai District attaches great importance to the elderly
care efforts, and will focus on the construction and improvement
of the elderly care service system. It is believed that, on top of
taking over and operating the welfare center of Nanhai District and
Jiujiang Nursing Home, the Group can further take the initiative
to expand cooperation with the towns (sub-districts) under the
People’s Government of Nanhai District. Regarding Nanhai as the
core, the Group will establish business presence in Foshan and
achieve radiative effect on Guangdong, aiming to build a first-class
wellness elderly care industry investment group in the Greater Bay
Area. The Group will continue to develop a three-tier elderly care
system comprising institutions, communities and households, and
strive to build “Taoyuan” wellness elderly care brand as the industry
benchmark through the premium elderly model of “integrating
medical and care services”, thereby developing the wellness elderly
care business into the core business of the Group. In terms of the
financial leasing business, despite the challenges posed by ever-
intensifying market competition and volatile COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group will continue to “abide by the general strategy of focusing
on stability while seeking progress”, stick to the direction of
professionalism in green environmental protection financial leasing,

FEWmES
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and comprehensively build up the core competitiveness of financial
leasing in the environmental protection segment, striving to grow
into a leading environmental-friendly finance leasing company in
China. The Group will continue to carry out the marketing of state-
owned enterprises, municipal environmental protection and green
energy projects in Foshan and various districts, and selectively
develop high-quality environmental protection and green energy
projects commissioned by state-owned enterprises and municipal
government in the Greater Bay Area and the Pan-Pearl River
Delta region, while continuously diversifying financing channels,
including equity and debt financing, aiming to enhance the financial
strength of the financial leasing business so as to meet the capita
needs for future business development. In respect of the property
and industrial park business, building on its solid foundation in
the property development and investment sector and leveraging
its experience in such fields, the Group will continue to focus on
developing the new energy industrial park in Danzao Town, Nanhai
District, Foshan City, China, by rapidly completing all construction
and acceptance works for the first phase of the project, so that
it can be rented and delivered for use. At the same time, the
Group will continue to increase its investment and promotion
efforts, progressively introduce enterprises to settle in, maintain full
communication with the settled enterprises, strengthen the service
awareness of the team, and strictly supervise the quality of property
management services. In addition, the Group will effectively provide
support and services to the settled enterprises to generate stable
rental income and related incomes for the Group, aiming to develop
it into one of the main sources of stable profit for the Group as soon
as practical. In terms of big data business, by taking advantages
of the opportunities arising from the new smart city construction
plan in Nanhai District, the Group will continue its development
efforts in the big data industry projects, and actively carry out
project operation and derivative business development from the
perspective of marketization, endeavor to secure new projects
explore new markets and ensure rapid overall business growth,
thereby creating a growth engine to our profitability in the future. In
terms of civil explosives business, Tiannuo will earnestly complete
technological upgrade and transformation as soon as practicable,
increase its revenue by releasing excessive mixed assembly
production capacity, and proactively adopt cost reduction measures
to substantially improve its future performance and contribute steady
revenue streams to the Group in future. In addition, the Group will
aggressively explore opportunities to carry out investment and M&A
of biopharmaceutical and high-tech enterprises or projects to seek
leapfrog development of the business of the Company, thereby
delivering good returns to the shareholders of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

China Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) puts great
emphasis on corporate governance and is committed to maintaining
the high standard of corporate governance which is reviewed and
strengthened on a continued basis. The board of directors (the
“Board”) and the management of the Company maintains and
enhances the policies and practices of the Company in a timely,
transparent, effective and responsible manner, so as to maintain
good, solid and reasonable corporate governance structure. The
Board believes that the Company and shareholders as a whole can
derive maximum benefits from good corporate governance.

The Company has adopted all the code provisions under the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code
on corporate governance.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied
with all code provisions under the CG Code, except the deviation
from code provision A.2.1 as set out in the section headed “ROLES
AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR” of this
report.

The Corporate Governance Code had been amended effective on 1
January 2022 (the “New CG Code”), the amendments apply to fiscal
year beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Major amendments of the
New CG Code includes the alignment of the Company’s culture with
its purpose, values and strategy, establishment of anti-corruption
and whistleblowing policies, board independence and diversity
of its members, communication with shareholders, publication of
environmental, social and governance reports at the same time as
publication of annual reports, and re-arrangement of the disclosure
requirements of the corporate governance code. To strengthen and
enhance the highest level of corporate governance practices and
conduct, the Company had adopted the code provisions under the
New CG Code. As this report relates to the financial year 2021, the
numbering of code provision in the report follow the code provision
of the CG Code before the New CG Code came into effect.

PEEXZERARAR ((ARF)) BHEEE
BBAER FEE RMBEEERNE
M MRS KTHNEEERRE AR
AEFE ((EFg) hEERFMKAF B
B KREEN TR RERIEFRFH
BRMER #F—EARF REKRGEZ
TEREARB -BEFTRERUYNEEER
FEREREAR REBERRIVRENm -

KRBRM(BBHERZMER AT RS
EMmRAD) (TEHARR) MiER14PTE AR 2
AR (TEEERTA) NATATAMEX
RERBINEFEERTH]

HE_ T _—F+_HA=+—HLE=EE"
RAB—BEBTFELEEATRIMNAETAH
B RN AREEFEREELLEN
ABKREMF — MR REEFAEXE
A2 EBRSN o

EEEATHNESIEBT (TMEEBEAT
) RIEZ-FE—B—BEXN ZE:]
BEAR S _F—HB—HIZEMRBNY
HEE -MEXTATFUBITETEGRE b
EVILEEEEN BEARE— KA
SRERBEANE ESEBLMERERE
LRt HEREEE RRE - HEREAR
SEBRFRALTES  WERRIHETIE
XIBER - ANBRREARSKFEHNRE
ERBHKRERT KRB ERMTEEE R
PRI A ST S S o RIA R S B BI2021 5 7F
BFEENIER |EANSFRMESCARSTH B
EEATAEMAEEEATNTAIE
AR S

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Ho [ B3 ¢ B A BR 23 6]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 44

15



16

R E AW

Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes the Board
and three committees under the Board, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. The Board
stipulates the terms of reference of all committees in writing and
specifies clearly the power and responsibilities of the committees.

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises nine directors, including six executive
directors who have extensive business experience, and three
independent non-executive directors who possess appropriate
professional qualifications. Throughout the year 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report, the composition of the Board is set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman)

Mr. Fu Weigiang (Managing Director)
(appointed on 1 October 2021)

Mr. You Guang Wu (Director)

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director)

Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr. Cheng Weidong (Deputy Managing Director)
(appointed on 1 January 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Chen Da Cheng
Mr. Deng Hong Ping

With effect from 1 October 2021, Mr.
appointed as an executive director and the managing director of the

Fu Weigiang has been

Company (“the Managing Director”) and member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company and
Mr. He Xiangming, an existing executive director and the chairman
of the Board,
an executive director and the chairman of the Board. With effect

resigned as the Managing Director and remains as
from 1 January 2021, Mr. Cheng Weidong has been appointed
as an executive director and the deputy managing director of the
Company.
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Every director has sufficient time and attention to deal with the
affairs of the Group. Each director discloses to the Company for
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments every year. The
Board considers the composition of executive and non-executive
directors is rational and appropriate and provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors provide the Group with
diversified experience and expertise. Their suggestions, opinions
and participation in the meetings of the Board and each committee
bring independent opinions, suggestions and judgements on
issues relating to the Group’s strategy, development, operations,
performance, risk control and conflicts of interest, to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, subject to
the manner of retirement by rotation of directors as from time to
time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding any
contractual or other terms on which any director may be appointed
or engaged, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

Individual information and responsibilities of all directors are
contained in this annual report on pages 38 to 40.

There are no business, financial, family and other relevant interests
among directors.
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THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements and
matters, monitoring the performance of senior management and
is responsible for corporate governance with a view to increasing
shareholders’ value. Led by the Managing Director, the management
is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans developed
by the Board. The Board authorizes the management to manage the
day-to-day business operations of the Group. Each committee under
the Board has its own specified terms of reference which clearly
define their powers and responsibilities.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters reserved to the
Board for its decision and has separately identified those functions
reserved to the Board. The Board will review those arrangements on
a regular basis to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of
the Company.

The Board performs the obligations regarding corporate governance,
including:

1.  develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each year
(approximately once each quarter) and will convene meetings
when necessary. When a regular board meeting is convened, the
Board papers will be sent to directors for review before the meeting
pursuant to the deadline as required by the Listing Rules and the
code provisions so that directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities.
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All members of the Board have actively participated in the
Company’s Board meetings to discuss the overall strategy and
business of the Group. The Board convened six meetings in 2021
and the attendance of directors is as follows:

EFETNEERB2EARTINEFTES
o .ﬂﬂma$$l9’] ERBRETF -BEFE
R —FHERARGHR EFHERS
A

Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Directors EELE BITREY HE=R
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman) fAImBBEE (F/E) 6/6 100%
Mr. Fu Weigiang (Managing Director) RERIE (EFEFELE) 1/1 100%
(appointed on 1 October 2021) W —E—-——F+H—H
EZT)
Mr. You Guang Wu (Director) BEREE (EF) 6/6 100%
Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director) — E& M4 (B FEFIABASHE) 6/6 100%
Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director) FRL+ (EEEFASEE) 6/6 100%
Mr. Cheng Weidong BRERLE (BEFEELLE) 6/6 100%
(Deputy Managing Director) mW—E2——F—H—H
(appointed on 1 January 2021) EZT)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUIFHITER
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai ok B8] 128 5 4= 6/6 100%
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BRIE R ST E 6/6 100%
Mr. Deng Hong Ping R AE 6/6 100%

The remuneration of directors is determined with reference to their
functions and responsibilities and the results of the Company in
accordance with the remuneration and performance assessment
programme of directors and senior management which was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 25 May 2017. Any director is not allowed
to participate in determining his/her own remuneration. The
remuneration received by directors from the Group during the year is
set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

The Board has set up an independent professional consulting
procedure for directors and upon reasonable request, the directors
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Company complied with all Code Provisions as set out in the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 with the
exception of Code Provision A.2.1 due to the roles of the chairman
of the Board and the Managing Director performed concurrently
by Mr. He Xiangming during the period from 5 September 2020
to 1 October 2021. The Board believed that the balance of power
and authority for the then arrangement was not impaired and the
then arrangement enabled the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently. With effect from 1 October 2021,
Mr. Fu Weigiang was appointed as the Managing Director in place
of Mr. He Xiangming and Mr. He Xiangming remains as an executive
director and the chairman of the Board. Thereafter, Mr. He Xiangming
no longer performed the roles of the chairman of the Board and
the Managing Director concurrently. This arrangement brought the
Company back to conformity with the Code Provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code.

The chairman of the Board is principally responsible for leading
the Board and ensures the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The chairman shall ensure the Board operates effectively
and performs its proper duties and discusses all important and
proper matters in a timely manner. The chairman is responsible for
convening board meetings, consulting, determining and approving
the agenda of each board meeting, and ensuring that directors are
provided sufficient information on current matters in a timely manner.
The chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Company
formulates good corporate governance practice and procedure.

The Managing Director is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so
as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition,
the Managing Director is also responsible for coordinating close
cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of staff and
encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure smooth and
effective operation of the Company’s operations and systems.
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TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed directors are provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. The
company secretary and representative of auditor update directors
on the latest development and changes regarding the Listing Rules,
accounting standards and other relevant regulatory requirements
from time to time.

In addition, the directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and position to enable the Board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the directors, all directors have
participated in continuous professional development for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

During the year under review, all directors participated in continuous
professional development to update their knowledge and skills by
reading materials relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
and/or their relevant professional and by attending the training
programs arranged by the Company and/or talks and seminars
organised by different professional institutions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. After making specific
enquiries, all directors have confirmed that, in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021, they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors with extensive experience in accounting or legal aspects.
The audit committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the financial
statements, annual reports and accounts and risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, providing advice
to the Board, and making recommendations on the appointment
and remuneration of the auditor of the Company and any matters
related to the termination of appointment. Mr. Chan Kwok Wai is the
chairman of the audit committee and is responsible for reporting the
meeting results and recommendations of the audit committee to the
Board after each meeting.

In 2021, the audit committee convened two meetings. Members and
their attendance are as follows:

BEZEEE

BERZZESH-RBIUIFRITESHEN
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i3S

Number of

Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate

HERE
Name of Members RELTE BITRH HE=R

Chan Kwok Wai ek B 12

(chairman of the audit committee) (BRZEELE) 2/2 100%
Chen Da Cheng R 32 AX 2/2 100%
Deng Hong Ping &R T 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year included
reviewing the 2020 audited financial statements and the annual
results announcement, reviewing the interim report and the interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2021,
considering the accounting standards adopted, reviewing the
financial reporting, internal control and risk management systems,
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function,
reviewing the management letter about audit work of the auditor
submitted to the management and the response of the management
and the basis of opinion made by the auditor in their report, etc.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and two executive directors. The remuneration
committee is principally responsible for reviewing remuneration plans
for directors and senior management, making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration package of executive directors and
senior management, including benefits, pension rights and payment
of compensation. Mr. Chen Da Cheng is the chairman of the
remuneration committee and is responsible for reporting the meeting
results and recommendations of the remuneration committee to the
Board after each meeting.
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In 2021, the remuneration committee convened three meetings. MW _ZE - —F #HMNEESTHBT =X
Members and their attendance are as follows: FONBREREERWT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
RE
Name of Directors EELTE BITRH HE=R
Chen Da Cheng R 32 AX 3/8 100%
(chairman of the remuneration committee) GrWZ 5 g + /%)
Chan Kwok Wai ok B 2 3/3 100%
Deng Hong Ping 7R T 3/8 100%
He Xiangming EIELE 3/3 100%
Fu Weigiang FRE®R (W ZFE-—F 11 100%

(appointed on 1 October 2021) +A—HEZE)

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee during the year
included reviewing the emoluments and incentive scheme of the
Group, reviewing the remuneration of Mr. Fu Weigiang, the new
director, determining the performance assessment index of the
directors and senior management and considering the incentive
payment and making recommendations to the Board. The
remuneration committee also ensures that no director or senior
management member determines his/her own remuneration.
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The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration based on the responsibilities, qualifications and
In addition, the
Group adopted the share option scheme for a term of 10 years

working performance of staff (including directors).

on 26 April 2013. Since adoption of the share option scheme, the
Group has not granted any share options.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises two executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors. The nomination
committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. It shall consider the suitability of a candidate
to act as a director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
under the requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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In 2021, the nomination committee convened two meetings, A E T —F o IRAEESERITRARG
members and their attendance are as follows: FONEBRHEEERUT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Directors EELE BITRH HE=R
He Xiangming GRS 2/2 100%
(chairman of the nomination committee) FEHEEEFE)
Fu Weigiang RER (P ZZEZ—F - -
(appointed on 1 October 2021) +HA—HEZT)
Chan Kwok Wai ok B 2 2/2 100%
Chen Da Cheng R 32 AX 2/2 100%
Deng Hong Ping &R T 2/2 100%
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The work carried out by the nomination committee during the
year included considering and nominating Mr. Fu Weigiang as the
new director of the Company, reviewing the Board structure of the
Company, reviewing and recommending the re-election of the retiring
directors at the annual general meeting, assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors, considering and reviewing
the Board diversity policy and making recommendations to the
Board.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company have
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules and have
presented annual confirmations of independence issued pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company. The nomination
committee has assessed their independence and confirms that all
independent non-executive directors are independent parties as
defined in the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the letters of appointment,
the term of office of Mr. Chan Kwok Wai, Mr. Chen Da Cheng and Mr.
Deng Hong Ping are until 30 June 2022, 30 June 2023 and 30 June
2023 respectively. They are subject to the retirement by rotation and
re-election requirements of the bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a director. The selection criteria used
in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc. The
procedure of appointing and re-appointing a director is summarised
as follows:—

1. The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

2. When it is necessary to appoint an additional director or fill a
casual vacancy, the nomination committee identifies, selects
and recommends candidates to the Board pursuant to post
nature and the criteria set out in the Nomination Policy.
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3. The nomination committee shall submit the candidate’s resume
and recommendation, including terms of appointment, to the
Board for consideration. If the process yields one or more
desirable candidates, the nomination committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the assessment result
and presents the same together with its recommendation to the
Board for consideration.

4.  Based on the recommendation from the nomination committee,
the Board will consider and approve the appointment of new
director(s).

5.  Each director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election at
the annual general meeting of the year.

6. The nomination committee shall review overall contribution,
performance, professional knowledge and qualifications of the
retiring directors and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration for their re-election.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. With a view to maintaining competitive advantage, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element. Therefore, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in 2013. The policy set out that the nomination committee of
the Company reviews and assesses the composition of the Board,
makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of new
directors of the Company, oversees the conduct of the annual review
of the effectiveness of the Board in order to achieve the objective
of Board diversity. In addition, mechanisms including supervising,
reporting and policy reviewing etc. ensure that the Board diversity
policy will be implemented effectively.

The nomination committee has reviewed from time to time the
diversity of the Board of the Company to ensure that the policy
will be implemented effectively and considered that there is no
immediate need for setting up the measurable objectives.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
In considering dividend payment, the Board will take into account
factors such as the Group’s expected financial performance,
business conditions and strategies, expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans, business cycles and other
internal or external factors that may affect the Company’s business
or financial performance and financial position, return and interest
of the shareholders and other factors which the Board considers to
be relevant. The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and the Dividend Policy does not constitute any commitment or
obligation of the Company to declare dividends.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate
the Group to manage it risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the audit committee and the senior
management of the Company. The Board determines the nature
and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
design, implementation and control of the risk management and
internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set up and
maintained a suitable and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

iR BER

EFZCRMREEER REER) 'RE
HREAEREEFAEENRKEXR - EEEE
EREFR BEFEREBETNIREZNEER
WRBAY B RE  EH RN RS FRHE
BESERRARERSE XHEHKA
BERERLNDEFUAMBRERMBRRH
HthmEXNERER RRE KRR ED &
EFETHISGENHEMEAR -EFER
TREBREBER REMRLAEHEL
AR EIRKR BN EERER

[\ B B 32 e P R B 4

AEBNRBREERANBEZRRNERE
LUBHIB A IR B s BRI F e IR I »
REAEREEREZFLEELR -

AEBEHIEAREREBEE AEART
EEg ERLZESAREERER -EFg
BEMEREEAEBEMRIEERFTR
ERMNEARMEEREE TEEEERR
BEEAANBEERANRG - BRAER
NHERAERRT RERFSERA YN AR
EERANSEERGK ILRKEEEEMIF
HIRREEZMFEBERNER  RIERT
TEEANKBERANBRELGEMIFE
HHYIREE ©

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Ho [ B3 ¢ B A BR 23 6]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 44

27



28

RS IE
R EIRH G
Corporate Governance Report

The Group has formulated and adopted corporate risk management
policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the senior management
identifies risks that would affect the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners
are then established for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit function to
assist the Board and the audit committee in ongoing monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
identify deficiencies in the design and implementation of risk
management and internal controls and recommend proposal for
improvement. Significant risk management and internal control
deficiencies will be reported to the audit committee and the Board
on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

Risk management report and internal control report are submitted to
the audit committee and the Board at least once a year. The Board
had performed annual review on the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s
ability to cope with its business transformation and changing external
environment; the scope and quality of management’s review on risk
management and internal control systems; result of internal audit
work; the extent and frequency of communication with the Board in
relation to result of risk and internal control review; significant failures
or weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside
information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information.
The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
safe harbours as provided in the Securities Future Ordinance. The
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, if the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading, or false or misleading through omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and
negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is Mr. Lo Tai On, who is engaged and
appointed by the Company from an external secretarial services
provider. The primary contact persons with the company secretary
of the Company are Mr. He Xiangming (executive director and
chairman) and Ms. Ella Chong (assistant to the chairman). During the
year, the company secretary of the Company duly complied with the
relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing financial
statements of the Group.

The financial department of the Company is managed by a qualified
accountant. With the assistance of the financial department, the
Board will ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the audit fee was
approximately HK$1,800,000 and the non-audit services fee
mainly included services provided as reporting accountants was
approximately HK$100,000.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by HLM CPA
Limited, the auditor of the Company, in respect of the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 110 to 125.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of good communication
with shareholders and investors, and recognizes the value of
providing current and relevant information to shareholders and
investors. The Board has established a shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation to
shareholders’ communication, with the objective of ensuring that
both shareholders and investors can obtain the complete, identical
and current information of the Company in a timely manner.

The Company has maintained communication with shareholders
through the annual general meeting or other general meetings and
encourages them to participate in general meetings. Registered
shareholders receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed resolutions
and the voting form. Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend
the annual general meeting and special general meetings provided
that their shares must be registered in the register of members.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the general meeting can
fill in the proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting
and return the same to the Company so as to appoint their
representatives or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies.

At the annual general meeting held on 25 June 2021, all directors
were present to answer questions raised by shareholders and
separate resolution in respect of each separate issue was proposed
for shareholders to vote thereon. The Company appointed branch
share registrar of the Company to act as scrutineers and to ensure
votes cast are properly counted and recorded, and announced the
results of the poll on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require
a special general meeting to be called and propose any matter
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company. The
Requisitionists may deposit the written requisition for special general
meeting (which shall specify the full name of the Requisitionists,
the business and proposal to be considered at the general meeting
of the Company, and shall be signed by the Requisitionists) to the
principal place of business of the Company for the attention of
the Board. If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting in specified days as
provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules,
the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director

In accordance with the provision 88 of the Company’s bye-laws,
no person other than a director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election as
a director at any general meeting unless not less than seven (7)
days before the date appointed for the general meeting there shall
have been lodged at the office or at the head office notice in writing
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given of his intention to propose such person for election and
also notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected provided that the period for lodgment
of the aforesaid notice shall commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to
the date of such general meeting. For further information, please
refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” published on the Company’s website at
http://chinainvestments.tonghaiir.com.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company (“Proposers”), or not less than one
hundred of such registered shareholders can request the Company
in writing to: (a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Proposers may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Proposers; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
name, address, telephone number and email address etc.) by the
following means:

Address: Unit 501, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax No.: 852-23013878

Email: general@cihl.com.hk
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The directors present the annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
42 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s fair review of the business during the year and
discussion on the future business development of the Group are
set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 14 of this
annual report. In addition, the discussion on the principal risks
and uncertainties which the Group is exposed to the relationships
with the Group’s suppliers, customers and other stakeholders, the
Group’s environmental policies and performance and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out in below paragraphs and the section on
employees under page 47 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year with financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 14 of this annual report.

The events significantly affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report are set out in Note 44 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and financial
management risks.
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Details of financial risk management policies and practices of the
Group is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. The Group continuously enhance relationships
with individual and corporate customers, which enjoys good
relationship with suppliers and customers. During the year of 2021,
there were no material and significant dispute between the Group
and its suppliers and/or customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Relevant Environmental
management policies and procedures have been formulated in
different segments the Group to manage the use of resources like
water, electricity and various fuel. An environmental, social and
governance report is set out on pages 49 to 109 of this annual
report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland China while the Company
itself is incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”). Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in Bermuda, mainland China and Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this report, the Group have complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the mainland China, Hong Kong and the Bermuda that
have a significant impact on the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 126 to 128 of this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year end
date. There was a revaluation surplus of HK$16,679,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: surplus of HK$49,000). Details of
such revaluation are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment are set out in Note 19 to the financial statements.

Particulars regarding the Group’s major properties are set out on
pages 303 to 308 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.
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During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 131 and 132 and Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, except that under
the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of approximately HK$725,199,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman)

Mr. Fu Weigiang (Managing Director)
(appointed on 1 October 2021)

Mr. You Guang Wu (Director)

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director)

Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr. Cheng Weidong (Deputy Managing Director)
(appointed on 1 January 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Chen Da Cheng
Mr. Deng Hong Ping
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With effect from 1 October 2021, Mr.
appointed as an executive director and the managing director of

Fu Weigiang has been

the Company and member of each nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Mr. He Xiangming,
resigned as the managing director of the Company and remains as
an executive director and the chairman of the Board. With effect
from 1 January 2021, Mr. Cheng Weidong has been appointed
as an executive director and the deputy managing director of the

Company.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Huang Zhihe, Mr.
Chan Kwok Wai and Mr. Chen Da Cheng, being the directors longest
in office since their last re-election, shall retire by rotation from office
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Huang Zhihe and Mr.
Chan Kwok Wai, (except Mr. Chen Da Cheng due to his retirement
as mentioned below), being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-
election. Mr. Fu Weigiang was appointed as an executive director
on 1 October 2021 and he will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election.

Mr. Chen Da Cheng will retire by rotation and not offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting due to his
personal business commitments, and accordingly, he will retire
as independent non-executive director at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting and upon his retirement, he
will cease to be the chairman and member of the remuneration
committee and the member of each of the audit committee and
the nomination committee with effect from the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Pursuant to the letters of appointment, the terms of office of Mr.
Chan Kwok Wai, Mr. Chen Da Cheng and Mr. Deng Hong Ping are
until 30 June 2022, 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2023, respectively.
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As recommended by the nomination committee, the Board proposes
to appoint Mr. Peng Xinyu as an independent non-executive director
and will submit the proposal to the shareholders for approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

He Xiangming, aged 55, was appointed as an executive director
and chairman of the Board of the Company on 23 July 2014. Mr.
He is the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company, the chairman of the board
of directors of Guilin Plaza*, Canton Greengold Financial Leasing
Ltd.*, Guangdong Sinsing Technology Ltd.*, Guangdong Tiannuo
Investments Co., Ltd.* and Guangdong Taoyuan Comprehensive
Health Operation Co., Ltd* and a director in a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. He holds a master degree in Geography from
South China Normal University. He has extensive experience in
business management and environmental public utilities. Mr. He is
also a vice chairman of Nanhai Listing Promotion Association*. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. He was the chairman of Grandblue
Environment Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange).

Mr. FU Weiqiang, aged 43, was appointed as an executive
director, the managing director of the Company and member of
the nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company on 1 October 2021. He holds a master degree in public
administration from Wuhan University and a bachelor of science
degree in economic geography and urban and rural planning from
Sun Yat-sen University. He has extensive experience in industrial
planning, resource development and integration, organization
reform and corporate operation and management. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Fu worked in several government departments
in Nanhai District Foshan City, including the deputy officer of Land
Reserve Centre of Nanhai* (B/&8& t#E#E#EF /L) and the deputy
director of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administrative
Bureau of Nanhai District, Foshan City* (i LT E SEREEELEE
EERF).
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You Guang Wu, aged 57, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004
until 6 April 2006 when he was redesignated as vice chairman of
the board and executive director of the Company. On 26 February
2009, Mr. You was appointed as the chairman of the board and on
23 July 2014 resigned as the chairman of the board. Mr. You is now
an executive director of the Company, the managing director and
legal representative of Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Ltd.*
and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. You
is a senior accountant in the PRC. He holds a master degree in
economics. He has accumulated extensive experience in investment,
financing and financial management.

Huang Zhihe, aged 53, was appointed as an executive director and
the deputy managing director of the Company on 5 August 2013.
Mr. Huang is also the managing director and legal representative of
Guangdong Sinsing Technology Ltd.* and a director in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Huang holds a bachelor degree in
industrial management and engineering and a master of business
administration from South China University of Technology. He has
extensive experience of investment and development in real estate
and management in hotel industry.

Wang Xin, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director and
the deputy managing director of the Company on 1 May 2014 and
is also the chairman and legal representative of Guangdong Sino
Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.*
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Wang holds a master degree in
economics from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics. She
has extensive experience in corporate business operation, strategic
financial planning and management, team building and management
innovation.

and a director in a number of

Cheng Weidong, aged 51, was appointed as an executive
director and the deputy managing director of the Company on 1
January 2021. Mr. Cheng is also the managing director and legal
representative of Guangdong Taoyuan Comprehensive Health
Operation Co., Ltd.* and a director in a number of subsidiaries of
the Company. He holds a degree in economic management from the
Party School of the Guangdong Provincial Committee of Communist
Party of China. He has extensive experience in corporate investment
and development planning. Prior to joining the Company, he worked
as the chief officer of the Planning and Development Division of
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administrative Bureau of
Nanhai District, Foshan City*.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Kwok Wai, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004
and is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree in Accounting and
Commerce, and is member of the CPA Australia and a member of
Hong Kong Securities Institute. He has over 30 years of experience
in the finance and accounting industry. Mr. Chan is also currently
independent non-executive director of 4 other listed public
companies in Hong Kong, namely Chinese Estates Holdings Limited,
Tern Properties Company Limited, National Electronics Holdings
Limited and Far East Consortium International Limited.

Chen Da Cheng, aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 and
is the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
the audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Chen graduated from the Sun Yat-sen University, PRC. He is a
practicing solicitor in the PRC and has over 30 years of experience in
legal services. Mr. Chen is also the executive director of Guangdong
Lawyers Association, legal consultant of Foshan Public Security
Bureau Nanhai Branch and chief supervisor of Nanhai Anti-drug
Association®.

Deng Hong Ping, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 6 April 2006 and is a
member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Deng holds a Bachelor
Degree in marine engineering of the Ocean University of China in
Guangdong and graduated in master of economics and legal studies
of Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Deng is a
practicing lawyer in the PRC and an arbitrator of Foshan Arbitration
Commission and he has accumulated extensive experience in legal
sectors, particularly in enterprises mergers and acquisition and debt
reorganization.

Note: The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the above
executive directors who are the senior management of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interest of the Company’s directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company REATRBNETFE
Approximate
percentage
of total
issued shares
Number of as at
Nature of ordinary 31 December
Name of director Capacity Interest shares held 2021
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Fifs HME2EEET
ERps 519 EHEEE HEREE RipzEDL
He Xiangming Beneficial owner Personal 1,441,000 0.08%
(EIELE! Em#EAA [EUN
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares or interest in debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, according to the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO, the persons who were interested in 5% or more in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company are as follows:

bR EXFAmEEIN R _E-_—F+_A8
=t+—B FARATNEFAERSTHAEH
BRARBERSFTRPAERABEXVEE78
DEANERABDRBMRFANAATHEE
ARBEE (EERBHRPEHRMIEXVED)
WG BRI ES I KR (B
BEBSRPAERINAREXREANE
FEANBDZIKE)  ARBBFRPE
1% B S5 3521R R E AR BIFT IS BY B 5C -
WRBRETR AN G RA T R B FTRIE
mIKE ©

FERR
REB-—&E+-A=+—0 REAAT
BRESRAE GG EBRTEZEIER
SRECMA L HAAATRIDRABRRY
5% 2 i MM T :

Approximate

Number percentage
of shares/ of total issued
underlying shares as at

Name shares Capacity 31 December 2021
RZIEZ—%
+-A=+—H
& 15,/ R NLREBEET
&1 ROHEE HH RirzBRLE
Guangdong Nanhai Holding Investment Co., Ltd.* 1,441,439,842  Corporate interest 84.18%
EREEEREERRAT (Note) A=
(P 5E)
Note: B 5E

These 1,441,439,842 shares comprises (i) 1,222,713,527 shares held by
Prize Rich Inc. which was wholly-owned by Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Investment Co., Ltd.*; and (i) 218,726,315 new shares to be allotted and
issued by the Company to Prize Rich Inc. upon the exercise of conversion
rights attaching to the convertible bonds issued by the Company to Prize
Rich Inc. pursuant to an acquisition agreement as part of the consideration.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the
register as having an interest in 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company.

For identification purpose only
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There were no connected transactions which need to be disclosed
as connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules during the year.

ADVANCES TO ENTITIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, in the course of
financial leasing business, the Group advanced to the following
lessees (the “Debtor Group”), namely Foshan City Nanhai District
Guangfo Trade Town Development Co., Ltd.* (LT /8 & E#
mEiHZEEAAT), Foshan City Nanhai District Yanbu Land
Resources Development Ltd.* (LT g /& & 8 4 + i &R &%
‘A7]), Foshan City Nanhai District Dali Town Yuansheng Water
Treatment Co., Ltd.* (Rl mEE KNEBEREEXKEEBRLE),
Foshan City Nanhai Hengyuan Property Management Co., Ltd.* (ff
WL rEERYMESEAIR/AT)and Foshan City Nanhai District
Dali Agricultural Machinery Co.* (LTI EBE XEREEBAR),
which are ultimately controlled by the Urban and Rural Coordination
Bureau of Dali Town, Nanhai District, Foshan City. As at the date
of this report, the aggregate outstanding balance of the relevant
advances made by the Group to them exceeds 8% under the assets
ratio under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules, information as required
under Rule 13.15 of the Listing Rules are summarized as followings:

On 23 January 2019, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance lease
with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership of the
assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration of
RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$69,300,000) with
the average interest rate of 5.7%, which would be leased back to the
party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession for a term
of 5 years. The finance lease was secured by guarantee. As at 31
December 2021, there was an outstanding balance of approximately
HK$36,326,000. Further details of the finance lease are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 25 January 2019.

On 21 February 2019, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance
lease with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership
of the assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration
of RMB140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$163,660,000)
with the average interest rate of 5.7%, which would be leased back
to the party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession
for a term of 5 years. The finance lease was secured by guarantee.
As at 31 December 2021, there was an outstanding balance of
approximately HK$79,198,000. Further details of the finance lease
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 21 February
2019.
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On 6 January, 2020, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance lease
with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership of the
assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration of
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$55,750,000) with
the average interest rate of 5.7%, which would be leased back to the
party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession for a term
of 5 years. The finance lease was secured by guarantee. As at 31
December, 2021, there was an outstanding balance of approximately
HK$39,932,000. Further details of the finance lease are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 8 January 2020.

On 2 July 2020, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance lease
with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership of the
assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$32,910,000) with
the average interest rate of 5.7%, which would be leased back to the
party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession for a term
of 5 years. The finance lease was secured by guarantee. As at 31
December, 2021, there was an outstanding balance of approximately
HK$27,464,000. Further details of the finance lease are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 3 July 2020.

On 7 December 2020, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance
lease with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership
of the assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration
of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$59,300,000)
with the average interest rate of 5.7%, which would be leased back
to the party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession
for a term of 5 years. The finance lease was secured by guarantee.
As at 31 December, 2021, there was an outstanding balance of
approximately HK$51,920,000. Further details of the finance lease
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8 December
2020.

On 29 January 2021, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance lease
with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership of the
assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$24,120,000) with
the average interest rate of 5.7%, which would be leased back to the
party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession for a term
of 5 years. The finance lease was secured by guarantee. As at 31
December, 2021, there was an outstanding balance of approximately
HK$17,966,000.
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On 23 August 2021, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance lease
with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership of the
assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration of
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$60,100,000) with
the average interest rate of 5.7%, which would be leased back to the
party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession for a term
of 5 years. The finance lease was secured by guarantee. As at 31
December, 2021, there was an outstanding balance of approximately
HK$58,123,000. Further details of the finance lease are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 25 August 2021.

On 29 October 2021, Greengold Leasing entered into finance leases
with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership of the
assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration of
RMB280,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$340,760,000)
with the average interest rate of 5.3%, which would be leased back
to the party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession
for a term of 5 years. The finance leases was secured by guarantee
and pledges. As at 31 December, 2021, there was an outstanding
balance of approximately HK$323,169,000. Further details of the
finance lease are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29
October 2021.

On 24 January 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into finance leases
with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership of the
assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration of
RMB125,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$153,500,000)
with the average interest rate of 5.3%, which would be leased back
to the party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession for
a term of 5 years. Further details of the finance lease are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 24 January 2022.

On 16 February 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance
lease with the party of the Debtors Group to acquire the ownership
of the assets from the party of the Debtors Group for a consideration
of RMB95,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$116,945,000)
with the average interest rate of 5.3%, which would be leased back
to the party of the Debtors Group for its own use and possession for
a term of 5 years. Further details of the finance lease are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 17 February 2022.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 41 to the
financial statements. Those related party transactions constituted
exempt connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme is for a term
of 10 years from the date of adoption. No option has been granted
since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Group
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants for their
contribution or future contribution to the Group and to strengthen
the long-term relationships that the participants may have with the
Group.

For details of terms of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
Note 35 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, charitable donation amounting to HK$15,360 was
made within the Group (2020: HK$ Nil).
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the largest supplier accounted for 13% of the
Group’s purchases and the five largest suppliers accounted for 36%
of the Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted
for 25% of the Group’s turnover and the five largest customers
accounted for 41% of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has an interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group is approximately 946
(2020: 527). The remuneration of the employees of the Group
is determined on the basis of performance and responsibility of
the employees. The Group provides education allowances to
the employees. The Group also provides internal training to its
employees to enable them to achieve self-improvement and to
enhance their job related skills. The Group also operates a share
option scheme, under which qualified employees may exercise their
options at an agreed price to subscribe for shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s bye-laws provided that the directors for the time
being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except
such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against directors of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible notes and share option scheme as disclosed
in notes 32 and 35 to the financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 were audited by HLM CPA Limited who will retire
and seek for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Investments Holdings Limited

He Xiangming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

*

For identification purpose only
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ABOUT THE GROUP

Aiming to promote the long-term sustainable development of its
business, China Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”) have been
striving to continuously optimize various businesses of the Group
and actively invest in high-growth industries in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) to gradually achieve the goal of enhancing
and maintaining stable shareholder returns. The Group’s diversified

businesses cover:

(i) Financial leasing business: By comprehensively building
the core competitiveness of financial leasing in environmental
protection segment, the Group will strive to develop into a first-
class environmental-friendly and professional financial leasing
company in the PRC;

(i)  Property and industrial park investment business: The
Group is striving to develop the industrial park in Danzao Town,
Nanhai District, Foshan City, which is designed to house the
main and spare production plants, pilot base, research and
development centre and ancillary facilities for new energy
vehicles;

(i) Big data business: By taking advantages of the opportunities
arising from the new smart city construction plan in Nanhai
District, the Group will continue its research and development
efforts in the big data industry projects, leverage market
forces in technological research and development, and explore
innovation applications and business models;

(iv) Wellness elderly care business: The Group will continue to
head toward the direction of developing a three-tier elderly care
system comprising institutions, communities and households
in Nanhai District, advance the premium elderly care services
“integrating medical and care services” and endeavour to forge
the “Taoyuan” elderly care brand into an industry model;

(v) Hotel business: The Group operates the Guilin Plaza
Hotel located in Qixing District, Guilin City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, providing thoughtful accommodation
services for travellers; and

(vij Civil explosives (“Civil explosives”) business: The
Group is actively implementing technological upgrade and
transformation projects and cost reduction reform measures,
striving to explore domestic civil explosives manufacturing and
distribution business.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) outlines the Group’s overall environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) performance, risks, strategies, measures and
commitments.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the period from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period” or
“20217).

Reporting Scope

The Group has adjusted the reporting scope of the Reporting
Period to cover all the Group’s continuing operations included in
the annual report (excluding those with less revenue share and
less environmental impact). In addition to our Nanhai headquarters,
Hong Kong office and hotel business, this report will also obtain key
performance indicator (“KPI”) data from the operation of our financial
leasing business, property and industrial park investment business,
big data business, wellness elderly care business and civil explosives
business. With the Group’s data collection system growing more
mature and after we increase our efforts in sustainable development,
we will continue to expand the scope of disclosure in the future.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). For the corporate governance structure and
other relevant information of the Group, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 15 to 32 of this annual report.
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During the preparation of the ESG Report, the Group adopted
the following reporting principles as set out in the aforesaid ESG
Reporting Guide:

Materiality: During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted
materiality assessment to identify material issues, and regarded
the identified material issues as the focus of preparation of its
ESG Report. The materiality of the issues has been reviewed and
confirmed by the board of directors (the “Board”) and the ESG
working group (the “Working Group”). For further details, please refer
to the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment”.

Quantitative: The criteria and methods used to calculate the KPI
data and the applicable assumptions have been supplemented in the
notes.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report has been
prepared using the same methods as that of the previous year
for comparison purpose. If there is any change in the scope
of disclosure, data collection system and calculation method
which may affect the comparison with the previous reports, the
corresponding data will be explained.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the ESG Report to
demonstrate the Group’s commitment to continuously improving
ESG performance in the following five areas: corporate governance,
environmental protection, employment practice, operating practice
and community engagement.

Over the recent years, the PRC government has been committed
to promoting the transformation of the green economy, and has
implemented the goal of “carbon peaking by 2030 and carbon
neutrality by 2060” to promote the development of clean energy. The
Group is committed to following the pace of national development
and moving towards a sustainable business model so as to help
promote sustainable development. The Group will capitalize on
opportunities of developing green bond projects to gain investment
returns, continue to develop its financial leasing business, firmly
follow the path of professional development in green environmental
protection, and always stay focused on municipal environmental
protection fields such as solid waste treatment, sewage treatment,
and biogas power generation. In response to the national energy
transformation and development, we will continue to carry out
photovoltaic power generation projects and turn to use energy-
saving lighting in various business segments to improve energy
efficiency. The Group’s big data business will also continue to
explore and research the open Internet of Things platform as the
core, targeting at smart medical, smart energy and other fields for
business expansion and development of related project products, so
as to provide enterprises with solutions to improve energy efficiency.

In recent years, people from all walks of life have been attaching
increasingly great importance to the sustainable development and
social responsibility of enterprises, which should incorporate ESG
factors into their core decisions during their business operations. The
Group also strives to develop sustainable development approach
and a sound governance structure to effectively manage ESG issues
related to the Group. The Board is required to assess the potential
impact of ESG issues on the Group’s overall strategy, formulate ESG
management approach and strategies, and monitor the Group’s ESG
issues. Information on the Group’s ESG governance structure is set
out in the section headed “ESG Governance Structure”.
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In order to identify and prioritize material ESG issues that have
relatively significant impact on our operations and our stakeholders,
we continuously communicate with our internal and external
stakeholders. The Board has appointed the Working Group
and engaged an independent third party to conduct materiality
assessment. Information on stakeholder engagement channels
and materiality assessment that has been conducted by the Group
are set out in the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and
“Materiality Assessment” respectively. In order to develop a deeper
understanding of stakeholders’ expectations for the sustainable
development of the Group, the Group will further strengthen
communication with stakeholders, and formulate relevant policies
and measures with reference to their opinions to enhance the
Group’s ESG performance.

As a company that honors its corporate social responsibility, the
Group recognizes the importance of reducing its impact on the
environment. In order to fulfill the Group’s commitment to corporate
social responsibility and to allow the Group’s stakeholders to
better understand the Group’s continuous improvement in ESG
performance, the Group has decided to formulate quantifiable
environmental targets in response to the national vision of carbon
neutrality so as to enhance corporate reputation. To this end, the
Group has proactively implemented the principles of sustainable
development and adopted relevant measures at the operational level.
To ensure the effective implementation of these measures, the Board
has appointed the Working Group to collect relevant ESG data, track
and review our performance, and assess the Group’s progress in
achieving relevant goals.

Finally, on behalf of the Board and management team of the
Group, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our valued
stakeholders for their continued support and to our employees
for their valuable contributions to the development of the Group.
Looking ahead, the Group will continue to integrate ESG concepts
into its business strategy and management system, stay committed
as a responsible enterprise, operate its business in a more
responsible and sustainable manner, create sustainable value for its
shareholders and pursue a sustainable future.

He Xiangming
Chairman
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group has developed an ESG governance structure to ensure
that ESG governance is in line with our business strategy and
integrate ESG management into our business operations and
decision-making process.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG issues
and is required to formulate ESG management approach, strategies,
priorities and objectives. In order to better manage the Group’s ESG
performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board regularly
assesses and determines the Group’s ESG risks and opportunities,
and reviews its performance and progress in relation to ESG-related
goals. The Board is also responsible for ensuring the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems, and approving the
information to be disclosed in the ESG Report.

In order to systematically manage ESG issues under the
authorization of the Board, the Group has established the Working
Group, which is comprised of core members from different
departments, aiming to assist the Board in oversight of ESG issues.
The Working Group is responsible for collecting and analyzing ESG
data, monitoring and evaluating the Group’s ESG performance,
following up and reviewing the progress of achieving the Group’s
ESG-related goals, ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws and
regulations, assisting in materiality assessment and preparing the
ESG Report. The Working Group regularly schedules meetings to
assess the effectiveness of existing policies and procedures, and
develop appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance of
ESG policies. The Working Group is required to report to the Board
on a regular basis to assist in the assessment and identification
of the Group’s ESG risks and opportunities, and to ensure the
implementation and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

As a responsible enterprise, while actively developing business and
improving profitability, the Group also attaches great importance
to the relationship with stakeholders and their feedback on
our business and ESG issues, so as to proactively balance the
interests of all parties and promote the sustainable development of
enterprises. To fully understand, respond to and address the core
concerns of different stakeholders, we have been working with key
stakeholders, including but not limited to senior management and
the Board, shareholders and investors, employees, customers,
suppliers, the government and regulators, as well as the public, non-
governmental organizations (“NGOs”) and the media to maintain
regular and close communication.

We incorporate stakeholders’ expectations into our operations and
ESG strategies by employing the diverse collaboration approaches
and communication channels as shown in the table below.

Stakeholder
HinE

Communication channel
BEEREE

FhESH

FERFA—REEENEE FEBERE
EB RABMNENZE TIHEEERER
BEZENAGEREBEMEFRESGER
WREER  UEBFHI DM@ RED
FOUFEER - RE2E TR LDEREESR
BEFNENZORIH R —ERXTER
nE GEEFTRIREREEERESTE
REKRKREE -BE B H#HE® BHFK
EEWRE URAFT FHRFHE (FFBA
W) REBERSERRETNBE-

BEEBERTRATHZTEEFEAARER
RE BZFARFOENPREFTARMANEE
RESGEREEE H o

Expectation

A

Senior management and the Board ° Board meetings

° Compliance-based operation

EBREEENRESY EEggE RS
° Daily communication and ° Economic performance
reporting KB RIR
BE&EBERER e To improve risk management and
internal control
TERBEERABEE
Shareholders and investors ° Annual general meetings and ° Financial results
BREEEES other general meetings R
RERBEFAGREMBEKRSE o  Corporate transparency
. Financial reports, EBHE

announcements, circulars and e

other public information

MBRE 2G5 -BEF

NFEER

To improve risk management and
internal control
TERBEIERALEE
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Stakeholder

Communication channel

Expectation

HihE BERE HAE
Employees ° Regular job performance o Career development
3= assessment HEERE
EHR TERIRTH e Competitive salary and benefits
e Training and seminars B E IR0 E N B AR R
e 2 e Equal opportunity for
advancement
TEEHES
° Healthy and safe working
environment
BREZE2WNIIEIRER
Customers ° Customer hotline and email ° To provide quality products and
Y= BFEAEME I services
REEENER KRS
° To protect customers’ interests
REE R @
o To protect customer privacy
IRIEE FRETA
o Compliance-based operation
B
Suppliers ° Supplier performance o Fair and open sourcing
g assessment NEMABIRE
4 & i R IR A e Responsible supply chain
° Phone and email management
Bt R EE BEENHERESE
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° Business ethics and reputation
FEEREEE
o Fair and open competition
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Communication channel

Expectation

A

Government and regulatory bodies

B R B E R

The public, NGOs and the media
R FEBUN R IR

To participate in improvement
plans organized by industry and
local government regulators
SEITE M TR EEPIAE
BBy C =t 8l

ESG reports

ESG#R &

Charitable activities and
donations
BEEETRIER

Compliance-based operation
B

Risk management
B B B I
Tax payment

To implement green
management
BiTHBKRE

To provide employment
opportunities
RUEMERS

To support public welfare
SESYNGEE

Open and transparent
information

NHRABRHEH
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To better understand the opinions and expectations of stakeholders
on the Group’s ESG performance, we have adopted a systematic
approach to conduct annual materiality assessment. With reference
to the Group’s business development strategies and industry
practices, the Group has identified and confirmed a list of material
ESG issues, which covers the following five major areas: corporate
governance, environmental protection, employment practice,
operational practice and community investment. The Group
prepared a questionnaire according to the list, and invited relevant
stakeholders to rate potential material issues based on the influence
of ESG issues on the stakeholders and the significance of impact on
the economy, environment and society. We analyzed the results of
the questionnaire and formulated a materiality matrix. The materiality
matrix and identified material issues are reviewed and confirmed by
the Board and Working Group and disclosed in the ESG Report.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s materiality matrix is as

EEHRTE

mEBARTHRHNERNAEBZESGRIRH
BERAPE RMRBBERGN S ZETE
EEEUNETIF - AEESEAERER
LRRBEATRER > H 5 M FEBEARESG
BEBE HERELAEHE: bXER IR
BRE-EREN EEBRKLERE &
EERRFERREEHEE  WRFHEBE
PERBESGRBRT DENT ERHEEK
BEARBNMUHENREFE HETEKRE
BRETH R - RANBERENERETH
MIEGERESHEE - E2MEEREH
NMEXZEEEREFERIMFENIBRER
FESY > W ARESGER & F K BE o 7 ¥Rk 5 HF
B> AEBNEZMHEREBWNMT !

follows:
High Materiality Matrix
2 EEMEREE
Product quality and safety

g management S— .

@ EnEERZEHEE ELEa el eI el

'g cybersecurity

g Integrity construction IR RENEERZ S

= BRI

o

$ e Supply chain management

) e G

98 Employee development and

ﬁ pﬁ training

H Empl t ti ./ = 13 4ar 2|

[~ s oymelng aleiss Waste treatment RS &R

& ik TREIEG =

T o BEERA R IR -

SR Carbon emission management and

R ; countermeasures to climate change

< ustomer service

< % = BHERE SR

S _+ = AR B A RS RIREME

&

(0]

o . o

S Responsible resource consumption [ Protecting customer privacy )

2 BEEEENE and rights Corporate social

= — RIEE P FAPRNE S responsibility
PEMEEME

L%W Significance of Economic, Environmental and Social Impacts High
Al =)

BRI SRS EE
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1l.

Emissions

The Group has always attached great importance
to environmental protection, with particular focus on
reducing exhaust gas and greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions, improving resource utilization efficiency and
waste management. For the hotel business, the Group
has formulated policies including the Environmental
BIEFIE)), the
Detailed Implementation Rules for Energy Conservation
and Environmental Protection ((ETREIRREMANR))
and the Code of Practice for Energy Conservation and
AEREIRIZRETR]))
to standardize the implementation of our environmental

Quality Management System ((IBiZE &

Environmental Protection ({Ei%J

protection-related work. The Group will continue to
improve the environmental protection management
system for each business segment, aiming to minimize
the pollution and environmental damage caused by our
daily business operations.

The Group strictly abides by environmental protection
including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((hZEARXEFMRAIRIEFRE L)), the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((FEARZMEKSEEAEZE))
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the

laws and regulations,

Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste ((FZE AR HEMEEfEREEY) 5 RIRE A
7%)) in the PRC, and the Air Pollution Control Ordinance
and the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong.
During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of
non-compliance with the relevant local environmental
laws and regulations relating to exhaust gas and GHG
emissions, discharges of pollutants into water and land
and generation of hazardous or non-hazardous wastes
that have a significant impact on the Group.

A. IRiE

A1,

213, €Y/

rEEB-BENRIEFREFTEE
BRoRHIFEEINBRLVERKAEE
fiE (TRERRE) BN RSB
BRABMERERYEESF K
EEHHASES FIE(RREE

BEEEHE) (Eﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁﬁméﬂﬂ
A1) ~ (BN AV BB R ELIR IR (RSB T A
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RRTERREEHE > SER
BRPABEEBEFEEN SRR
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Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group’s exhaust gas emissions are mainly derived
from diesel and unleaded petrol consumed by vehicles,
and liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) consumed by boilers
used for heating and heat preservation of raw materials in
civil explosives business. In order to reduce the impact on
the environment, the Group will, taking 2021 as the base
year, reduce the total exhaust gas emission intensity by
5% in the next five years, and actively take the following
emission reduction measures:

The boiler has been installed with a flue gas
purification device which has been tested and
certified by the environmental protection department
to minimize the emission of harmful gases;

The fuel used in boilers has been changed from
diesel to cleaner LNG to reduce exhaust gas
emissions;

The exhaust gas emissions from the boiler has
also been tested by the environmental protection
department, and the emission index conforms to the
requirements of the applicable laws and regulations;

All vehicles in the hotel business use high-efficiency
fuel detergents to save fuel consumption; and

Vehicles are maintained and repaired on a regular
basis to prevent excessive exhaust gas emissions
due to damaged parts and other reasons, and
substandard trucks are phased out according to
regional emission policies.
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The Group’s total exhaust gas emissions in 2021
increased significantly as compared with 2020". Such
increase was due to the fact that the Group has
expanded its reporting scope for the Reporting Period
and improved its data collection system used to calculate
nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions from boilers.

The Group’s exhaust gas emissions performance is
summarized as follows:

HR-ZE-ZSF - AEE T
T —FERFBBEREB LA
FERARTEEEERREH
BRRESEE I ETEHEBEW
ERFUSEBEFMEEZAS
169 (NOx) HEJK ©

7 5 B B9 B2 R BF 3R 3R B AL 40
T

Type of exhaust gas® Unit 2021
EEmiEia’ ==K i —E-—4
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) tonnes 362.82
g1t (NOx) Ut

Sulphur oxides (SOx) tonnes 0.01
& {E4 (SOx) U

Particulate matter (PM) tonnes 0.63
FEr Y (PM) NiA

Notes: st

1. In 2020, the Nanhai headquarters, Hong Kong office and
hotel business of the Group generated approximately
272.44 kilograms of nitrogen oxides (NOx), 1.42 kilograms
of sulphur oxides (SOx) and 7.8 kilograms of particulate
matter (PM).

2. The calculation method of exhaust gas emissions and the
related emission factors were based on, including but not
limited to, “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued
by the Stock Exchange and the “4430 Industrial Boiler
(Heat Supply) Industry Coefficients Handbook” (£ 4430
TEBIE GVNOHERE) ITERBFM)) recently issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China.

1. RIZETEF AEEFEEE
H EBEMAERBEER
BEEWN272. 442 T AEEY
(NO)~ 1. 422 FF A 1E#1(SOx)
7. 8AFrFERY (PM) ©

2. ERBIMMSERERAERBE
BEHUAEDHSREEBTR
I B4 52 P 25 AR B9 (90 T ZE FRESG
WE Mg IRIBRARER
ERERESI D UKRFEAR
A0 B 4 AR IR 1R BB AR AT 3 AR BV
(4430 %5B)E BA A M) 17
FRHTM) -
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GHG Emissions

The Group’s GHG emissions are mainly derived from
the direct GHG emissions (scope 1) caused by the
consumption of diesel and petrol in vehicles and the
consumption of LNG and natural gas in boilers, and the
indirect GHG emissions caused by purchased electricity
(scope 2). In response to the national carbon neutrality
goal, the Group will, taking 2021 as the base year,
reduce the total GHG emission intensity by 5% in the
next five years, and plans to increase the green area
of its operating locations through afforestation. For the
aforesaid emission sources, we will strive to reduce our
carbon footprint through the following measures:

° Adopting emission reduction measures on vehicles
and boilers, the relevant measures of which are
described in the section headed “Exhaust Gas
Emissions” of this aspect;

° Adopting electricity-saving measures, the relevant
measures of which are described in the section
headed “Energy Management” section of Aspect
A2; and

o Staying committed to educating and training
employees on the aforesaid environmental policies,
and encouraging them to put forward feasible
suggestions to continuously improve energy
conservation and emission reduction.

The Group’s total GHG emissions increased significantly
from approximately 1,870.04 tCO:2e in 2020 to
approximately 8,402.78 tCOz2e in 2021. Such increase
was due to the fact that the Group has expanded its
reporting scope for the Reporting Period and improved its
data collection system used to calculate GHG emissions
from boilers.
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RIR ~ the BB IR

The Group’s GHG emissions performance is summarized AERERE RS RIE BN
as follows: mr

Indicator® Unit 2021
L B 1 T —F
Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions tCO2e 2,059.51
HE-—EFRERBBW MR EREE

e Diesel consumption tCOze 1,106.28
o SHUHFE —@itikES

e Petrol consumption tCOze 115.10
o HIHFE MR ICIREE

e | NG and natural gas consumption tCO2e 838.13
o RIERARMKIARIEFE MG bR E =

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions tCO2e 6,3438.27
#HEZ -EREERE QBN M| ICIREE

e Purchased electricity tCO2e 6,343.27
o SMEEN Wi —FAEmRE 2

Total GHG emissions (Scopes 1 and 2) tCO2e 8,402.78
RERBHREE @BE—KI) E_AIbiE R

Total GHG emissions intensity tCOze/HK$ million revenue* 16.13

RERBHNRERE —&tiREE BB EERAY
Notes: (=
3. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon 3.

dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to,
the “2006 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change

BERBHEKRERTBZE_SE
KEE2% > T2RBEEBL
RR((CEERNFHAEREE

(“IPCC”) Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories”, the “Global Warming Potential Values” from
the “IPCC Fifth Assessment Report” in 2014, “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the
“2021 Sustainability Report” published by the CLP Power
Hong Kong Limited and 2019 baseline emission factors for
the regional power grid in the PRC for emission reduction
project issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of the People’s Republic of China.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue
amounted approximately HK$520.85 million. This data is
also used to calculate other intensity data.

ﬂ:«%-fa?é/a (MPCC 1) BIR
ERAEEEERm) \IPCCTE
*IEEFH?M*EE’](%E'K&%W
)R T2 IKF R PTAEEL ~ B
RS MO (WA FBIRIE ~ #
EhEARBRE M RIR
RASEAB RIS IRE RG5! ) ~ P EE
BNEEBRABDEMRN(ZE
_—FUFEERRE)UKRF
i)\ﬁ#ﬁﬂlﬁi & IR 1% B 8 ffh
TE-AFRBFEEREA
i’@@ﬁz*%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ&l¥°

4. MRBREPRB ZEBEBRALNR
A 1520.858 & 7T ° UL BUR TR
SR EEMBERE-
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Waste Water Discharges

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s property
and industrial park investment business produced a
total of 105,469 m® of waste water, all of which was
recycled by the municipality in a centralized manner.
To ensure compliance with discharge standards,
industrial waste water discharged by its industrial
tenants shall pass an environmental impact assessment
before being discharged and recycled. Industrial waste
water generated by the civil explosives business is
also required to be filtered by biological substances
before being discharged to the public sewage pipe
network. Waste water discharged from other business
segments is directly discharged to the public sewage
pipe network and piped to the waste water treatment
plant for treatment. Water consumption of these
segments represents the waste water discharged.
Water consumption data and related water targets and
measures are described in the section headed “Water
Management” Aspect A2.

Waste Management

Hazardous waste

The Group’s wellness elderly care business produces
medical waste, which will be temporarily stored in
government hospitals or directly disposed of by qualified
medical waste disposal companies. As the civil explosives
business involves production activities, hazardous wastes
are inevitably produced in its operation process, such as
waste barrels, waste motor oil, used car battery, etc. In
order to reduce hazardous waste discharge, the Group
will, taking 2021 as the base year, reduce the emission
intensity of hazardous wastes by 5% in the next five
years. The Group is committed to waste management,
and stipulates that the hazardous waste produced
shall not be discharged, disposed or transferred at
will, and shall be disposed of by government-approved
and qualified waste recyclers to comply with relevant
environmental laws and regulations.
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The Group’s hazardous waste discharge performance is
summarized as follows:

BUS ~ tE TR
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AEBNE SEERYHFNEREH
munE

Type of waste Unit 2021
EEZEY a5 B —E-—F
Total hazardous wastes tonnes 23.02
BEEEEYER U
e Medical waste tonnes 11.56
o BIEEEY A
e \Waste barrels tonnes 10.84
° BEEAR U
e Waste motor oll tonnes 0.50
o EFREIH U
e Used car battery tonnes 0.06
s BREEEEM NiA
e Waste lamps tonnes 0.03
. BFIBE Ut
e Waste ink cartridges tonnes 0.02
s BFER U
e \Waste battery tonnes 0.01
o BEEM U
Total hazardous waste intensity tonnes/HK$ million revenue 0.04

BEERERYBERZE

Non-hazardous wastes

The non-hazardous wastes produced during the
operation of each business segment of the Group are
mainly general domestic waste, kitchen waste and paper.
Food waste is derived from restaurants and canteens
operated by our property and industrial park investment
business, wellness elderly care business, hotel business
and other businesses. In addition, the transport fleet
for the civil explosives business also produces a small
amount of used vehicle tires. In order to reduce non-
hazardous waste discharge, the Group will, taking 2021
as the base year, reduce the emission intensity of non-
hazardous wastes by 5% in the next five years.

Mg B EBEA

EZERY

AEBSEBIRREBEBRIERR
EENESERYITES—RE
mAIR S B ER R AR o BIER 2R B
RYMENEXERE - KERE
E BAEEXEBREENERK
RE FRILLUN RIBEBEH =
BT BEEEVEEREERK-
mBLEZERYER ~&E
BEU_SE_—FEEREF R
RAREAFRRBEEZERYIEN

BRES% e
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The Group has formulated the Implementation Plan for
Domestic Waste Diversion, Classification and Reduction
((EFBNIR D RDEREEM S ZE)), which refines the
implementation measures for domestic waste diversion,
classification and reduction, regulates, improves, and
urges and guides various business segments to carry out
domestic waste classification and recycling. The Group
has also been committed to developing paperless office
and endeavouring to save paper by encouraging double-
sided printing. Waste paper is delivered to environmental
recycling companies for disposal.

For the non-hazardous waste produced in the operation
process, we also maintain a garbage chamber for our
hotel business that meets the National Standard of the
People’s Republic of China on the Classification and
Accreditation for Star-rated Tourism Hotels ({FFZE A
REMBIBERRERBREZROE D EFTED). All
non-hazardous wastes are recycled and disposed of
by government-designated environmental and health
administrative authorities. The food waste produced
is mainly used as animal feed and compost to reduce
the impact on the surrounding environment. For the
hotel business, we have actively implemented various
measures including reducing consumables for guests,
reducing the amount of packaging and not providing
disposable tableware. By internally employing a method
of hierarchical utilisation of food raw materials and
providing catering customers with packaging and
wine storage services, the hotel also minimized the
consumption of food raw materials and significantly
reduced the production of food waste and other wastes.
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The main non-hazardous waste discharge performance of
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AEBNIEREEEVIIRE

the Group is summarized as follows: BB AN -

Type of waste® Unit 2021
EEE 4R R B —E-—F
Total non-hazardous wastes tonnes 120.45
mEEEYEE i

e (General waste tonnes 53.43
o —AIIIR i

e Kitchen waste tonnes 58.31
o ETER iz

e Paper tonnes 4.51
o MRIR WA

e Used vehicle tires tonnes 4.20
o EREERR B

Total non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/HK$ million revenue 0.23
BEBEEVRERE Mg B EEWA

Note: Bt

The disclosed figures do not include non-hazardous waste
from the hotel business due to lack of confirmed data.
According to the Group’s estimation, when the occupancy
rate of the hotel reaches 50%, approximately 18.00 tonnes
of general waste and 12.00 tonnes of kitchen waste will
be produced annually. When the data collection system
becomes completer and more mature, the Group will
further expand the relevant disclosure scope.

5. HREBSHE FEEZH
FAEOEBAEETEZTE
EY - AEBGHASERE
50%BF S AT E418.00ME —
AR 413K B2 12.00ME 7 & o & H%
WERKENTS AR > &K
EEBE—SIBEAEBARES
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A2.

Use of Resources

Environmental protection and resource conservation
are important responsibilities of the Group. The Group
actively promotes the effective use of resources, and
monitors the potential impact that its business operations
brought to the environment. As stated in Aspect A1,
the Group has formulated relevant environmental
management policies and procedures to manage the use
of water, electricity, diesel, petrol, LNG and natural gas.

Energy Management

In daily production and operation, the Group’s
energy consumption mainly includes diesel and
petrol consumption of vehicles, LNG and natural gas
consumption of boilers, and electricity consumption in
our operations. In addition to the energy-saving measures
for vehicles and boilers mentioned in the section headed
“Exhaust Gas Emissions” in Aspect A1, the Group has
also made efforts to reduce electricity usage. The Group
will, using 2021 as the base year, reduce the total energy
consumption intensity by 5% in the next five years, and
plan to promote the replacement of natural gas boiler fuel
with electricity in the civil explosives business, and the
construction of photovoltaic power generation system
on roof for the wellness elderly care business in the next
seven years. In order to reduce energy consumption,
the Group has taken energy-saving measures in each
business segment:
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Actively carrying out renewable energy projects.
Specifically, the property and industrial park
investment business has installed photovoltaic
power generation system in its industrial parks and
sold a total of 1,383.15 MWh of power generation
to China Southern Power Grid during the Reporting
Period. We have installed solar street lights at
suitable locations for our wellness elderly care
business, and established a solar hot water function
system to reduce power consumption for the hotel
business;

Increasing the use of new energy-saving lighting
sources such as LED lights to extend the service life
of equipment and reduce resource consumption;

Employing computer monitoring technology to
automatically track major energy-consuming
equipment, and intelligently adjusting settings
according to seasons and changes in indoor and
outdoor temperatures; and

Endeavouring to strengthen energy-saving
promotion and training, and post energy-saving
signs in conspicuous places to enhance the
environmental protection awareness of our hotel
guests, property tenants and employees.

BBEEIBESERER-
Hf - EMEXRLEE
BETEHEXRZENRE
Ba#&F RESHMEFE
m 75 EAEEE & $£1,383.15JK
EREBSE - MARREEE
EXCREBEMETE NS
RERIE BIEEBRTERY
KIBRERIKINEER &R > B
BFER

N R B S AE IR U0
LEDB ERXEHEAS
oo B DB IRHEE

EREMEERMEEER
FERBET BB > R
FEHMERNINBEEEEAE
AEIREE; &
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As the Group has expanded the reporting scope for
the Reporting Period, the Group’s indirect energy
consumption increased significantly from approximately
2,695.59 MWh?® in 2020 to approximately 7,892.81 MWh
in 2021.

The Group’s energy consumption performance is
summarized as follows:

HRAEBRCEEARSHBEDN
MEHE > AEBENBZERHE
HER T 2FF492,695.590K
REABEAZE_ZT_—FEH
7,892.81JKFLBF o

A& BB BE R FE R IR A 1
T

Type of energy Unit 2021
AEVREE R B —E-—F
Direct energy consumption’ MWh 9,046.88
BERERHRE JK LB

e Diesel MWh 4,482.24
o SH JK R B

e Petrol MWh 419.48
° M JKFUBF

e | NG and natural gas MWh 4,145.16
e RIERARKRAR JK LB

Indirect energy consumption MWh 7,892.81
HEESNEREESE JK LB

e Purchased electricity MWh 7,892.81
° SNEEET JK BB

Total energy consumption MWh 16,939.69
WAERFEE JKELBF

Total energy consumption intensity MWh/HK$ million revenue 32.52
MEEREERE JKEEREBEBEERA

Note: st

6.  For consistency, the Group has restated its indirect energy 6. AREF—RE - XEEB®EIK

consumption for 2020 in MWh.

7. The unit conversion method of energy consumption data
is based on the “Energy Statistic Manual” issued by the
International Energy Agency.
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Water Management

Based on the geographical location of the Group’s
operating premises, we have not encountered any issues
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. To reduce water
consumption, the Group will, using 2021 as the base
year, reduce the total water consumption intensity by
5% in the next five years. In addition to the waste water
recycling measures described in the section headed
“Waste Water Discharge” at Aspect A1, the Group has
also actively adopted water control measures in various
business segments:

° All guest rooms in our hotel business use water-
saving toilets that meet the water efficiency level 1
standard to guide guests to reduce waste;

° Cotton fabrics are changed only as requested by
hotel guests to reduce the number of washes;

° Hotel employees are encouraged to save water in
their daily lives and install smart sensor water-saving
systems in employee bathrooms;

° A large amount of water mist from the cooling tower
of the hotel building is recycled to greatly reduce the
loss of water mist;

° Water leak inspection is carried out on a regular
basis, and water consumption is controlled by
installing separate water meters and establishing
a water consumption ledger for measurement and
assessment; and

° We endeavour to strengthen energy-saving
promotion and training, and post water-saving signs
in conspicuous places to enhance the environmental
protection awareness of our hotel guests, property
tenants and employees.

KEEE

ERNAEREEMEIMIEN
B HMXEBAKERLREE
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As the Group has expanded the reporting scope for the
Reporting Period, the Group’s total water consumption
has increased significantly from approximately 31,040.00
m?3 in 2020 to approximately 392,275.00 m?® in 2021.

The Group’s greenhouse energy consumption
performance is summarized as follows:

HRAEECHEARSHABNR
SHE> AEBNEFEKEHT
T~ FFE4931,040.003L 5 K K IE
FHE_ZT - —543892,275.00
T FHKe

AEERRERRHERRTH R
LI

Water consumption Unit 2021
B Ll =%
Total water consumption m3 392,275.00
HAFEIKE 375K

Total water consumption intensity m3/HK$ million revenue 753.14

BFEKERE IFHRBEBEWA

Use of Packaging Materials

The Group’s civil explosives business uses packaging
materials to seal and protect products, which are mainly
composite membrane and cartons. The Group will strive
to optimize the packaging method and select the most
suitable and efficient packaging materials, aiming to
reduce the use of packaging materials. No packaging
materials are used for our other businesses as they are
non-productive.

The Group’s packaging materials consumption
performance is summarized as follows:

BEHHER

FEBRBREBERAEMH
BHAREER HETERES
BAGE - AEEERHELCE
BN ERREBERTEEER
M B EL B TR D B R A R
WERE-HRNEMEBRIFE
EMzBAG HIEEREAE
B

NE BN EMRER KRR R
wmr

Packaging materials Unit 2021
EEM R B i —EZ—%F
Total packaging materials consumption tonnes 689.81
BEMEHRERE 45
e Composite membrane tonnes 87.14
s EHRE Ut
e Cartons tonnes 602.67
o 478 MR
Total packaging materials consumption tonnes/HK$ million revenue 1.32

intensity
BEMMEERERE
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to the practice of corporate
social responsibility and sustainable development,
and strives to mitigate the potential impact on the
environment. The Group has implemented the relevant
environmental protection policies mentioned in the
aforesaid sections, and is committed to reducing
consumption of natural resources and implementing
effective environmental management in pursuit of best
industry practices, so as to ensure that it strictly complies
with all relevant laws and regulations.

Corporate Green Development

As the PRC government continues to strengthen
its support for green finance, big data and other
businesses, the Group has also made great efforts
to formulate strategic plans for related businesses
to help promote sustainable development. In terms
of its financial leasing business, the Group will firmly
follow the path of professional development in green
environmental protection, and always stay focused on
municipal environmental protection fields such as solid
waste treatment, sewage treatment, and biogas power
generation. The Group’s big data business will also
continue to explore and research the open Internet of
Things platform as the core, targeting at smart medical,
smart energy and other fields for business expansion and
development of related project products, thereby offering
solutions to improve energy efficiency.

A3. IRERXAER
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A4,

Strengthened Environmental Awareness

The Group is committed to building an “energy-saving
enterprise”, putting the concepts of cleaner production
and green operation into practice in various business
segments to sharpen its survival and competitive edges.
The Group has effectively strengthened its environmental
protection efforts internally. In addition to strictly requiring
employees to implement the environmental protection
measures set by the Group, it also actively enhances
employees’ environmental protection awareness by
distributing relevant environmental protection information
such as green office and operation to employees,
thereby effectively improving its environmental protection
standard. In addition, the Group is also committed to
promoting the concept of environmental protection and
plans to carry out diversified environmental protection
promotion activities to encourage hotel guests, property
and industrial park tenants and suppliers to participate in
environmental protection work and reduce the impact on
the environment and natural resources.

Climate Change

The escalating risks and challenges posed by climate
change to the global economy may also have a negative
impact on the Group’s business. Therefore, the Group
recognizes the importance of identifying and mitigating
any significant impacts of climate change. The Group
has initially incorporated climate risk into its Enterprise
Risk Management System (({EXREREEHIE)) and
related work procedures, and will hold meetings in various
business segments to discuss relevant issues, so as to
improve climate risk identification and management and
capitalize on relevant opportunities. In accordance with the
international recommendations of the Taskforce on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”) established by the
Financial Stability Board, the management of the Group
has assessed and recognized climate-related risks and
corresponding opportunities that have an impact on the
Group’s business. With reference to the risk classification
of TCFD, the Group has identified climate-related risks and
corresponding management measures as follows:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Physical Risk

The Group’s business is mainly located in Guangdong,
Guangxi and Hong Kong, and may be subject to
extreme weather events such as heavy rain, floods and
typhoons. The increasing frequency and severity of such
events may increase the risk of power outages, supply
chain disruptions, and damage to buildings such as
hotels, factories and properties. This could disrupt the
Group’s operations, resulting in reduced revenue as well
as property damage and increased costs to repair or
restore damaged premises. We are also aware that these
incidents may endanger the safety of our employees.
As a countermeasure, the Group has formulated special
work arrangements for extreme weather in the Corporate
Governance and Staff Code ((tEEBKRETISA)),
and will closely monitor the latest weather news and
suggestions issued by the local government to formulate
contingency plans to ensure that all personnel are
prepared to deal with such extreme weather conditions,
aiming at reducing or avoiding losses and ensuring the
health and safety of employees when extreme weather
hits the Group’s premises.
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Transition Risk

In order to achieve sustainable development, local
governments have successively enacted climate-related
legislation or tightened regulations to support the global
decarbonization vision. For instance, over the recent
years, the PRC government has been committed to
promoting the transformation of the green economy,
and has implemented the goal of “carbon peaking by
2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060” to promote the
development of clean energy. In response to such policy
changes, we may need to change our operating practices
and move towards a sustainable business model, which
may result in increased operating costs. The Group will
capitalize on opportunities of developing green bond
projects to gain investment returns, continue to develop
its financial leasing business, firmly focus on the field
of green environmental protection, and enhance its
corporate reputation. In response to energy transition, the
Group will also continue to carry out photovoltaic power
generation projects and replace energy-saving lighting in
various business segments to improve energy efficiency
and reduce operating costs.

In addition, the Stock Exchange also requires listed
companies to strengthen climate-related disclosures in
their ESG reports, which may increase related compliance
costs. Failure to meet climate change compliance
requirements may expose the Group to the risk of claims
and litigation, which may result in a possible loss of
corporate reputation. The Group will regularly monitor
existing and emerging climate-related trends, policies and
regulations to avoid reputation risk due to slow response.
The Group will continue to evaluate the effectiveness of
the Group’s actions on climate change and enhance its
ability to address climate-related issues.
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B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

The Group has formulated policies including the
Corporate Governance and Staff Code (b EARET
<FHJY), the Administrative Measures for Recruitment and
Employment ((REEE25% B EIRHE)), the Administrative
Measures for Staff Onboarding, Resignation and
Redesignation” (ET ABEBEEHESIEW L)) to
regulate employment-related issues to ensure that all
terms and procedures for formulation and release comply
with relevant regulatory requirements. The Group has also
established a labour union for its employees and issued
the Employee Handbook to provide employees with clear
guidance on employment issues, respect and safeguard
the legitimate rights and interests of each employee, and
facilitate bilateral communication. We are also committed
to improving our employment system to attract, cultivate
and retain employees while adhering to a people-oriented
governance approach.

The Group has complied with all laws and regulations
related to remuneration and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare, including but not limited to the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FREAREMESESH EEIE)) and the Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FZE A RHEME
845 EE)) in the PRC, the Employment Ordinance in
Hong Kong, etc.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 905
full-time employees and had no part-time employees,
within the reporting scope. The breakdown is as follows:

HE_ZE-_—4F+"H=+—
H> AEERERESHEANSHEE5
LeWEE BAMREEES M
HE 7M.

Number of
employees Percentage
BE A BoLE

By gender VR IEIR
Male S 415 46%
Female pegc 490 54%
By age group LB AR 2 5
< 30 <30 135 15%
30-50 30-50 615 68%
> 50 >50 155 17%
By geographical region LUt & & 3
The PRC ] P 898 99%
Hong Kong 58 7 1%
Recruitment, Remuneration, Promotion and B Frhl - EF R FEIE

Dismissal

The Group is committed to recruiting outstanding talents
by offering competitive salaries and benefits as well as
promotion opportunities. We adhere to the principle of
fairness, impartiality and openness in equal employment,
recruit sufficient talent reserves for all business segments
of the Group and enhance business competitiveness. The
Group calculates salaries for employees based on their
attendance, overtime, allowances, position levels, etc.,
and pay salaries on time every month. Depending on the
performance assessment for employees, the Group also
adjusts their remuneration, pays performance-based bonus
and provides promotion opportunities. The Group reviews
employees’ remuneration packages on a regular basis
to ensure that they receive the rewards they deserve. In
addition, the Group complies with employment-related laws
and regulations. If an employee needs to be dismissed, we
will give a notice periods and reasonable compensation to
the dismissed employee in accordance with the relevant
procedures and ensure smooth job handover.
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During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate®
of the Group was approximately 9%, with breakdown as

RBRERB AEBNEERK
EEZ 9% » HBI W :

follows:
Employee
turnover Rate®
EERiEd e
By gender LUt R & 53
Male B 7%
Female pegs 11%
By age group Ve =R b
<30 <30 9%
30-50 30-50 8%
> 50 >50 13%
By geographical region LUt & & 93
The PRC R A 9%
Hong Kong 5% 13%
Notes: (=

8. Total employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the
total number of employees leaving employment during the
Reporting Period by the average number of employees at
the beginning and the end of the Reporting Period.

9. The employee turnover rate for each category is calculated
by dividing the number of employees leaving employment
in the category during the Reporting Period by the average
number of employees in the category at the beginning and
the end of the Reporting Period.
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Other Benefits and Welfare

In addition to basic remuneration and bonus, the
Group also provides thoughtful and comprehensive
employee benefits. The Group effectively safeguards the
legitimate rights and interests of workers in accordance
with the requirements of laws and regulations, and
clearly regulates the management of working hours,
attendance and rest. Employees are entitled to paid
annual leave, personal leave, sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave, bereavement leave, etc. The Group
also provides employees with mandatory provident
fund, pension, medical insurance, accident insurance,
education allowance and other benefits. The Group make
contributions to the “five insurances and one housing
fund” for employees in the PRC according to law, namely
retirement insurance, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing provident fund, to ensure that
employees enjoy social insurance benefits. In order to
enhance employees’ sense of belonging to the Group,
the Group organizes various activities for employees every
year, including ball games and outdoor activities. The
Group has also established an employee incentive scheme
to motivate employees and reward employees who have
made outstanding contributions to the Group.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination

The Group recognizes the value of a diverse and
professional workforce and is committed to creating and
maintaining an inclusive and collaborative workplace
culture where everyone can develop their strengths. The
Group is committed to providing equal opportunities for
all employees in all aspects of employment, and to ensure
that employees are free from discrimination or physical
and verbal harassment in the recruitment process and
working environment due to their social status such as
ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual
orientation, political affiliation, marital status, etc. To
ensure fair and equal protection for all employees, the
Group does not tolerate any form of workplace sexual
harassment or bullying.
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Health and Safety

The Group is committed to fulfilling its responsibility for
work safety and establishing a long-term mechanism for
work safety to prevent and reduce work-related accidents
and protect the life and property safety of its employees.
We strictly abide by the relevant laws and regulations
such as the Safety Production Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FREAREMEZZEEE)), the
Interim Provisions on the Investigation and Control of
Safety Accidents of the People’s Republic of China (&
HEESHEBHEREEITHRE)) and the Law of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases ({FFZE AR EFMEBZEMKFEE)) in the PRC,
and the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in
Hong Kong. Over the past three years (including the
Reporting Period), the Group has not recorded any major
safety incidents and work-related fatalities. During the
Reporting Period, the Group also did not record any
working days lost due to work-related injuries. The Group
also did not identify any material violation of relevant local
laws and regulations in respect of health and safety.
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Occupational Health and Safety

For the civil explosives business involving high-risk
production, the Group has formulated the Safety
Production Management System ((ZZ24%EEEH|
E)) and the Administrative Measures for Work Safety
Accident Emergency Response Plan ((AEZ 2 E
FEZFEZEIEYIE)) in accordance with the aforesaid
laws and regulations, which are used to regulate various
requirements for work safety and emergency rescue of
safety-related accidents, so that emergency rescue are
implemented in a prompt, effective and orderly manner
after an accident occurs. The general management
department of the Group is responsible for the daily
management of production, and has established a work
safety leading group to supervise the daily management
of work safety and govern the Group’s work safety
inspection and rectification of potential accident hazards.
We will also invite professional third-party consultants
to conduct inspections on safety and fire protection
issues, and timely rectify, follow up and supervise hidden
hazards. The office of safety committee supervises,
inspects and assesses the implementation of the
Group’s work safety management system, and collects,
summarizes and archives the safety production inspection
data. The Group has also set up a preparation team to
conduct a comprehensive analysis of the risk factors
faced by the Group, determine the type of accidents
and degree of harm that may occur, and formulate
corresponding preventive and emergency measures
according to the source of danger and the degree of
harm caused by the accident.
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In order to enhance employees’ safety awareness,
the Group holds fire evacuation drills and organizes
emergency drills for fires, explosions, floods and
production accidents in a regular manner to enhance
employees’ ability to cope with disasters. The Group
has also formulated the Safety Education and Training
System (Z2HBFEIHIE)) and holds regular work
safety meetings. By educating employees with safety
technical knowledge and management knowledge and
analyzing accident cases, we enable employees to
master theoretical knowledge of safety and improve their
practical safety operation ability. We also employ various
channels including publicity posters, slogans, educational
videos and organizing safety knowledge contests and
safe operation skill competitions to improve employees
safety awareness and implement our work safety policy.
The Group’s hotel business also regularly provides
professional health checks for employees to prevent
occupational diseases and protect the health and safety
of employees.
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Response Measures for COVID-19 Pandemic

In response to COVID-19 outbreaks, the Group has
formulated the Emergency Work Plan for Pneumonia
Infected by Novel Coronavirus ({7 E 5 ik 7 &5 B 22 B9 B
KL EMBAIESZ)) in accordance with the notice of
the General Office of the National Health Commission
on the Diagnosis and Prevention and Control Plan for
the Pneumonia Infected by Novel Coronavirus (&t
BERAESRRENMRZEMPBESZED). We have
established an pandemic prevention and control leading
group to strictly implement various pandemic prevention
and control measures, which effectively improved the
pandemic prevention and control capabilities of each
business segment. The Group regularly disinfects its
business premises; requires employees to wear masks in
the office area; recommends employees to be vaccinated
against COVID-19; requires personnel entering and
exiting our premises to take temperature measurements
and check health codes; and provide adequate anti-
pandemic items and equipment. During the peak period
of the pandemic, the Group had implemented work-from-
home arrangements and required employees to submit
test reports. We will also organize publicity training on
pandemic prevention and control knowledge to remind
employees to pay attention to personal hygiene and
social distancing so as to ensure employees’ health and
safe conditions and control the risk of the pandemic.
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Training and Skills Development

The Group invests sufficient resources in staff
training and development, and strives to enhance the
competitiveness, professionalism and ethical standards
of its staff. All new employees must participate in the
training on industry knowledge, health and safety
and work skills. In addition, we continuously conduct
professional knowledge and skills training for employees
under the guidance of the Annual Employee Training
Outline ((FEBTHEIIAA)) each year to develop
employees’ good professionalism and enable them to
stay competitive in order to fulfil their responsibilities,
striving to achieve the highest standards of service.

Training Programs

The Group’s training program are designed mainly to
meet the different needs of employees at all levels and
types, and enhance employees’ professional quality,
professional knowledge and competence. The Group will
arrange training plans for each department according
to business needs. For example, in terms of human
resources, our training programs cover courses such as
special training on personnel selection and recruitment,
human resources forums and recruitment skills; in terms
of finance, our training programs cover courses related
to budget management, budget control and application
of tax planning strategies, with a view to strengthening
employees’ knowledge and skills in relevant business
areas. We also strongly encourage the management
to participate in training programs relating to business
and public speaking, so as to continuously improve the
ability of the Group’s management to deliver speeches
in external communication. Meanwhile, they are also
encouraged to participate in training programs on
investment study, financial management, etc. to help
them cope with challenges at work.
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of the

Group’s total employees'™ trained was approximately

95%, and the average training hours completed per

employee'' was approximately 11.65 hours. The

breakdown of the percentage of employees trained and

the average training hours completed per employee by

gender and employee category is as follows:

RSB ~&EBRZIEER
BN %R95% BHEE T
PR 2 AN Y F B B A9 2 11.657)N
oMt REEEENHE
JESEBENLERERLEETME
AIEy R BBRMW T

Percentage of

trained Average

employees™ training hours'™

RiIEEEDEE?  FIORINEH

By gender LAt R & 53

Male B

Female Z%

By employee category LESENE 2
Senior management SREIEE

Mid-level management AR EIEE

General staff ZEET

Notes:

10. The percentage of total employees trained is calculated by

11.

12.

13.

dividing the total number of employees trained during the
Reporting Period by the total number of employees as at
the end of the Reporting Period.

The average training hours completed per employee is
calculated by dividing the total number of training hours
during the Reporting Period by the total number of
employees at the end of the Reporting Period.

The percentage of employees trained for each category
is calculated by dividing the number of employees trained
for that category during the Reporting Period by the total
number of employees trained during the Reporting Period.

The average training hours completed by each category of
employees is calculated by dividing the total training hours
of that category of employees during the Reporting Period
by the number of employees in that category at the end of
the Reporting Period.
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the Labour and Social
Security Inspection Regulation ({5 B1{R & B2 & H)) and
the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour ({Z£ 1F 18
BI#HE)) in the PRC and the Employment Ordinance
in Hong Kong to prevent any employment of child labour
and forced labour. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not identify any major violations of laws and
regulations in respect of prevention of child labour and
forced labour, and has successfully passed the annual
audit of the labour inspection by government departments
over the years.

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group has detailed all recruitment procedures and
requirements in the Corporate Governance and Staff
Code ({bXEEBKRETISFA)) and the Administrative
Measures for Recruitment and Employment ({1252 E2%
FAEEHE)). New employees are required to provide
the personal information required in the Employment
Notice ((BE2AERNE)) during their onboarding process,
which will be strictly reviewed by recruiters, including ID
cards, household registration, etc. In addition, the Group
has established internal personnel file management
procedures to conduct regular review and inspection
to prevent any employment of child labour. When any
irregularities are identified, the Group will immediately
carry out investigations and impose punishment.
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B5.

In addition, employees of the Group work overtime on
a voluntary basis. Relevant working hours and overtime
regulations have also been specified in the Corporate
Governance and Staff Code (& A KRETFA)) and
the Employee Handbook in order to avoid violations of
labour standards and effectively safeguard the rights and
interests of employees. The Group prohibits any form of
forced labour, slavery and labour trafficking. If any form
of forced labour is identified, the Group will immediately
carry out investigations and stop the employment of
forced labour. If necessary, the Group will further improve
the labour mechanism for violations.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a series of strict and
standardized supply chain management procedures
with reference to relevant laws and regulations such as
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Tenders
and Bids ((PZEARHMBEBRKIEEL)), and has
implemented the following practices regarding supplier
engagement for all suppliers. During the Reporting
Period, the Group had a total of 273 suppliers, all of
which were located in the PRC.
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Procurement Mechanism

Each business segment of the Group is required to
adopt strict procurement control measures to ensure
that the suppliers it employs meet the standards in
terms of quality and safety, environmental protection,
labour practices and business ethics. Specifically, the
bidding procedures for relevant engineering construction
projects shall be implemented in accordance with the
management and control requirements specified in the
Guidelines for Integrity Risk Prevention and Control ({B&
BRI ZETEF551)). The Group is required to conduct
a detailed review of the technical and qualification
documents of the relevant suppliers to ensure the
quality safety and compliance of the suppliers. The
hotel business has also formulated the Procurement
Department Management Regulations ({#REEEEEIE
R )) to standardize the procurement process and
standards. The Group’s food suppliers are required to
provide the inspection and quarantine certificate issued
by the government’s health and pandemic prevention
authorities, and the materials and supplies provided by
other suppliers shall also obtain national quality and
safety certification. Our big data business is also required
to select suitable suppliers based on their security level
and reliability to ensure the security and quality of data
systems.

The Group is committed to supporting the local economy
by prioritizing the procurement from local suppliers
to reduce its carbon footprint during transportation.
The Group also gives priority to suppliers with
environmental certifications or those who can provide
environmentally friendly products and services during
the selection process. In addition, the Group monitor the
procurement activities that employees are responsible
for in accordance with the Guidelines for Integrity Risk
Prevention and Control ((B&EZERBHIETEFE3])), and
strictly prohibit suppliers from obtaining procurement
contracts or cooperative relationships through any form
of benefit transfer or gift. If any serious violation of laws
and regulations is identified, the Group will terminate
contract with such supplier. The Group will monitor
the procurement mechanism regularly to ensure its
effectiveness.
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B6.

Supply Chain Environmental and Social Risk
Management

To manage potential environmental and social risks in the
supply chain and ensure the overall quality of suppliers,
we continuously monitor and assess whether suppliers
can meet the contract and specification requirements.
Such assessment includes qualification certification
review, project site inspection, notification inspection,
rectification review, etc. The Group puts in place a strict
receipt inspection system to ensure the quality and
safety of all raw materials, supplies and services we
purchase. We establish supplier credit files according to
the assessment results and provide rectification opinions
and requirements to suppliers as needed, thus striving to
establish a good working relationship with suppliers and
minimize potential environmental and social risks in the
supply chain.

Product Responsibility

The Group believes that the quality of products and
services is a key factor for an enterprise to maintain its
core competence. In order to effectively improve the
quality of products and services and safeguard the rights
and interests of customers, we have formulated and
implemented standardized management procedures for
the quality of products and services, and actively maintain
communication with customers to understand and meet
customers’ needs and expectations, and to promote the
future development of the Group.
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We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests ((PEARHMBEHEEZRDREL)),
the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARLMBEESXE)), the Interim Measures for
the Administration of Internet Advertisement (¢E B#48 &=
EBEEITHE)) and the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China (FEARXENEERE S
7£)in the PRC, Trade Descriptions Ordinance in Hong
Kong and other relevant consumer protection laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not identify any material violation of laws and regulations
in respect of product and service quality, nor did it have
any products that needed to be recalled for safety and
health reasons.

Quality Control

The Group’s civil explosives business has passed the ISO
9002 quality management system certification, as well as
GB/T 19001, GB/T 24001 and GB/T 28001 management
system certification in respect of quality, environment,
occupational health and safety, and has prepared a series
of documentation in respect of quality control procedures
for production. The Group is committed to maintaining
quality control of its production processes and finished
products, identifying non-conforming products and any
non-compliance with quality and safety requirements,
in order to eliminate potential risks and ensure product
quality and safety. In addition, the Group also strictly
manages the quality of suppliers of food, medicine and
supplies, requires suppliers to obtain relevant qualification
certificates and provide certification documents to ensure
that the products they provide meet the Group’s quality
and safety requirements and standards.
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In order to maintain high service quality, all business
segments of the Group have implemented quality
management measures to track customer needs
so as to improve customer satisfaction. The Group
arranges industry knowledge and job skills training for
newly recruited employees, and sets out employee
responsibilities, conduct requirements and management
procedures relating to customer communication in
the Employee Handbook. For the hotel business, the
Group has also formulated the Environmental Quality
Management System ((IRIZE=EIEAE R )), which sets
out the written procedures of each department regarding
the operation of guest rooms, catering and front desk
services, so as to maintain the hygiene of guest rooms
and ensure the provision of professional services. In order
to continuously improve its service quality, the Group
has also established a complaint handling mechanism.
If any complaints are received, the Group is required
to conduct detailed investigations, actively supervise
the complaint handling process, and coordinate and
communicate with all parties involved in a timely manner.
We endeavour to understand the facts of each customer
complaint and review and improve our procedures where
necessary. If there is a loss to the customer, such loss
will be fully compensated in a reasonable manner. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any
major complaints about products and services, and
customer satisfaction has reached its expected target.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s wellness elderly
care business has been certified by the Nanhai District
Office of the Leading Group for the Standardization
of Basic Public Service Standardization for the Elderly
(EeBEBEEAAHRBRECEEAM T (FE
/N4 AZE)as the “National Basic Public Service
Standardization Pilot Project for the Elderly in Nanhai —
Benchmark Demonstration Unit”. The Group will continue
to improve service quality to meet customers’ needs and
expectations.
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Customer Privacy Protection

The Group has established a stringent privacy protection
policy in the Corporate Governance and Staff Code ({1t
¥EABKEETISE])) and the Employee Handbook,
and strives to protect the personal data and information
security of all stakeholders in accordance with
internationally recognized standards. In order to protect
the personal data and information of our customers
and business partners, the Group has implemented
high security and confidentiality standards in the
collection, processing, use, disclosure and daily record
management. Employees are required to undertake to
keep all personal information confidential and not disclose
the same to third parties without authorization.

In terms of industrial Internet data security, the Group’s
big data business has passed 1ISO27000 information
security management system certification and third-party
testing and auditing, which meet the required security
level of protection. During the Reporting Period, the
public service platform of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area (Nanhai) Intelligent Security
Industrial Park of the Group’s big data business was
successfully selected into the Industrial Internet Pilot
Demonstration Project List for 2021 ({2021 T ¥ H
/R B EIE B & 8) by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic
of China. The second-level node of Industrial Internet
Identification Resolution (Foshan) (T2 B 5 48412 55 iR 4
(§fLL)) constructed and operated by the Group was
also granted the first “Internet Domain Name Registration
Service Agency” license for the second-level node
industrial Internet identification resolution in the PRC by
the Guangdong Communications Administration. Taking
the pilot demonstration as an opportunity, the Group’s big
data business will continue to maintain data security and
the high level of service to promote the comprehensive
development of industrial Internet security and innovative
applications of the industrial Internet.
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Intellectual Property Rights

We believe that intellectual property is critical to our
success. We rely primarily on the laws and regulations
relating to trademark and trade secret as well as the
contractual commitments made by our employees
and third parties in respect of confidentiality and non-
competition to protect our intellectual property. As of
31 December 2021, the Group’s big data business
registered a total of 4 patents, 13 software copyrights,
3 standards and 1 thesis. During the Reporting Period,
we were not aware that the Group had infringed any
intellectual property rights of any third party or that any
third party had infringed any intellectual property rights of
the Group which could materially and adversely affect our
business operations, nor were we aware of any disputes
concerning intellectual property rights with third parties.
The Group will continue to monitor to ensure that its
intellectual property rights are not infringed.

Advertising and Labelling

The Group is only engaged in limited advertising
campaigns and therefore does not involve significant
advertising-related risks. Nonetheless, for the marketing
of products and services, we strictly regulate and inspect
the promotion of all products and services to ensure that
relevant work follows applicable laws and regulations
relating to promotion and labelling. Such marketing
and promotion shall accurately reflect the quality and
effectiveness of the Group’s products and services.
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Anti-corruption

The Group believes that an integrity corporate culture is
the key to our continued success. Therefore, we attach
great importance to our anti-corruption efforts and
system construction, and resolutely put an end to any
corrupt behaviour. The Group strictly abides by applicable
laws and regulations including the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((FEARILMBE AT E))
and the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China in the PRC as well as the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not identify any material violations
of laws and regulations on the prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, nor did it have any
concluded cases of corruption litigation.

Combating Corruption and Upholding Integrity

The Group adopts a “zero-tolerance” attitude towards
any bribery, fraud and money laundering. The Group
stipulates relevant prevention and control measures and
mechanisms in the Guidelines for Integrity Risk Prevention
and Control ((EEZREMHETIEIESID), and has
established the Leading Group for Prevention of Integrity
Risk to focus on all-round integrity risk investigation and
control efforts in its key areas, key links and important
positions such as investment decision-making, financial
management, bidding, equipment procurement,
personnel selection and employment, engineering
construction, etc., striving to create an integrity working
environment and build an integrity, open and transparent
corporate culture.
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The Group conducts extensive and in-depth promotion
and education through, amongst others, theoretical
seminars and cultural activities, stays committed to
creating a good atmosphere of “advocating integrity
and avoiding corruption” within the enterprise, and
strengthens employees’ ideological and moral standards
and awareness of integrity. During the Reporting Period,
the directors and employees of the Group received
approximately 507 and 3,120 hours of anti-corruption
training, respectively. The training content covers
education on party constitution, party rules and discipline,
education on integrity system and terms, watching anti-
corruption feature programs, etc., aiming at familiarizing
them with their corresponding roles and responsibilities in
anti-corruption and business ethics.

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group attaches great importance to the integrity
and honesty of its employees. The Group has formulated
the Management System for the Prevention, Complaint
and Reporting of Integrity Risk ({B&2 & E 2 Farh#%
SRBREEHE)) to encourage employees to report
any corruption or fraud incidents. The Group has set up,
amongst others, whistle-blowing hotlines, whistle-blowing
mailboxes and whistle-blowing emails, and designated
personnel are responsible for regular preliminary review
and verification of whistle-blowing content, collection of
relevant materials, and the final decision as to whether to
file a case and report the same to the leading group. The
Group reviews the effectiveness of this whistle-blowing
mechanism on a regular basis to prevent any corruption
within the Group and prevent the improper infringement
of interests, so as to ensure the sound and stable
development of the Group.
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B8. Community Investment

While pursuing business development, the Group is
also committed to serving the community. We have
formulated relevant internal guidelines to arrange for the
Group’s employees to participate in various activities
such as charitable public welfare and social services,
and encourage and support our employees to devote
themselves to volunteering services in their spare time.
We hope that our employees can contribute to the
community in person by participating in community
activities, so as to enhance employees’ caring awareness,
cultivate employees’ sense of social responsibility and
contribute to building a better community.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Adhering to the spirit of good corporate citizenship, the
Group actively participates in various poverty alleviation
fund-raising, volunteering and community activities,
aiming at promoting social harmony. During the Reporting
Period, the Group participated in the following community
activities:

° Fund-raising exercises for poverty alleviation:
The Group has actively responded to the “Poverty
Alleviation Day” and “Nanhai Charity Month” and
other charitable fund-raising exercises organized
by the Charity Association of Nanhai District,
Foshan City, with a total donation of approximately
RMB12,749.

° Anti-pandemic volunteering service: The Group
has established the “China Investments Volunteering
Service Team” to provide approximately 200 hours
of anti-pandemic support in Nanhai District to help
the PRC fight the pandemic.
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° Elderly care activities: As for its wellness elderly
care business, the Group is also committed to
caring for the elderly in the communities where
it operates. In addition to organising condolence
activities for the disabled during festivals, it also
regularly provides medical and support services
such as free clinics, free hairdressing, and free
health checks for the elderly over the age of 60 in
the district.
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Emissions, GHG Emissions
B —EREENRER
FEBE

Emissions — Waste
Management

R - BERERYEE



Aspect, General

Disclosure and Key

BUS ~ tE TR

Performance Indicators Description

BE-—RiRER
PR AARIEIR

Hi

[

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Section/Statement

.08 L

Aspect A2: Use of
Resources
[BEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

—MRINE
KPI A2.1

B SR AR RS 1RA2. 1

KPI A2.2

BRSNS 1RA2.2
KPI A2.3

BB IE1RA2.3

KPI A2.4

BB AE M IEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5

B SR AR NS 1RA2.5

Policies on the efficient use the resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
BERERER (B1EER  KREMERME) K-
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
REVEONEREK SEEER WE - RIUH) REE
UFEFERESE) RBE MUSESB A BEKMN
5TH) °

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

HEKEREBE MUSESSEN -SEREFE) °
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

PR E] L AR R A M i B AR R A i B S £ B AR P ERER
B BR o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

i Sk BUE A 7K BT A ] i 8 > LUK PrsT 32 AV A 7K 3
wmERERREDEEE RN L R

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
HR@PTRAEEMENGE (UEE) k (NER) 84 &
ERAT =

Use of Resources

BREM
Use of Resources — Energy
Management

BERERA-ERERE

Use of Resources — Water
Management
BRERA-KREIE

Use of Resources — Energy
Management
BREA-EREE

Use of Resources — Water
Management

BERERA-—KRERE

Use of Resources — Use of
Packaging Materials

BERERA-SEME
£ A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect, General
Disclosure and Key

Performance Indicators Description

BE-—RiRER
PR AARIEIR

Hi

[t

Section/Statement

.08 L

Aspect A3: The
Environment and
Natural Resources
[EEAS :
RIERRAER

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI A3.1

B S AR RS 1RAS. A

Aspect A4: Climate
Change

[EBHEA4 : RIFEE
General Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI A4.1

B SR AR RS 1RA4L.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

=B EMHIRRERRABERNEAZEREHNERE
BRI EMNTH -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

BB RAEEHETAEEZENERREERS
B REHTH-

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

A REHERERAEEHBITAELEZENEARRIEE
FEEMBR

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

BB RO EEHETAEEXENERRGHERE
B REHTH -
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The Environment and
Natural Resources

RIERRAER

The Environment and
Natural Resources

— Corporate Green
Development,
Strengthened
Environmental Awareness
RIBERRAER— B EL
BEE -MRIRFE=2H

Climate Change

TR

Climate Change — Physical
Risk, Transition Risk

FiREL—EEAR-
BE AR



BUS ~ tE TR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect, General
Disclosure and Key

Performance Indicators Description Section/Statement
fEm - —fRIRE R

R SR AR RIS 1R it Y- L

Aspect B1:

Employment

[E@EB1 : B

General Disclosure Information on: Employment

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

— MR R BRAFNREE - BREREA  TIERE R FTEH &
CEZb s RERUREMGEREF R
(@ HER; R
(b) EBETHETABEARENEREERRM
HE Ko
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, Employment
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.
RA B M I518B1.1 BRI BERE 2 BERE)  FRERNKMER N ERE
BEEME -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment — Recruitment,
geographical region. Remuneration, Promotion
and Dismissal
RSB MIEIEB1.2 MR FRAN RMER DHNEEMKLEER EfE—1BE S A&
R e
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect, General
Disclosure and Key
Performance Indicators
BmE-—fRIREXR

R SR AR RIS 1R

Description

Hi

[t

Section/Statement

.08 L

Aspect B2: Health and
Safety
[EEB2: BREZE

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI B2.1

PR SR A8 3 15 1R B2.1
KPI B2.2
PR AA 15 1RB2.2
KPI B2.3

RISRAE W F51EB2.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

ERRHERE2THFREMREREEZRBEEREN

(a) HBE; &
(b) BTHBETABEAZENHEREZRRN
BER o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each
of the past three years including the reporting year.
BE=F (OREERFE SFRITHNABKIEE-
Lost days due to work injury.

RIBIBLRTIERH-

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

PR ERREE L2 URBERRITRER
F3k e
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Health and Safety

Health and Safety

REHRZS

Health and Safety
REEZD

Health and Safety —
Occupational Health and
Safety, Response Measures
for COVID-19 Pandemic
REHZ s -2 EREE
Z2 HMAERRERIERE
IR



Aspect, General
Disclosure and Key

BUS ~ tE TR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Performance Indicators Description

BE-—RiRER
PR AARIEIR

Hi

[t

Section/Statement

.08 L

Aspect B3:
Development and
Training
[EmEB3 : #EKIZN
General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI B3.1

A 92 48 S A5 1R B3.1
KPI B3.2

B 1A XI5 18B3.2
Aspect B4: Labour
Standards

[EmEB4 : & T %8|

General Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI B4.1

R SR 4B A5 1RB4. 1

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRIEAREEEIT LB B M B8 K 5% AE B BUR o it ig
SIEE o

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management and mid-level
management).

BN REERER SR EEE - PREERE) 2I9NZ
dfEEB D -

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

BB REERRE D BREETRRIINFIHRH-

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BRI LEE TSR %I%5TIH :

@ HBE;k&

(b) BEBTFTHETABEAXZEZNERMEERRM

&Kk o

Description of measures to review employment practices to

avoid child and forced labour.

MR BB A0S LU R E T fesrfls T o
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Development and Training

SRR

Development and Training

— Training Programs

LR R R —1H I RE

Development and Training

— Training Programs

BRREI-HIIRE

Labour Standards

& T %8

Labour Standards —

Prohibition of Child Labour

and Forced Labour

FHITEA-HILEETRE

Hlg5 T
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect, General
Disclosure and Key

Performance Indicators Description

BE-—RiRER

Section/Statement

R SR AR RIS 1R it Y- L
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Labour Standards —

BISEAERIE1RB4.2

Aspect B5: Supply
Chain Management
[EEBS5 : e EIE
General Disclosure
— MR R

KPI B5.1

A SR 4B 15 1RB5. 1
KPI B5.2

RSB I51EB5.2

KPI B5.3

RSB AE 518853

KPI B5.4

RSB AE W F518B5.4

106

discovered.

HIME IR ERB R R HERA RIS P sREN R 2 BR o

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

EIEMHEENIRE Rt REEBER -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

Zite g DN HERHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
HAERERHERNES  mERITHREGNMEERS
B URBRRITRER G %

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B RAANEERSERNNIRE RS REINEG
URBEAAITRERG %

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Bt ERERBERIRESBRRERRRBHER U
RIABATRERTT A
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Prohibition of Child Labour
and Forced Labour
HITEA-[HLEET R
g5 T

Supply chain Management

HERERE
Supply chain Management
R e
Supply Chain Management
— Procurement Mechanism

Mg EIE —REEH G

Supply Chain Management
— Supply Chain
Environmental and Social
Risk Management
HEREE —HERIRIE
Mt g EERERE

Supply Chain Management
— Supply Chain
Environmental and Social
Risk Management
HEREE —HERIRIE
Mt g EERERE



Aspect, General

Disclosure and Key

BUS ~ tE TR

Performance Indicators Description

BE-—RiRER
PR AARIEIR

ri-

[

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Section/Statement

.08 L

Aspect B6: Product

Responsibility
[E@EB6 : EmET

General Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI B6.1

R 248 X35 12B6.1

KPI B6.2

[BR 5 45 30 15 1R B6.2
KPI B6.3

R SR 4E 30 15 1RB6.3
KPI B6.4

SR AE 30 15 1RB6.4
KPI B6.5

B S 4R M 51%B6.5

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

ERFFRHERARSNEREEZ2 BE EHEELES
HURBHFER
(a) HHE; &

(b) ETHETABEAXRENHEREERRM
HE#} o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
BEFREXERAHFELLERREEAMEBELWNS
ot

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.
BERANERKRBHEFEE UREE -
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

B R RIE R B AR AR IER -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

B ST iBE KEmEINRER -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored

HHCHEEESRMRE R BB U R BERRITRERS
Eo

Product Responsibility

mt
So
il
=

Product Responsibility —
Quality Control
mET-E28E

Product Responsibility —
Quality Control
EmET-—EE281E
Product Responsibility —
Intellectual Property Rights
EmaE—MBEER
Product Responsibility —
Quality Control
EmET-—E281E
Product Responsibility

— Customer Privacy
Protection
EmBEE—FRMERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect, General

Disclosure and Key

Performance Indicators Description

BE-—RiRER
PR AARIEIR

Hi

[t

Section/Statement

.08 L

Aspect B7: Anti-
corruption
BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI B7.1

B SR 45 30 15 1R B7 A
KPI B7.2
R SR A SN 15 1RB7.2

KPI B7.3

RSB AE 518873

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAP LEFRRE ~ $13 ~ IREF Rt B ERAY ¢

(@ R K

(b)) BFHIEITABEARZEMERERRAESL

&K o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt

practices brought against the issuer or its employees

during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

RERAANZETANEHESERLETLEBEENE SRR
HHEE KT SR

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
WP BB R BB T > U REARITRER G £
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.

HitmESEKE TRHENRESHE-
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Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption

k&5

Anti-corruption — Whistle-

blowing Mechanism
k&5 — BB
Anti-corruption —

Combating Corruption and

Upholding Integrity
R&5-RIBER



Aspect, General
Disclosure and Key

BUS ~ tE TR

Performance Indicators Description

BE-—RiRER
PR AARIEIR

Hi

[t

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Section/Statement

.08 L

Aspect B8: Community
Investment
[EHEB8 : 1 EKRE

General Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI B8.1

B SR AR X5 1%B8. 1

KPI B8.2

R SR A& W I518B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates

and to ensure its activities takes into consideration the
communities’ interests

B EZERBEREEMEHCREEMBMERAETE
FEERETEN AR

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
issues, labour needs, health, culture, sports).

EAEREE MBS - RESFE - FLIHER #R b~
Eg) o
Resources (e.g. money or time) contributed to the focus
areas

AEEITHRBEABHER R NER) o

Community Investment

HEKRE

Community Investment

— Corporate social
responsibility
HERE-TrEHEEE

Community Investment

— Corporate social
responsibility
HeRE-—rEHEEE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

1B A2 & 3t ER AT A TR &
HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Rooms 1501-8, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,

181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

T L BUE 18198 KA K 15481501-8%
Tel 5k (852) 3103 6980

Fax {5 (852) 3104 0170

E-mail % #}: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
FERXZERERAF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 126 to 301,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter: Impairment of finance lease receivables

FEEFE

HRBSFEAHMANEEHE T BaE
RGN BREPRESENEFE - HMAN
BEREREG OV BRRBELSERA
WERER  MAEHRIEEFREFLERT
Bo

MEEEE MEAERRRZEE

Refer to Notes 6 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the impairment of the Group’s finance lease receivables
as a key audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements, and the use of judgement by the management
in evaluating the recoverability of finance lease receivables.

The carrying amount of finance lease receivables is HK$3,230,407,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$1,787,039,000), which
contributed to approximately 39% to the total assets (2020: 29%).
In determining the impairment for finance lease receivables, the
management considers the credit worthiness, past collection history,
subsequent settlement of each finance lease customer, and also
relevant deposits received, value of leased assets pledged and of
the guarantees. As at 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) of HK$28,058,000
(2020: HK$17,452,000).

As set out in Notes 6 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, management measures ECL for finance lease receivable
by using a provision matrix. In determining the impairment of finance
lease receivable, the management considers internal credit rating
which reflect shared credit risk characteristics, historical past due
information and lessees’ creditworthiness for different groupings of
finance lease receivable as parameters of the ECL models.

B2 RARGMBRRM K26

HMER EEEIREEERRRZAE
RHARBEAFEDAREHGREMBREN
BEAMUKRERE R ERERE R
BJ i [ 14 5 5 3 ) i o

A B —F+"RA=Z+—H BERERE
WY BR E B A& B 13,230,407,0007t (Z
T -FF D BHE1,787,039,0007T) 0 ERLE
BABEELS9% (T BE 1 29%) o RNE
TREBEERIFZEER SEEGZE
BEREHERERANEE - BREWREE
BEGE UKBWEREZs HEEEKR
HEERER R_Z_—F+_A=+—
H> BSS£ERIEREEHEBEARE
28,058,0007T (ZZEZZ4F 1 A117,452,000
JT) ©

MiR M BIRRME6R26PME > BEEEF
BRI eI EREEERERZARES
BR - NECRELAERUAER  BERE
ZEABEET R ERBAIEMEEERE
WRAER S BEBREN RABAGEZH
= EREBRRRC
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANEANARERARENSTE

Our procedures in relation to the estimated impairment of finance
lease receivables included:

- understanding of the key controls over the granting of the
finance leases and management’s impairment assessment in
relation to the recoverability of finance lease receivables;

- confirming the finance lease receivables balances by sending
audit confirmations on a sample basis;

- evaluating the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology for finance lease receivables based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information;

- assessing the credit profiles of the related borrowers based
on the external evidence and factors to determine the internal
credit ratings;

- evaluating the reasonableness of management’s determination
of the estimated loss rates based on internal credit ratings;

- checking the mathematical calculation and basis of impairment
loss recognised under the ECL model; and

- evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of finance lease receivables in Notes 6 and 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Based on available evidence, we found the assumptions adopted
in relation to the impairment assessments to be supportable and
reasonable.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

Key Audit Matter: Impairment of trade receivables

REEE  BWIRRZREIE

Refer to Notes 6 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the impairment of the Group’s trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to plenty of different kinds of trade receivables
and the use of significant management judgement in evaluating the
allowance for ECL assessment of trade receivables under the ECL
model.

The Group had trade receivables of approximately HK$46,833,000
(2020: HK$23,831,000), including loss allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$762,000 (2020: HK$251,000). In determining
the impairment for trade receivables, the management performed
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the trade receivables
and the sufficiency of loss allowance for ECL based on information
including credit profile of different customers, aging of the trade
receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, expected timing and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and ongoing business relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the ECL for the allowance
for ECL assessment.

B2 RAREMBRRMN K28

HMER SEENBURRZRERRRR
BT FEHNE TR EWIRRELS
MR R SHE TR E BB BRI IE TR
REEEERREAEINEEEERAEXRA
Ef

EEEESEWIRNAB46,833,0007T
(ZEBE-E4F  B1523,831,0007T) 5 FEHA
EEBEBZHEREBELAHBI762,000T (=
T T EF L BHE251,0007T) o A TE FEURER
MZBER BEBREFAAEFHNEEAR
TFEWARR Z BREY BT A E R BES
BER AN REERERERSEN
HEEE A NFECXMASEENBREUR
MW EE R TEREERENREREN
TEMETEHTE - BEBRET R
FERPEEFREEAGRNENZAIRSEE
ko AR EERBREGIEHEER
538 o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANEANARERARENSTE

Qur procedures in relation to the estimated impairment of trade
receivables included:

- obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design and
implementation of management’s key internal controls relating
to credit control, debt collection and estimation of ECL;

- checking, on a sample basis, the age profile of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021 to the underlying financial
records and post year end settlements to bank receipts;

- inquiring of management for the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with supporting evidence,
such as understanding ongoing business relationship with the
customers based on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers;

- evaluating the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology of trade receivables and evaluating the
reasonableness of management’s assumptions, including both
historical and forward-looking information, used to determine
the ECL;

- checking the mathematical calculation and basis of impairment
loss recognised under the ECL model; and

- evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in Notes 6 and 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Based on available evidence, we found the assumptions adopted
in relation to the impairment assessments to be supportable and
reasonable.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

Key Audit Matter: Valuation of investment properties and
PRC hotel properties

MBEAEER  REVERPEBENEDN
{8

Refer to Notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the valuation of the Group’s investment properties
and PRC hotel properties are significant to our audit because
the determination of fair value of hotel properties and investment
properties is based on several key inputs that require significant
management judgments, assumptions, estimations and other inputs.

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
the investment properties and the PRC hotel properties are
HK$774,554,000 (2020: HK$350,058,000) and HK$110,000,000
(2020: HK$115,000,000) respectively as at 31 December 2021.

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

F2RGREMBERRNFI8K19.
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Our procedures in relation to the management’s valuation of
investment properties and PRC hotel properties included:

- assessing the valuation methodologies used by the external
valuer;

- assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions based on our knowledge of the business
and industry;

- evaluating the independent external valuer’'s competences,
capabilities and objectively; and

- considering the appropriateness of the resale values estimated
by the external valuer based on the recent transaction price in
the PRC and Hong Kong's property market.

Based on available evidence, we found management’s assumptions
in relation to the valuation are reasonable.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

Key Audit Matter: Revenue recognition

RS E St EIE | WD

Refer to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$520,846,000
(2020: HK$293,555,000), of which revenue from contracts with
customers recognised at a point in time amounted to approximately
HK$255,948,000 (2020 (Restated): HK$166,172,000) and revenue
from contracts with customers recognised over time amounted to
approximately HK$72,898,000 (2020 (Restated): HK$23,469,000),
arising on big data business, civil explosives business, financial
leasing, hotel operation, industrial parks and property development,
property investments and wellness elderly care business. The
Group adopted HKFRS 15 to consider the revenue recognition.
The Management required to make significant judgements and
estimations. The significance of the amount of revenue, the
diversification of the sources of revenue, and the extensive adoption of
HKFRS 15 made us identify revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition included:

- evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the existence,
accuracy and timing of revenue recognition;

- obtaining the ledgers and selecting samples to review
whether the management had made correct judgements
on identifying the contract, identifying single performance
obligation, determining the transaction price and other aspects.
Recalculating the accuracy of the progress of performance of
the contracts; and

- selecting samples of the contracts and inspecting the original
contracts, evaluating whether the management had made
reasonable estimates on transaction price (estimated total
revenues), obtaining evidence to confirm the degree of
completion of related service and comparing with the progress
of performance recorded in the Group’s ledger.

We found that the amount and the timing of the revenue recorded
were supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE »

Key Audit Matter: Accounting for interests in associates

FRENEE  MEARNEGZ G5t EIE

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s associates operate in the PRC. The Group’s share of
profit of associates for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
Group’s interests in associates at that date are HK$25,361,000
(2020: HK$67,897,000) and HK$556,026,000 (2020:
HK$569,674,000) respectively, which are significant in the context of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The financial information of associates is prepared in accordance
with the prevailing accounting standards in the PRC which may differ
in certain respects from HKFRSs.

Converting the financial information of these entities into HKFRSs
for the purpose of equity accounting involves management making
a number of manual adjustments some of which are complex in
nature.

We identified the accounting for interests in associates in the PRC as
a key audit matter because of the material impact that these entities
have on the consolidated financial statements and also because of
the complex nature of certain adjustments made by management
which we consider increases the inherent risk of error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANBANARERRENEE

Our procedures to assess the accuracy of the accounting for
interests in associates included:

- performing an audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the PRC based associate, Nanhai Changhai Power Company
Limited*, in accordance with the requirements of HKSAs;

- evaluating significant manual adjustments made in respect of
associates to convert their financial information into HKFRSs by
comparing the adjustments to underlying documentation or by
re-performing the calculations on which the adjustments were
based; and

- assessing whether the financial information of associates
after the adjustments made by management was prepared in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

We found management’s accounting for associates after the
adjustments are supportable and reasonable based on available
evidence.

*

For identification purpose only
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

Key Audit Matter: Impairment assessment of goodwill

RSB EE | BERENE

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 24 August 2020, the Group had completed acquisition of an
additional 2% equity interest in Guangdong Tiannuo Investments
Co., Limited (formerly known as “Guangdong Tiannuo GCivil
Explosives Co., Limited”)* (“Tiannuo”) in accordance with the terms
of acquisition agreement. Upon completion of the acquisition, the
shareholding of the Group in Tiannuo will be changed from 49% to
51% and the Group had control over Tiannuo.

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) of the subsidiary
acquired in the current year for impairment testing. Management is
required to assess at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any indicator that goodwill may be impaired.

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment on goodwill
included:

- Assessing management’s determination of the Group’s cash-
generating units based on our understanding of the nature of
the business and the economic environment in which the cash-
generating units operate.

- Based on our knowledge of the business and industry,
challenging the reasonableness of the underlying key
assumptions and data used in the cash flow forecasts
(including revenue growth rate, operating profit, and discount
rate used).

Based on our procedures described, we found the estimations
of management in relation to goodwill are supported by plausible
evidence.

*

For identification purpose only
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

Key Audit Matter: Valuation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

REESEE BARENAR
RMEENMLE

HmZE

Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has invested in certain financial assets at FVTPL with fair
value of HK$63,055,000 (2020: HK$77,524,000) as at 31 December
2021.

These investments were all measured at fair value using level 3
inputs which were not based on active market prices, nor based on
observable market data.

Management assessed and measured the fair value of FVTPL using
particular valuation techniques, with assistance from an external
appraisal firm. The valuation process was highly judgmental due
to its reliance on management’s assumptions such as discount
rate, volatility and probability weighting, liquidation and redemption
scenarios, etc.

The determination of the model adopted and key inputs required
management’s significant judgment or estimation. The prescribed
value of the FVTPL is significant to the financial statements. In view
of this we have identified this as a key audit matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANEANARERARENSTE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of financial assets at
FVTPL included:

- Understanding and evaluating the internal controls relating
to management’s model used, development of significant
assumptions and estimates, and major data inputs related to
the fair value measurement;

- Obtained the calculation of fair value estimation of financial
assets at FVTPL, evaluating the appropriateness of the model
used and testing the accuracy of the calculation;

- Evaluating the independent external appraisal firm’s
competence, capability and objectivity;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies and key
assumptions adopted by management including expected
revenue growth rates, expected profit margins, discounted
rates and volatility and reconciling the input data of expected
revenue growth rates and expected profit margins to
management’s forecast of future profits, strategic plans and
business data.

Based on available evidence we found management’s assumptions
in relation to the valuation are reasonable.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
(“Other information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing, the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibilities towards or
accept liabilities to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosure made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Fai Fiona

Practicing Certificate Number P0O4986
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_Z-_—F+_"_B=+—HILt Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—E—F —EIE2HF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B = BT T BT T
Continuing operations FERIRE 2 ¥
Revenue WA 7 520,846 293,555
Cost of sales and services H & S AR 75 A A (315,608) (137,763)
Gross profit EF] 205,238 155,792
Other operating income H &= WA 9 124,611 110,493
Selling and distribution costs HE RDHMES (9,278) (9,049)
Administrative expenses TEREZ (200,244) (148,689)
Share of profit of associates FE(Lh = A B &R 21 25,361 67,897
Increase in fair value of investment KEWMEZ A NEL
properties 18 16,679 49
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of financial st ABRZ SREBEZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss A& GeiZb) /&M 22 (16,295) 20,094
Impairment loss on property held for sale  FHEYEZ FHEE KL (1,900) (1,598)
Net loss on step acquisition D WEEZ FE K - (5,667)
Loss on the disposal of subsidiaries and HEWNB AT KRIA
an asset classified as held for sale FHEEEZIEX - (39,177)
Allowance for expected credit losses on HERERKFIEZ
finance lease receivables TERRE E k1R EE 26 (9,847) (14,589)
Impairment loss on other receivables HMEWRIEZ
PEAER=ES - (38,033)
Finance costs MEH 10 (107,065) (123,696)
Profit/(loss) before taxation pRIAIRF (B518) 27,260 (26,173)
Income tax expense i 11 (16,382) (39,333)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing BFEREZARFERF
operations / (E548) 10,878 (65,5086)
Discontinued operation BARIERE 7 #55
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued B#RIEAEE > 255>
operation NEERFA (BB 12 9 (530)
Profit/(loss) for the year TEERN (BB 13 10,887 (66,036)
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Consolidated Staterment of Profit or I oss and Other Comprehenswe Income

HoA 2 i e 2%

(E_EF_—F+"H=+—HI1E Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—E—fF =
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E BT BT
Other comprehensive income, Hth2mEmlka=s RifE
net of income tax
Items reclassified to profit or loss: EEH7HEERDZ
EHH :
Release of exchange reserve upon Ak
step acquisition from an associate NEVE—FENE
to a subsidiary NEZ DTS
ZERHEE - 5,688
Release of exchange reserve upon BHHEWBAS
disposal of subsidiaries and an K5 2R ﬁ’%ﬁ
asset classified as held for sale EZEREE - 21,231
Items that will not be reclassified to FEEMHEERRZ
profit or loss: EH:
Surplus on revaluation of hotel properties B E Y ¥ B4 R 111 4,894
Items that may be reclassified Ol gE BT FHEE 18
subsequently to profit or 10ss: EH
Exchange differences arising on MBS ETFEES
translation of foreign operations EEZINEEZE 66,828 110,877
Share of exchange differences of i —/NE
associates SN ZE 2R 21 18,284 33,654
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEHMEEIRE
net of income tax OBRFTER 85,223 176,344
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZ2EUW LB 96,110 110,308
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: F£EZEF] ~ (§18)
-
Owners of the Company KABHEB A (15,500) (83,871)
Non-controlling interests JEERE D 26,387 17,835
10,887 (66,036)
Total comprehensive income FEZEREEHEES -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBVEB A 42,322 39,191
Non-controlling interests IR T 53,788 71,117
96,110 110,308
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BHE_Z_—F+_"_H=+—HIt For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—E—F —EIE2HF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
B = BETT BT T
Loss per share SRES1E 17
From continuing and discontinued FERKERERIEKE
operations i
Basic =N (HK0.91 cents) (HK4.90 cents)
(B #£0.911lli) (B H#54.901)
Diluted s (HK0.91 cents) (HK4.90 cents)
(A& #0.911L) (B H54.9010)
From continuing operations FERE X
Basic HAK (HK0.91 cents) (HK4.87 cents)
(&#£0.911L) (GEE4.8710)
Diluted e (HK0.91 cents) (HK4.87 cents)
(#&#0.911L) (B Hs4.8710)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R_E_—F+_"_FB=+—H Asat 31 December 2021
2021 2020
B —EIZF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
iz BT BT T
Non-current assets ERBMEE
Investment properties K"REYE 18 774,554 350,058
Property, plant and equipment BB MR E 19 1,419,433 1,216,148
Goodwill (EES 20 136,530 132,151
Interests in associates REE AT 2w 21 556,026 569,674
Financial assets at fair value BAREFAEBGR
through profit or loss TRMEE 22 8,187 13,643
Finance lease receivables MEEEE W 26 2,453,338 1,348,274
Rental deposits HE®E 5,855 4,821
Right-of-use assets TREEE 23 1,016,208 1,014,500
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 33 7,014 -
Deductible value added tax FIRNBER 27 56,100 50,416
6,433,245 4,699,685
Current assets RENEE
Properties held for sale HEYE 24 4,600 6,500
Inventories 575 25 9,900 5,257
Financial assets at fair value BAnEFABRZ
through profit or loss TRAEE 22 54,868 63,881
Finance lease receivables MEEEEWR 26 777,069 438,765
Trade and other receivables JRE U B 7R R ELAth FE Uk
IE 28 143,764 66,585
Tax recoverable AU [EFR I8 - 967
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFRITIER 29 349,418 25,468
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEBY 29 526,837 798,263
1,866,456 1,405,686
Current liabilities REIBE
Trade and other payables FEATBR AR EL A
ANEQE] 30 175,787 94,576
Tax payables FEMIR & 21,893 28,988
Deferred income iR JE U8 2 36 - 312
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBE A 33 43,073 44,118
Deposits received from customers BEWEFEE 11,626 3,207
Lease liabilities HE&®E 23 52,708 50,675
Borrowings EE 31 1,610,078 1,250,142
1,915,165 1,472,018
Net current liabilities mEBAaERE (48,709) (66,332)
Total assets less current liabilities mEEARBEE 6,384,536 4,633,353
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

MN_E_—F+_"B=+—H Asat 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—E-—%F —EEF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E BT T BT T
Capital and reserves % 75 R ik 45
Share capital [N 34 171,233 171,233
Reserves T 1,018,056 973,164
Equity attributable to owners EATHEE AEG#ER
of the Company 1,189,289 1,144,397
Non-controlling interests JEYERG = 37 1,003,167 843,935
Total equity R 4R %R 2,192,456 1,988,332
Non-current liabilities EREFMEE
Borrowings (g 31 2,626,041 1,305,803
Convertible notes EIE:ayi = 32 132,644 122,565
Deferred income 3% 3 U8 2 36 214,154 81,960
Deferred tax liabilities RN IEE & 33 15,162 17,559
Deposits received from customers BEWEFREE 120,999 75,133
Lease liabilities HEaRA 23 1,083,080 1,042,001
4,192,080 2,645,021
6,384,536 4,633,353

The consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to 301 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

HE XIANGMING
a1 171 B
Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZEZ - F+ZH=+—HIHFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021
Attributable to owners of the Company
TAFRE ARGER
Hotel
property Convertible Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other revaluation Exchange note equity ~ Capital Retained controlling Total
capital premium"  reserve"  reserve"  reserve* reserve'  reserve’  reserve' earnings Total interests equity
BENE TRREE
Bd  RGEE AEAR EftHE EfGE ERRE BERiE E5RE REE @it EERERE ERNAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000
ARTn BETR ARTn B%Tn B¥Tn A¥Tn BETR ARTn BETR ARTn AETn  ERTR
THE GROUP HE[@
At 1 January 2021 e =R 171,233 725,199 163,374 8,927 55,364 (52,459) 56,616 - 16,143 1,144,397 843935 1,988,332
(Loss)/profit for the year ZKEJ*? (68 /&7 - - - - - - - - (15500) (155000 26,387 10,887
Other comprehensive (expense)/ EEEMZE B/
income for the year Wi
- Surplus on revaluation of hotel —EENEERRE
properties - - - - 11 - - - - 111 - 11
- Release of revaluation reserve —BEYEER
of hotel properties HEER - - - - (2,461) - - - 2,461 - - -
- Exchange differences arising -BREBNERRES
on tranglation of foreign INEEE
operations - - - - - 39,427 - - - 39,427 27,401 66,828
- Share of exchange difference of —EEBERR
associates (Note 21) SNEEE (HE21) - - - - - 18,284 - - - 18,284 - 18,284
Other comprehensive (expense)/ EEEMRE B /
income for the year W& - - - - (2,350) 57,111 - - 2,461 57,822 27,401 85,223
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EER2E B/
income for the year W 5 - - - 30 57 - - (13039 42322 53788 96,110
Capital Injection from non-controling ~ JEERERTE
interests - - - - - - - 2,570 - 2,570 129,095 131,665
Dividend paid to non- controlling HEERERSAZRE
interests - - - - - - - - - - (23,651)  (23,651)
Transfer to statutory reserve BREATAR - - 12587 - - - - - (12,587) - - -
At 31 December 2021 RIBEZ-£
+ZF=+-H 171,233 725,199 175,961 8,927 53,014 5,252 56,616 2,570 (9,483) 1,189,289 1,003,167 2,192,456
* ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss . FTEERNBERT AR
A For the nature and purposes of reserves, please refer to Note 46 to the A MEBEZEEREN B2RAPBRERWFE

financial statements.

460
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYNSEEE PN
Hotel
property Convertible Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other revaluation ~ Exchange note equity Capital  Retained controling Total
captal  premum"  reserve’  reserve"  reserve™  reserve’  reserve’  reserve’  earnings Total interests equity
EENE TREE
BR  RARE EELR HEMEE SEEET ELEE %m %’ EXfE  REER B EEREE  ERAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKEO00 HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTn BETn ATn BETn A%Trx A¥Tn BTrn A¥Tn ETn EETn BETn E¥Tre
THE GROUP HE@
At 1 January 2020 RZE-%5-F-H 171,233 725199 143,162 8,927 52,505 (170,627) 56,616 - 118191 1,105206 600,764 1,705,970
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BB /B - - - - - - - - (83871)  (83871) 17835  (66,036)
Other comprehensive income EEAM2ENE
for the year
- Surplus on revaluation of hotel —EENEERRE
properties - - - - 4,894 - - - - 4,894 - 4,894
- Release of revaluation reserve —EENEEMR
of hotel properties HEER - - - - 2,035) - - - 2,035 - - -
- Release of exchange reserve -RiE-BHEAFE
upon step acquisition to a —EREARZSA
subsidiary SREZEREE - - - - - 5,688 - - - 5,688 - 5,688
- Release of exchange reserve -RUHENBAAR
upon disposal of subsidiaries JIABHEEEZ
and an asset held for sale ERfE - - - - - 21,081 - - - 21,231 - 21,231
- Exchange differences arising on -BREBINERRES
translation of foreign operations INEEE - - - - - 5759 - - - 57595 53282 110,877
- Share of exchange difference of ~EEHEAT
associates (Note 21) SNEZERR (zE21) - - - - - 33654 - - - 33654 - 33654
Other comprehensive income EEHM2ENRE
for the year - - - - 2,859 118,168 - - 2,035 123,062 53,282 176,344
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EEERE R/
income for the year et - - - - 2,859 118,168 - - (81,836) 39,191 17 110,308
Upon step acquisition from an H-BHEATI-H
associate to a subsidiary WEARZATNE - - - - - - - - - - 183771 183,771
Dividend paid to non-controling BFEREES RS
interests - - - - - - - - - - {11,717 (11,717)
Transfer to statutory reserve ErE YN - - 20212 - - - - - (20212 - - -
At 31 December 2020 RIEZSE
+-B=1+-H 171,233 725199 163,374 8,927 55,364 (52,459) 56,616 - 16,143 1,144,397 843935 1,988,332
* [tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss * TEEMPEEER2EE
A For the nature and purposes of reserves, please refer to Note 46 to the A MHEEZEEREN F2RAMBRERWE

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
T —F “ECEHF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5F BT BT
Operating activities R RE
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF]/ (F5E) 10,887 (66,036)
Adjustment for: LU TIEBEHAR
Bank interest income RITH B WA (7,736) (14,524)
Finance costs Mz 107,065 123,742
Income tax expense TS R 11 16,382 39,333
Increase in fair value of investment KREMEZRAE
properties 10 18 (16,679) (49)
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of FFAB@mZ TR
financial assets at fair value BEZRANE
through profit or loss L () 16,295 (20,094)
Interest income from financial leasing KEMEHEEDN
FEWA 7 (153,327) (90,123)
Interest income from rental deposit HMEREZ
FEUA 9 (271) (217)
Share of profit of associates LS AT &RF 21 (25,361) (67,897)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BEX
plant and equipment REZIEL 13 8,999 33
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERARBEFTA
at fair value through profit or loss BRzeMEEZ
W a 9 - (1,620)
Depreciation of property, ME--BRE &
plant and equipment RBITE 19 37,011 21,796
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEENE 23 33,459 31,082
Dividend income from financial assets at BARNESTAEBRZ
fair value through profit or loss TREBEEZRE
A 9 (959) -
Allowance for expected credit losses on FEWERHZFAIAEE
trade receivables EsIE R 28 499 -
Allowance for expected credit losses FEW BRI TERR(E &
written back on trade receivables E5IE#E [O] 5 28 (5) (15)
Allowance for expected credit losses MEHEERWZR 2
on finance lease receivables JERAE EEEEE 26 9,847 14,589
Impairment loss on other receivables HMEKRRIEZ
BEEK 13 - 38,033
Impairment loss on properties FEMEZRERKX
held for sale 13 1,900 1,598
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries and HEWBABKIA
an asset classified as held for sale FHEEEZEX - 39,177
Net loss on step acquisition DEUNEEZIFIEL - 5,667
Rent concession &R E 23 - (5,085)
Net exchange gain bE 2 U & 73 B 9 (389) (17,308)
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Consohidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HILEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—EZ—%& TETEF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5F BT BT
Operating cash flow before movements in & EE &2
working capital KERENE 37,617 32,082
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (gm R (4,388) 1,785
(Increase)/decrease in rental deposit in TREEEZHE
respect of right-of-use assets & (gm R (2,650) 2,472
Increase in finance lease receivables BhEFE & e WA N (1,373,051) (438,639)
Increase in trade and other receivables FE IS AR 3k R EL A
FE U FRIEIE AN (34,876) (2,738)
Increase in trade and other payables FEI BR TR R EL At FE A
IR NN 64,268 41,603
Increase in deferred income 3% JIE UK 7 T2 0 126,822 76,108
Increase in deposits received form BWEFZEEMN
customers 54,285 21,466
Cash used in operations KERHIRE (1,131,973) (265,861)
Interest income from financial BUCREREREN
leasing received FE WA 159,849 84,777
Tax paid BRE (35,526) (40,392)
Net cash used in operating activities (& EEI2HE
piide e XL (1,007,650) (221,476)
Investing activities KREIEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment &Y K=
V&odi 19 (601,533) (449,701)
Decrease in time deposits with more than R EZARZIEAR BB
three months to maturity when placed —EEZEHRER
B - 55,928
Dividend received from financial assets at ZARETAEBREZ
fair value through profit or loss FTHEEZREWA 9 959 -
Dividend received from an associate Bk B —EEE QT
ENp3S 16,376 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZRA B ABTR
at fair value through profit or loss ZERMBEEZME
=g - 8,529
Net cash inflows from step acquisition H—REEE AR —[
from an associate to subsidiary B AB 2D s
Z RIS RIE 38R - 50,135
Net cash inflows from disposal of a HENB AR KRIEA
subsidiaries and asset classified as HFHEEETFEE
held for sale - 154,729
(Placement)/uplift of pledged bank deposit BiEiRER (k)
12 EY (323,950) 7,490
Interest received BWF B 7,736 14,613
Net proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - -TEK
plant and equipment RENPTSRIE SR 70 18
Net cash used in investing activities RETHZHE
LR (900,342) (158,259)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021
2021 2020
—E—F —EIE2HF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M sE BT T BT T
Financing activities LB EED
Capital injection from non-controlling FEERERIE
interests 131,665 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests M 3FIERR S SE AR B (283,651) (11,717)
Payment of handling fee ENFEE - (9,526)
Payment of loan arrangement fee BENERZHE (3,202) (3,140
Interest paid on borrowings BENEZRFE 29(b) (31,933) (52,001)
Interest paid on convertible notes [SENGIE LTS, 32 (3,325) (3,325)
Repayment of borrowings BEEX; 29(b) (788,833) (818,914)
Payments of lease liabilities MESGMRIIE 23 (48,515) (42,029)
Proceeds from borrowings BEMEMIE 29(b) 2,380,354 1,097,897
Net cash generated from MEFHZRE
financing activities WAREE 1,612,560 157,245
Net decrease in cash and cash HERFAEEEY
equivalents B RER (295,432) (222,490)
Cash and cash equivalents at HR—B—HBZRER
1 January REXEEY 798,263 972,468
Effect of foreign exchange rates EREH 2 TE
changes 24,006 48,285
Cash and cash equivalents at B+ZB=+—HZ2
31 December RERREEEY 526,837 798,263
Analysis of the balances of cash and R&REEZEY
cash equivalents, being: EBRAWHUT
HEHERK :
Bank balances and cash RITERKREE 526,837 798,263
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Prize
Rich Inc, which was incorporated in the British Virgin Island
(“BVI”") and the ultimate holding company is Guangdong Nanhai
Holding Investment Co., Limited, which was incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section
of the annual report.

During the year, the principal activities of the Group are big
data business, civil explosives business, financial leasing, hotel
operation, industrial parks and property development, property
investments, wellness elderly care business and investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are described in Note 42.

T-Box® business was discontinued on 1 July 2020, details of
which are set out in Note 12.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which
is their Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

GOING CONCERN

Notwithstanding that the Group had incurred net current
liabilities of approximately HK$48,709,000 as at 31 December
2021, the consolidated financial statements at 31 December
2021 have been prepared on a going concern basis as the
Directors are satisfied that the liquidity of the Group can be
maintained in the next twelve months, as up to the date of
the consolidated financial statements authorised for issue,
the Group obtained approval from bank for granting the bank
facilities of USD90,000,000.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which are or
have become effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
on 1 January 2021:

Amendment to HKFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021 (Early adopted)

HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Interest rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has no material effect
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current or prior accounting period. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment is required.

?'J'nﬁ:‘?‘f‘ééé

BREAEEBR _Z2E_-_—F+_A~
—t+—HEEERBBREFENBIE
48,709,000 R _E_—%+_A4
—t+—HZREHMBRERKEEART
BREAERGRE NEEEHFRGVH
WMANERETEHA 2 AEB B
BiR1TIR15%8E 90,000,000 7T &
EEMAERERRRETZEAER
TRED I

FER#hs] R A8 B BRI T
lﬁ*’;ﬁ I (TFERMBREE
Al

RAEE AEEBR _E-_—F—H—
HRGEIZENHTBHFEABRRAS
BEFMAGEMZ THRKBITEE
MRS 2] ¢

BB BREER “E-—&XA

£5165% (185]) =+HUE
COVID-194E R
R
(REER)

EEMBRELEL FEREERE—

FAFEBUH 5 REER

IMELERIBTI

EEMBREER

FOHEBUH

BEERE165%

REBGETER

5395 (1857)

RNEEBIEBMBREENHEA
SBEE IR 2 AR E M KRR
WEEBRTE -RILBAMBEEZHH
EIEHEEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective. The Directors of the Group anticipate that the
application of these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2018 — 2020 cycle!

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to Conceptual

Framework!
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
(Amendments) between an Investor and

Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments?
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and
Related Amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment:
Process before Intended Use’

HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common
(Revised) Control Combinations*
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 5 L3 £ i8¢ 75 B2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

3 Effective date to be determined.

4 Effective for common control combinations that occur on or after
beginning of the first annual report period on or after 1 January
2022.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), the collective term which includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
financial statements include applicable disclosures required

In addition, the consolidated

by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties, financial
instruments that are measured at fair values and assets held
for sales that are measured at fair value less costs to sell as
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost are
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair Value (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities (including structured

entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies to
be in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
have been eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liguidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination

Acquisition of business, other than business combination
under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16 Leases) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value if the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after the reassessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
(which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts

information obtained during the “measurement period”

and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
the interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments/
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on step acquisition from
an associate to a subsidiary is described in Note 20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is or the portion so classified is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations. Any retained portion of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not been
classified as held for sale continues to be accounted for using
the equity method. The financial statements of associates used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount,
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments/
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of the interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including property under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

i. Hotel properties

Hotel properties are stated at revalued amounts, being
fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent
impairment losses. Fair value is determined in appraisals
by external professional valuers with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset. All other property, plant and equipment are stated
at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

ETETT

e

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

i.

ii.

Hotel properties (Continued)

Any surplus arising on revaluation of hotel properties
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are accumulated in the properties revaluation reserve
in equity, unless the carrying amount of that asset has
previously suffered a revaluation decrease or impairment
loss. To the extent that any decrease has previously
been recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation increase
is credited to profit or loss with the remaining part of
the increase dealt with in other comprehensive income.
A decrease in net carrying amount of hotel properties
arising on revaluations or impairment testing is recognised
in other comprehensive income to the extent of the
revaluation surplus in the properties revaluation reserve
relating to the same asset and the remaining decrease is
recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment (other than hotel
properties)

Property, plant and equipment (other than hotel
properties) are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment (other than hotel
properties) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

2% to 10%
10% to 30%

Land and buildings

Furniture, equipment and leasehold
improvements

10% to 30%

15% to 30%

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

ii.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for own use purposes. Construction in progress is
carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when it is completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit and loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and right-of-use assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continueqd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

ii. Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest earned
on the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables and finance lease receivables) which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, twelve-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. GEHHER &

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and finance lease receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to twelve-month ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continueqd)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEEGFHEE @
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) ERMIA =
Financial assets (Continued) ETHEE B
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (B)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more

events of default that have a detrimental impact on

the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset

have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-

impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
iii.  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the Probability
of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and exposure at
default. The assessment of the PD and LGD is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between a contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instruments level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

o Past-due status; and
° Nature, size and industry of debtors.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

166 CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4F#t

BEEER &

£MTIA (&

EHEE (B)
THEERE (&)

i. FARAE BB ERER

BRHEEERENGERENOTR
K\E%%%ﬁ(ﬂi@ﬁ%ﬁ
B) REXNREBHRE - BOMX
RENBRERTDENR BB BT
ENABENELHETE B
EEBEENAGDERERME
TR NELEENNRRS
REETE-

—RMms > AHREEBRREAE
EREBESHOEBRNMABEGNRSE
MERAEEESWERIRER
TREZENERMGE > LIRY)
IRHES R E E R BIRF RAEIR -

HEREEGRREREESTE
FMESER T EKFEREARANE
EOBER AEMIERUTE
EFRER

o BN K

e BEHANMEE -RERT
e

DHETIFECEEREEMES U
R ARG EEREERLUS
BREE-



w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

ii.  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
from hotel operation and finance lease receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9 or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its consolidated statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets. In such cases, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EETHEER &

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for a financial
asset that is classified as FVTOCI, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Convertible notes

The component parts of the convertible notes issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the convertible notes as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to share premium. When the
conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of
the convertible notes, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity components are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. GEHHER &

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Other financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation
at the end of each reporting period, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of discounts and sales related taxes.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4F#t

ﬁl‘?ﬂlﬁ Crﬁ

HAttEMERE (&)

BN R

WREEREREaNZEEEXER
PR BUSSE R RERKEUHED
RaE BUHERzcmaBRmEHR
Eﬁwﬁﬁm ZEBIHRERED

]

BEDEAEBRABEEHFAKIER
BEAENEEE AR MAEET
FERBENZEB BBEIHRESFENSE
BREMARHEVNZEFAERXZER
EMFSE LINEERE (WBEEKX
T -

Mo 5 52

W BB REZ AREE
HERBEEXEFBEDPAEHER
AR5z BRI RS ERRERN
FEURBRRR o



w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows
a 5-step process in accordance with HKFRS 15:

1. I[dentifying the contract with a customer

2. ldentifying the performance obligations

3.  Determining the transaction price

4.  Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s)
are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction
price for a contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf
of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Income from civil explosives business, operating
income from big data business, industrial parks and
property development and wellness elderly care
business and other income from hotel operation

Income from civil explosives business, operating income
from big data business, industrial parks and property
development and wellness elderly care business and
other income from hotel operation involve income
generated from sales of goods or providing services.
Income generated from sales of goods is recognised
when goods are delivered and title has passed, while
income generated from providing services is recognised
when the relevant services are rendered.

Service income from hotel operation, industrial
parks and property development and wellness
elderly care business

Service income from hotel operation, industrial parks and
property development and wellness elderly care business
are recognised on a straight-line basis over the scheduled
period of services.

Construction of platform regarding big data
business

Revenue from construction of platform is recognised
progressively over the contract period based on the
stage of completion method. The progress towards
completion of the construction of platform is measured
based on output method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of direct measurements of the value of the
outputs transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining outputs promised under the contract, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
platform.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Technical service income from big data business

Technical service income from big data business
includes income generated from providing business IT
management, design, implementation and technical
support services. It is under fixed— price contracts and
recognised in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is
recognised based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total
services to be provided because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously.

Where the service contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling
price.

Interest income from financial leasing

Interest income from financial leasing including handling
fees (if any) represents interest income from financial
leasing business, is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Consultancy service income from financial leasing

Consultancy service income from financial leasing is
recognised when the services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(vii) Rental income

Rental income arising from properties let under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the respective leases.

(viii) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable.

(ix) Dividend income

Dividend income from investment is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If the considerations (including advances received
from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a contract
liability for the difference.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income or a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated
statement of position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivables as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Government
grants relating to compensation of expenses are deducted from
the related expenses, other government grants are presented
under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangement, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the

investment property over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
and over the lease terms of the relevant right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognised due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(“ORSO Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit
scheme are charged as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For a contract that is, or contains, a lease, the Group accounts
for each lease component within the contract as a lease
separately from non-lease components of the contract.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both:

i) periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

ii) periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

In assessing whether a lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate a lease, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the lessee
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise
the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease
term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a
lease.

Lease are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and initial
direct costs is included in the statement of financial position
as finance lease receivables. Any unguaranteed residual value
is also recognised at the inception of the lease. The difference
between the sum of the minimum lease payment receivables,
initial direct costs, the unguaranteed residual value and their
present value is recognised as unearned finance income.
Unearned finance income is recognised over the period of the
lease using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

The non-lease components are accounted for in accordance
with the Group’s policies.

For determination of the lease term, the Group reassesses
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, or not to exercise a termination option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change
in circumstances that:

) is within the control of the Group; and

ii) affects whether the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise an option not previously included in its
determination of the lease term, or not to exercise an
option previously included in its determination of the lease
term.

At the commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability under the lease contract.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4F#t

4. EEE

ETET—F+"_F=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

-I-Ei% Crﬁ
A (&)
FEFEDBEEA
HRes—EEEERN D k—IEK
ZIEBAINNAEHIFEEEAE DB

B AEERBEEHEME DAY
%ﬁf“f’%&?ﬁﬂ%% RRER D R BB E
BBNBEOREBEIEESEHEER
R BB

FEEMAMS D IRBAERNBEE
'f—_l' = D+FE£E°

MEEHNEEMS  FAEEgERE
THNERFERNENBREHFEN
FEECCERETTEREEER
R REAR LIS

) PIEAEEES; &

i) HELAEERTAERTEGTE
ZAERERARREBEAR
EER A GTEZAEEM
ERREEEAENAERRE

KRB E ~EEEREBEESHNET
NERAEEEREERR:.



w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

Lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured by (a)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (c) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

Where, (a) there is a change in the lease term as a result of
reassessment of certainty to exercise an extension option,
or not to exercise a termination option as discussed above;
or (b) there is a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset, assessed considering the
events and circumstances in the context of a purchase option,
the Group remeasures the lease liability to reflect changes to
lease payments by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate. The Group determines the
revised discount rate as the interest rate implicit in the lease
for the remainder of the lease term, if that rate can be readily
determined, or the incremental borrowing rate at the date of
reassessment, if the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be
readily determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EETHEER &

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Where, (a) there is a change in the amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee; or (b) there is a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or a rate used to determine those payments, including
a change to reflect changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review, the Group remeasures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged
discount rate, unless the change in lease payments results
from a change in floating interest rates. In such case, the
Group uses a revised discount rate that reflects changes in the
interest rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the re-measurement of
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-
measurement in profit or loss.
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HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEGFEE @

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) My #E)

The Group as lessee (Continued) FEBELZEABEAN (B

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEE (&)

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate HWRENEE NI MEBE  AAERF

lease if both: HENERIEA —EEBNHEEET

HEER

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by e ZEEMNBEBEMNER—BINZ
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; EEMEENEIIRATHESR
and s~

e the consideration for the lease increases by an amount e HIBEHENRE  ENMNEEEAE
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase ERHEREASENERES
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand- MEZRBEESONERBERLE
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular BEBRETHNENEZERE-
contract.

Lease modifications that are not accounted for as a separate HR A EA—BEBHEEARNEE

lease, the Group, at the effective date of the lease modification: Be REBRGEHEEERENH (@)

(a) allocates the consideration in the modified contract; (b) BRESEELEBITINGH ;)T

determines the lease term of the modified lease; and (c) BETHENMEER ; Re)FEBKERTHT

remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease RERKETHENRCETING &

payments using a revised discount rate. STEHEAE.

The revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate BTN IREABEPT AN IR ERTE

implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, if that EfRNAE (HZAEERR Z it i#

rate can be readily determined, or the lessee’s incremental ) AR ATEERERBNIEEER

borrowing rate at the effective date of the modification, if the MEEEETFRTHINERERES

interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined. HFERE) ©
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost comprising:

i)

amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. These costs are recognised as
part of the cost of right-of-use asset when the Group
incurs an obligation for these costs. The obligation for
these costs are incurred either at the commencement
date or as a consequence of having used the underlying
asset during a particular period.

After initial recognition, a lessee shall measure the right-of-

use asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and

any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any

remeasurement of the lease liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of motor vehicles and offices that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the re-translation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

ii. the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies: (Continued)

(iv)

(vili)

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity, and include:

(a)

(b)

(©

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, time deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts or bank loans, if
any, which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of an enterprise’s cash managements are also included as
component of cash and cash equivalents.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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B

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that management has made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed that
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. Moreover, the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties is lower than
acquisition cost. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on change in fair value of investment properties
as the Group is not subject to any incomes taxes on disposal
of its investment properties.

Deferred taxation on hotel properties

By comparing the initial cost and the revaluated value of PRC
hotel properties of the Group, the Directors considered that
no capital gain may generate and does not constitute a timing
difference and not expect to settle the carrying amount of the
tax liabilities. Therefore, deferred tax has not been recognised
in respect of the valuation surplus relating to hotel properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined with reference to the higher of fair value of the
machinery and equipment less costs to sell or the value-in-use
calculations. An impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the recoverable
amount. Where the recoverable amount is less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2021,
machinery, equipment and motor vehicles (2020: Nil).

the Group reported no impairment loss for certain
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B

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s other assets and
liabilities

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The qualified
external valuers establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Financial Controller reports the
qualified external valuers’ findings to the board of Directors of
the Company every quarter to explain the cause of fluctuations
in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 6, 18 and
19 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and hotel properties

The Group’s properties were revalued as at 31 December
2021 based on the appraised market value by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimate
of fair value, the Group considers information from current
prices in an active market for similar properties in the same
location and condition and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

The carrying amount of investment properties and hotel
properties at 31 December 2021 was HK$774,554,000 and
HK$110,000,000 respectively (2020: HK$350,058,000 and
HK$115,000,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and finance
lease receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss allowance for trade receivables and finance
lease receivables by assessing the ECLs, which requires the
use of estimates and judgements. Assessing the ECLs requires
to use provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, and review general conditions, internal credit
ratings and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions. The
impairment loss allowance of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
estimates.

The information about the ECLs and the Group’s impairment
loss allowance regarding trade receivables and finance lease
receivables are disclosed in Notes 6, 26 and 28.

Deferred tax asset arising from allowance for ECL on
finance lease receivables

The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
the Group’s assessment of ECL of finance lease receivables.

In cases where the actual assessment of ECL is less or more
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of ECL assessment, a material reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2021, a deferred tax asset of
HK$7,014,000 (2020: HKS$NIl) arising from allowance for
ECL on finance lease receivables has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Details of the
deferred tax asset are disclosed in Note 33.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cContinued)

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or
fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, or changes in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash flows or
upward revision of discount rate, a material impairment loss or
further impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$136,530,000 (2020: HK$132,151,000), (net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$Nil (2020: HK$Nil). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in the
PRC and Hong Kong and accordingly are subject to special
considerations and several risks.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Majority of the Group’s operating income and costs are
denominated in RMB. In the business operation of the Group,
foreign exchange fluctuation of income and costs would be
mutually offset. However, as the Hong Kong-based Group
has invested substantial borrowings into domestic wholly
owned subsidiaries in the PRC whilst owning substantial RMB
denominated monetary assets, an exchange gain or loss will be
recorded due to the appreciation or depreciation of RMB. The
Management expected that RMB will be immensely affected by
deterioration of Sino-US relations, COVID-19 pandemic, USD
interest rate hike cycle and developments of the Ukraine war in
the short term, therefore the trend of RMB is unforeseeable in
the short term. In the long run, RMB’s exchange rate will not
fluctuate drastically and will not bring material adverse foreign
exchange risk on the Group. Therefore, the Group currently
does not have any specific foreign exchange risk hedging need
for this matter.

Besides, parts of the Group’s bank balances and borrowings
are denominated in US dollars. The sensitivity of fluctuation
in US dollars exchange rate is considered insignificant as the
Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US dollars based on The
Linked Exchange Rate System.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.
Foreign Exchange Exposure (Continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

MBERER @
SMNERLME ()
RIEIFR > AEBUSME SHER S

BEEAEREGENREEDNT

At 31 December

®w+—B=+—H

2021 2020
—E_—% TECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT 5T

Assets BE
Denominated in Renminbi NG 4,292,747 2,627,153
Denominated in US dollars EEE 12,051 84,440
4,304,798 2,711,593

Liabilities &afE
Denominated in Renminbi ARBEER 3,949,071 2,003,034
Denominated in US dollars EAER 666,669 697,826
4,615,740 2,700,860

The following shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase/
decrease in RMB against the Hong Kong dollars. The sensitivity
analysis includes only RMB denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year and for a 5% change in
RMB dollars rates. If there is a 5% increase/decrease in RMB
exchange rate against the Hong Kong dollar, the effect in the
profit for the year is as follows:

TRETARKERBETE FEE%
BYSELEE 34 © R BURLEE 3 4R 1 95 I
ARHSHENEIEE > R EREREA
RUEEEEME%THERE - YAR
W B M THE B E6% » B R EER
HOE BT

At 31 December

®W+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E”—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Increase/decrease in profit for the year FEEEHEM R 5,214 6,127
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to equity holders, return capital to equity

holders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes borrowings and convertible notes) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company (comprising issued
share capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings).

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and will balance its overall capital structure
through issue of new shares as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

The Directors monitor capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated based on total debts divided by equity plus
total debts. Total debts are calculated as total interest-bearing
borrowings and debt component of convertible notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq) 6. MEREREIRE &
Capital risk management (Continued) BERBER (&)
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as RRESAR EEAGBLERNT :
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—f o 1.2
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEFIT
Total debts (Note 1) &M (fisk1) 4,368,763 2,678,510
Equity (Note 2) @ (FEE2) 1,189,289 1,144,397
Equity and total debts HmEUREEERE 5,558,052 3,822,907
Gearing ratio BEEBEALX 79% 70%
Notes: BT -
1) Total debts comprises of total interest-bearing borrowings, 1) BEAECESIEENEE HaE

including long-term and short-term borrowings, and debt
component of convertible notes as detailed in Notes 31 and 32
respectively.

2) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of
the Company.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
floating interest rate from borrowings (see Note 31 for details
of these borrowings). The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value interest
rate risk. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

Interest rate risk (Continueq)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly arises from
the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with
variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a
balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

MBERER @
FIEAB (&

rEBZESAEMNERRR  TE2XKE
FEBUARBSHEZEBE FEEZ
BER AR EERF UL RETE U
R A ENRE R E RS-

AERZET2NXERREUREF
KB 2B ZFEEREREER @S
REMENRAR - ~EBEBEAE
ERFJEBMNERERNIGEEGEERR
F R o

AR E RN RS R E B 28
MARTT :

2021 % of total 2020 % of total

HK$’000 borrowings HK$’'000 borrowings

—E_-fF AN - - &M

AT BEENL BETT REEDLE

Variable rate borrowings EE-HlESEE 2,726,132 64% 2,272,719 85%
Fixed rate borrowings ElEFEER 1,509,987 36% 283,226 15%
4,236,119 100% 2,555,945 100%

An analysis by maturities is provided in liquidity risk
management below. The percentage of total borrowings shows
the proportion of borrowings that are currently at variable rates
in relation to the total amount of borrowings.

B DM ERN T ORBRBREIE 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRAKRERE®=

Interest rate risk (Continueq)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2020:
50 basis points) increase or decrease in interest rate is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2021 would decrease/increase by HK$13,631,000 (2020:
loss increase/decrease by HK$11,364,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate borrowings.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with
the board of Directors. In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MBERAMREIE @
Liquidity risk management (Continued) TBESREKER @&
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net current liabilities RZTE-_—F+"HA=+—H ' &&
amounted to HK$48,709,000 (2020: net current liabilities E 2 mEh B &3 e 5 B 1548,709,0007T
of HK$66,332,000), current ratio (being current assets (ZEZEF . RHEBEFEABE
divided by current liabilities) was approximately 0.97 times 66,332,0007T) » AEILEE (BIRBE
(2020: 0.95 times), while total current assets amounted to ERREERE) HA8097F (ZEZE
HK$1,866,456,000 (2020: HK$1,405,686,000), which is F0.95(F) MRS EEMEBEABE
sufficient to meet the capital requirement of the Group’s #1,866,456,0007TC (ZE-Z4F | B
operations and development in the foreseeable future. Detalils 1,405,686,0007T) » TEF8 B R 2R Al im 2
of going concern of the Group are set out in Note 2. AEBREMERNESTETR - AEE
HEREZEFBHNMIE2 -
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into AEBZEHEBEREBERN T Z2EHA
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period REPREESNEHBEAMBEREIE
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity PEAETRDM -MTIRZ TR
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BHRIMBZRESREWE
undiscounted cash flows:
2021
—F--&
Weighted Total Total
average On Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
i RERRE
FigF= EEX —ENR —E=F ZERE RENE TELE IREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BT AT BETRT BETRT BETR
Trade and other payables ERERR
HEHEIHE = 175,787 - = = = 175,787 175,787
Borrowings (R 4.81% 756,979 1,043,301 2,100,992 551,497 326,711 4,779,480 4,236,119
Lease liabiliies HESE 5.00% - 52,708 112,162 117,133 2,134,733 2,416,736 1,135,788
Convertible notes issued on RZIE-NE
23 May 2019 ERZ+=H
BE¥{T
TREER 10.64% - 11,188 155,044 = = 166,232 132,644
932,766 1,107,197 2,368,198 668,630 2,461,444 7,538,235 5,680,338
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HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

December 2021 are included in the “on demand” time band
in the above table. The carrying amount of the borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$741,705,000 (2020:
HK$796,216,000) as at 31 December 2021.
account the Group’s financial position and assets pledged

Taking into

for the borrowings, the Directors did not believe that it was
probable that the lenders would exercise the discretionary
rights to demand immediate payments. The Directors believed
that the borrowings would be repaid in accordance with the
repayment schedules set out in the loans agreements. The
total cash outflows for the principals and interests of the
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$756,979,000
(2020: HK$824,245,000). Details of which are set out in the
table below:

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HBERKRERE »®
Liquidity risk management (Continued) REBEEREKRER (&
2020
ZZIEF
Weighted Total Total
average On Within Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
mig FUERRE
FIRI= EEX —ENA —-E=f —ERE BENE MERE AREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn  BETR  BETR  BETR  #ETR BMTR  #ETR
Trade and other payables R
HihEMFIE - 94,576 - - - - 94,576 94,576
Borrowings &z 4.77% 824,245 518,545 903,481 327,091 234,642 2,808,004 2,555,945
Lease liabilities HEaE 5.00% - 50,675 105,259 109,149 2,121,907 2,386,990 1,092,676
Convertible notes issued on R ZF—h&E
23 May 2019 ER”+=H
BEfT
TRREE 10.64% - 10,080 23,607 132,545 - 166,232 122,565
918,821 579,300 1,082,347 568,785 2,356,549 5,455,802 3,865,762
Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause as at 31 N2 F+"HB=+—H EE

KREBBERHVERSTALRTEEXRY
ERREMEAN RZEZ—F+=A
—t+—HBH EXNEEEANBE
741,705,000 0 (ZCEBE B F | B
796,216,0007T) ° 5t R AEBEF kR
EAEEEIRFRNEER BRI AL

RLEERAGITERTCHEERIZAE
N-BERAEREABSRIBEER

EFfECERREE ZEEN KR
RIBEMBETEAHET756,979,000

T (CE T & BHE824,245,0007T) ©
HIBEN TR

Maturity Analysis - Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause

HH BN - REXRERR

B

Total Total
Within Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
RETRE
—ELR -EZ§ ZELfE RENE MELH MRmE(E
\HKSB’OOiO HK$'000 \HK$'0070 HK$'000 \HK$'0070 \HKSB’OOiO
AR BETT BETT BT BETT AR
As at 31 December 2021 ZEI-E+ZF=1-H 713,427 12,329 4,146 27,077 756,979 741,705
As at 31 December 2020 “ZIZE+IR=1H 120,556 682,465 8,790 12,434 824,245 796,216
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties equals to the carrying amount of respective
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade receivables and finance lease receivables.
Credit risk on other receivables is limited because there was
no historical default record has been made during the year and
the Directors expect that the general economic conditions will
not significantly changed for the 12 months after the reporting
date.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determining of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
In addition, the
management of the Group reviews the recoverable amount

debts (please refer to Notes 26 and 28).

of each individual receivable at the end of reporting period
to ensure that adequate allowance for ECL is made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The Group applied the simplified approach to measure ECL
on trade receivables, including trade receivables from big
data business, civil explosives business, hotel operations
and industrial parks and property development and finance
lease receivables. Under the simplified approach, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime

ECL.

6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

To measure the ECL on trade receivables, based on forward-
looking economic information through the use of industry trend
and experienced credit judgement as well as past experience
including historical credit loss experience and current
expectations, the Group has collectively used a provision
matrix with 5% ECL rate on total carrying amount of trade
receivables from hotel operation, while used provision matrices
with different ECL rates separated based on different customer
segments or past due status on total carrying amount of trade
receivables from big data business, civil explosives business
and industrial parks and property development.

To measure the ECL on finance lease receivables, finance
lease receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has collectively applied another
provision matrix with two different ECL rates, which, in other
words, classified the credit risk regarding finance lease
receivables into 2 grades. ECL rates of the Group’s finance
lease receivables, which represent internal credit risk ratings,
are based on qualitative (such as lessee’s operating conditions,
financial positions, usage of finance lease assets, etc.) and
quantitative factors (mainly include past due information of
the finance lease receivables). The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk of finance lease
receivables and the provision matrix showing the ECL as at 31

December 2021 and 2020.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. MEREREIRE &

EERR (@)

Adjusted
carrying Impairment
ECL amount loss
rates (Note 1) allowance
AEEN
FHEAEE IREE4EE WE
<3 -ES (MF5E3) BREHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Internal credit ratings A= E T4k BT T BT 7T
As at 31 December 2021 A BT &
+ZB=4+—H
Grade 1 - Low risk F— R — KR
- Government related (Note 1) —miE (MFsE1) 0.5% 1,581,986 7,910
Grade 2 - Low risk FIR—ERE
- Others (Note Il —EHh (f5E2) 1.3% 1,549,820 20,148
3,131,806 28,058
As at 31 December 2020 A BT HE
+-B=+—H
Grade 1 - Low risk F—HR—ERER
- Government related (Note 1) —mE (fF5E1) 0.5% 643,050 3,215
Grade 2 — Low risk FHR—REA R
- Others (Note I) —Hh (f5E2) 1.3% 1,095,053 14,237
1,738,103 17,452
Notes s -

Grade 1 category is finance lease receivables which are
government related customers. Such customers are determined
to have low credit risk and related lease receivables have no past
due.

II. Grade 2 category is finance lease receivables which are the
customers without government relationship. Such customers are
determined to have low credit risk if the related finance lease
receivables have no past due.

. The adjusted carrying amount is gross carrying amount of
finance lease receivables after adding finance lease interest
receivables and deducting finance lease deposits received.

B —MREE A B BT E B E P AR
ERBERER - WER BRI AE
EE R HEERRE R S-S
RERE B IR

B TREE A IFBUTE B E P AR
EHRERWR - LT R ERTAE
= 8 Bk i 5 A8 R B R E 1H & FE IR
HERRE R ARBH -

IE ARV EREEAE R A A BRI AR
EESEWARREEBEEIE MR EE
SN REWRINREWRREEEN
B o

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Ho [ B3 ¢ B A BR 23 6]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MEREREIRE &
Credit risk (Continued) EERK (&)
At 31 December 2021, the expected credit loss rates for ’f:v_—ﬁ—f— B=+—H ®&M
finance lease receivables ranged from 0.5% to 1.3% (2020: ERWFNEREEFEENTF0.5%
0.5% to 1.3%). F1.3% (CEZEF 1 0.5%F1.3%) ©
Movements in the accounts related to ECL/impairment loss ﬁ%ﬁWEHWE%’X HMMEWRIE AR ER
in respect of trade receivables, other receivables and finance ERBRSFNBREERE BEEX
lease receivables are summarised as follows: Z BB M
Finance
Trade Other Lease
Receivables Receivables Receivables Total
RMERE
MR HittEWIE e ke
(Note 28) (Note I) (Note 26)
(Pf5x28) (P 2E1) (GEZH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT
Balance as at 1 January 2020 AZEZZF—F—H 251 - 1,913 2,164
Allowance for expected credit Bz EHREEEE/
losses/impairment loss recognised EAIEEES - 38,033 14,589 52,622
Allowance for expected credit losses ~ TEHIE B85 2 [0 #&
written back (15) - - (15)
Exchange difference EREER 15 2,170 950 3,135
Balance as at 1 January 2021 A _E-—-FE—F—H 251 40,203 17,452 57,906
Allowance for expected credit B EHREEER/
losses/impairment loss recognised HERL 499 - 9,847 10,346
Allowance for expected credit losses ~ TEEIE B8 ## 2 [0
written back (5) - - (5)
Exchange difference EREER 17 1,330 759 2,106
Balance as at 31 December 2021 RAZE_—F+"R
=+—H 762 41,533 28,058 70,353

Note:

In 2020, impairment loss was recognised in other receivables,

which represents consideration receivables in relation to the

disposal of the Group’s 25% equity in Guangdong Financial

Leasing Co.,
uncollectible in full.

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRAKRERE®=

Fair value

i) Fair values of financial assets

QRE

) EBREEZAALME

The following table provides an analysis of financial TREINRTERBEUARRE

assets that are measured at fair value subsequent to
initial recognition, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the

degree to which the fair value is observable:

StEZEMEEZ DN LD 5
REABBZIBREDER
E=M

As at 31 December 2021
RZ2-—-%+Z-H=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— BIR B=4 et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

AT AT AT AT

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:
Unlisted equity investment
Option granted for selling

the 72% equity interest
in a subsidiary to
non-controlling interest

EEMRRMEHE

BARESABRZ
TREE:
FELHRORE
By —-BNRBAT

HEFIETERER
72% R REH HR

- - 8,187 8,187
- - 54,868 54,868
- - 63,055 63,055

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ BU¥ P £ B2 v
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRAKRERE®=

Fair value (Continued) DRE B
i)  Fair values of financial assets (Continued) i) ZTHEEZAALE (B

As at 31 December 2020
RIZZZEF+-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—14 EH Rt 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Recurring fair value REMAREHE:
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value BRAREFABRZ
through profit TRBEE
or loss:
Unlisted equity investment FEETRHBEE - - 13,643 13,643
Option granted for selling BT —ERB AR
the 72% equity interest HEFIEERED
in a subsidiary to 72% A% HE RO HA
non-controlling interest - - 63,881 63,881
- - 77,524 77,524
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and RAEAEEN E—R - F_HRKEE
Level 3 during the year. R BN T E o
The Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value RERSHFR AEBZEME
at the end of each reporting period. The following ERAREFE TREYIBHE
table gives information about how the fair value of the MAETEMEEAAETER
financial asset is determined (in particular, the valuation & (B BT e B 3% AR BY ) A 880388) ©

technique(s) and inputs used).

212 CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_E-_—F+A=+—HILEE

w3 A5 AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MEREREIRE &
Fair value (Continued) DREE
i) Fair values of financial assets (Continued) i) ZTHEEZAAME (B
Fair value  Valuation technique and Significant unobservable
Financial asset Fair value as at Hierarchy  key inputs input(s)
EHMEE RUTEENARE AREZFE HERTRIEHABE EATTERBABE
2021 2020
—E_—F C"EZ_ZE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETTT BT
Unlisted equity
investment
FEMRHEE
- Financial asset A 1,309 1,034 Level 3 Asset Approach - The attributable net asset
—THEEA E=R BEEDNE value, adjusted to fair
value
— BLEERE FAEBERQ
A
- Financial asset B 4,155 8,306 Level 3 Asset Approach - The attributable net asset
—SRMEEB B BEEDNE value, adjusted to fair
value
— BLEERE BAEBERQ
A
- Financial asset C 2,723 4,303 Level 3 Income approach - discounted - Discount rate: 10.68%
—&RMEEC B=MR cash flow analysis (2020: 11.56%
WAE-BIRIBERED T - Discount for lack of
marketability rate: 30%
(2020: 30%)
— BAIRE 110.68% (ZEZ
TE11.56%)
— BREZHIERBMITER
30% (ZZEZZF 1 30%)
Option granted for 54,868 63,881 Level 3 Binomial pricing model - In - Volatility, determined by
selling the 72% B this approach, certain reference to historical

equity interest
in a subsidiary

to the non-
controlling
interest

BY—RNEAR
HEFIEER
HE72%85 1
B EARE

parameters determined by
management are input into
the binomial model to derive
the valuation of the call
option.

“EACERE-FALSE
BEEEENAE T2
AZIENER DUES AR
BhfE -

Certain parameters include:

- Risk-free rate 2.28% (2020:
2.70%)

- Volatility 36.37%
(2020:29.57%)

‘ﬁ?ﬂ%@%
H|ERFIE2.28% (ZF
TE12.70%)

— HIE36.37% (ZE_ZTF:
29.57%)

volatilities of companies
operating in the same
industry

— KB K2EREBTR
BETE

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ BU¥ P £ B2 v
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

Fair value (Continued)

i) Fair values of financial assets (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

MBERER @
ARME (#)
) EHEEZARE A

BZRAAEHEZHIR

2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
As at 1 January w—A—H 77,524 54,757
Additions upon step acquisition from H—AEEE QT J
an associate to a subsidiary —E B AT
ﬁ*ﬁuéz,ﬁﬁz%ﬁi - 5,012
Disposal HE - (6,909)
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of AR ZEMEEL
financial assets at fair value through NE L) S
profit or loss (Note a) 120 (ska) (16,730) 20,239
Exchange difference b 2 = 28 2,261 4,425
As at 31 December W+-ZB=+—H 63,055 77,524
Note: B 5

(@)  Total fair value changes of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$16,295,000 (2020:
HK$20,094,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year, which the fair value
loss attributed to Level 3 financial assets amounted to
HK$16,730,000 (2020: fair value gain HK$20,239,000) and
the fair value loss attributed to other payables amounted to

HK$435,000.
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRAKRERE®=

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category BENESZEHMEEREGBHRE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and rEENGEEARIZcMEERE
liabilities as recognised at the end of the reporting period are BEREEYRUTEINE D M TA
categorised as follows. See Note 4 for explanations about PDEHHBHEZ X ERBPAI2HMN
how the classification of financial instruments affects their 5F4o0

subsequent measurement.

2021 2020
—ET—fF —ETZHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Financial assets ETMEE
Financial assets at fair value BAREFAEBRZ
through profit or loss ETHMEE 63,055 77,524
Financial assets measured BEERATEZ
at amortised cost: ETRMEE
Rental deposits HE®RE 5,855 4,821
Trade and other receivables FE W BR R R EL A
FE W R I8 108,604 41,771
Finance lease receivables FEEFEE W 3,230,407 1,787,039
Pledged bank deposit BIRRIRITER 349,418 25,468
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 526,837 798,263
4,284,176 2,734,886
Financial liabilities TRAaRE
Financial liabilities measured BEIEM A E
at amortised cost: =L
Convertible notes Al B 132,644 122,565
Lease liabilities HE&E 1,135,788 1,092,676
Trade and other payables FEE A BR R B EL A
NERE 112,850 58,206
Borrowings & 4,236,119 2,555,945
5,617,401 3,829,392
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED +[ BUS P 1 75 4 24 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

REVENUE

Revenue represents the gross amounts received and receivable
for revenue arising on big data business, civil explosives
business, hotel operation, industrial parks and property
development, property investments and wellness elderly care
business, goods sold and services rendered by the Group to
outside customers less return and allowances and gross rental

income, interest income generated from financial leasing and

ETET—F+"_F=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

WA

WATIEFRBABEEL RAR
VERED BIEED EXBERMFER
BR-MERERABEEEXT  &&
EEsRERHESRMIEHRRE L
MERERE RITINUARE WA BERFR
EEZBEWRBRZWAMBE - BARE
HEPREEZH B WA KB IR UER

consultancy fee income received from outsiders during the BHRBEE WA
year.
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised FRETRAFTEINSEETEEZHI
during the year is as follows: HEZEWT :
2021 2020
—EZ—%& TETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&B7))
Continuing operations FERE X
Revenue from contracts with customers WME—RIIRBHER
recognised at a point in time: EHZWATESR :
Construction of platform and operating AEBEEEBRTS
income from big data business K& EIRA 12,121 7,886
Consultancy service income from financial MEHREAER
leasing AR U A 62,817 68,479
Logistics income from civil explosives business R FBIRIERER
EmA 11,032 3,492
Operating income from industrial parks and EXxERYEERE
property development EE WA 7,126 693
Operating income from wellness elderly KEBEEEERE
care business (Note i) BEURA BT 32,103 1,928
Other income from hotel operation IS EMEEWA 934 902
Sales of emulsion explosives THE AL ICVFEEE 129,815 82,792
255,948 166,172
Revenue from contracts with customers A E—RERREER
recognised over time: BHZ AR .
Service income from hotel operation BEEEWA 6,161 5,062
Service income from industrial parks and EXERYMEZRE
property development AR U A 1,149 5
Service income from wellness elderly care ABREEEER
business (Note ii) R 75 WA (B &) 45,651 379
Technical service income from big REIREF M
data business AR FE WA 19,937 18,023
72,898 23,469

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4E#}t

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Hp [ 8L 3% ¢ B 45 BR 23 5]




w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

7. REVENUE (continued) 7. WA @
2021 2020
—EBF —BIBF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
(Restated)
(E7)
Revenue from other sources: Hithg AR :
Rental income from hotel properties BIE M & WA 5,036 4,233
Rental income from industrial parks and EXxBERYELERE
property development HEWA 22,509 588
Rental income from investment properties REMERSTEYE
and properties held for sale WA 11,128 8,970
Interest income from financial leasing KEMEHEED
B UA 153,327 90,123
192,000 103,914
520,846 293,555
Notes: MsE -
It includes medical care service income, operating income from () HhOiEEBEREMA S BEEZRBEE
elderly care services platform and others. SEEIW AT E Mo
ii. It includes management service income, nursing care service (ii) HhoiEEERB A EIERBE K
income and service income from elderly care services platform. ANMEBZREESRBKA
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. HEpBE
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised ASBEN AEBEREBIASAELE
into seven operating divisions — big data business, civil MRS IR AR KR EIR R BIRVE
explosives business, financial leasing, hotel operation, industrial RER - HEHE - AEEL - EX
parks and property development, property investments and MY ERE - YEREBNNAREEEHE
wellness elderly care business. These divisions are the basis on FRoRERLUIMENFAEEZRHE
which the Group reports its primary segment information. BESIER o
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED H 3 B2 £ i A i 43 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Principal activities are as follows:

Big data business — industrial internet platform
construction, smart city
construction and big data
operation and management

Civil explosives — manufacture and sale of emulsion

business explosives and industrial
detonating cords

Financial leasing

provision of finance lease consulting
services and financing services in
the PRC

Hotel operation — hotel ownership and management

Industrial parks and
property

holding investment in the
development and construction of
industrial parks

Property investments holding investment properties and
properties held for sale
Wellness elderly care — comprehensive elderly care services

business

For the property investments, the management reviews the
financial information of each property investment, hence each
property investment constitutes a separate operating segment.
However, the property investments possess similar economic
characteristics, and are with similar development and selling
activities as well as similar customer bases. Therefore, all
property investments are aggregated into one reportable
segment for segment reporting purposes.

T-BOX® business was discontinued since year 2020. The
segment information reported below does not include any
amount for this discontinued operation, which is described in
more details in Note 12.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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DEER @

FEEHBUT
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EiE
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MEKE - ["ARBVERK
FEDE
REEEE - %%,T:.Eﬁ“
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BE_E_—F+_A=+—HLHFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information about these continuing operations

presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

8. NEEN @

EMRERERNBCEZEB Y
RN :

Segment Revenue Segment Result

DEBA DEEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
:g:_ﬁ 7—7E :g:_ﬁ 7—7E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E7)
Big data business PN EX 32,058 25,909 5,955 1,907
Civil explosives business RERIBIERER 140,847 86,284 (12,048) 663
Financial leasing RERE 216,144 158,602 85,187 81,111
Hotel operation BIEER 12,131 10,197 (6,422) (7,898)
Industrial parks and property EXBERYEERE
development 30,784 1,286 3,859 (28,814)
Property investments MERLE 11,128 8,970 16,245 (3,653)
Wellness elderly care business AERBEEER 77,754 2,307 2,876 (2,979)
Total @t 520,846 293,555 95,652 40,337
Bank interest income RITFEUA 7,722 14,510
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of STABHRZEMEEY
financial assets at fair value through A& GEiZ) /M
profit or loss (16,295) 20,094
Finance costs (excluding interest on ~ ¥ H (FBEHRE
lease liabilities) a8EZHME) (51,831) (72,659)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HERANEFAEBEZ
fair value through profit or loss TRBEEZWE - 1,620
Impairment loss on other receivables  EfthFEWFRIE 2 FE18% = (38,033)
Interest income from wealth REBEHERPAEWA
management product 284 418
Loss on the disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMNB AR RIAHE
and an asset classified as BEZEX
held for sale - (39,177)
Net central administration cost R RITE R AN F 4R (28,102) (28,359)
Net exchange gain BRI DT 389 17,308
Net loss on step acquisition DL WEZ FBK - (5,667)
Professional fee HEER (5,920) (4,462)
Share of profit of associates fELEE R B RBA 25,361 67,897
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI, (F518) 27,260 (26,173)
Income tax expense PSR (16,382) (39,333)
Profit/(loss) for the year KERF]/ (F518) 10,878 (65,508)
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED F |3 B3 32 15 47 B 43 7]
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B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There was no inter-
segment sale in the current year (2020: Nil).

Segment result represents the profit generated by each
segment without allocation of bank interest income, (decrease)/
increase in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, finance costs (excluding interest on lease
liabilities), gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, impairment loss on other receivables,
interest income from wealth management product, loss on
the disposal of subsidiaries and an asset classified as held
for sale, professional fee, net central administration costs, net
exchange gain, net loss on step acquisition and share of profit
of associates. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
management for the purposes of resources allocation and

performance assessment.

Note: Certain reclassification have been made to the prior year to
conform with the presentation of the segment result for the
current year.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. AWEH @
Segment assets and liabilities NHEERER
2021 2020
—E-—% —EC-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(&87))
Segment assets DWEE
Continuing operations FBRE 2 X
Big data business REIBEER 24,098 12,871
Civil explosives business ERAEIERER 444,366 410,302
Financial leasing FEAE 3,260,087 1,801,201
Hotel operation BIE =TS 138,233 146,978
Industrial parks and property development EXxERYEERE 2,479,546 1,877,030
Property investments MERKE 355,306 292,309
Wellness elderly care business KEEREEED 31,414 12,201
Total segment assets HWREEE 6,733,050 4,552,892
Pledged bank deposit BIRFIRITER 349,418 25,468
Cash and cash equivalents HWEMIREEEY 526,837 798,263
Interests in associates REE N B 2 = 556,026 569,674
Financial assets at fair value BARESAERZ
through profit or loss TREE 63,055 77,524
Other unallocated assets HEMEkpicEE 71,190 81,429
8,299,576 6,105,250
Assets relating to discontinued operation B&RIHESEIK Y
BE 125 121
Consolidated assets EEBE 8,299,701 6,105,371
Segment liabilities pak= A=Vl
Continuing operations FERE X
Big data business REIEET 19,186 14,537
Civil explosives business ERBIERER 121,889 131,688
Financial leasing MERE 2,913,635 1,275,786
Hotel operation BIEER 2,648 4,455
Industrial parks and property development EXERYEEE 1,844,354 1,464,788
Property investments MERKE 110,370 163,071
Wellness elderly care business ABEEEEET 37,548 2,112
Total segment liabilities woEaEd 5,049,630 3,056,437
Convertible notes Rk e 132,644 122,565
Borrowings (EEN 877,706 886,216
Other unallocated liabilities HMk DA &aE 46,163 50,722
6,106,143 4,115,940
Liabilities relating to discontinued BARILEREEE
operation aE 1,102 1,099
Consolidated liabilities mAaR 6,107,245 4,117,039
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
T —F+"H=1+—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

BHEZ

8.

e

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

2021

Continuing operations

8. NEEN @

Hith 3 BMEHR

RBEEEZER

Industrial Wellness
Civil parks and elderly
Big data  explosives Financial Hotel property Property care
business business leasing operation development investments business Total
RRBRER EXER AR
AUEEH % HMEHRE BEER MEER MERE BEEY st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AlTn ek AT ARTn AlTR AT AT ekl
Depreciation of property NE -BERRERE
plant and equipment 1,228 13,960 942 9,522 4,228 2,790 1,842 34,512
Depreciation of EREEENE
right-of-use assets - 176 - - 33,283 - - 33,459
Additions to property, NE- -BERZERE
plant and equipment 2,233 42,533 153 126 551,495 477 4,416 601,433
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE BER
plant and equipment REZBX - 8,071 - 56 - - - 9,027
Allowance for expected MERERKTZ
credit losses on finance BHEEREEE
lease receivables - - 9,847 - - - - 9,847
2020 (Restated) TETTFE (F3)
Continuing operations SERE X
Industrial Wellness
Civil parks and elderly
Big data explosives Financial Hotel property Property care
business business leasing operation  development  investments business Total
RERER EXER AR
AYEER % RERE BEER MEER NERE BREEH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BB BETT BB BETTT BETT BB RETT
Depreciation of property NE -BERZERE
plant and equipment 367 4115 862 9,276 652 2,707 1,192 19,171
Depreciation of PREEERE
right-of-use assets - 58 - - 31,024 - - 31,082
Additions to property, NE -BERRERE
plant and equipment 1,778 5,899 232 163 437,639 69 3,921 449,701
Additions to property, plant and ~ f1— Fﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘é‘ﬂ J
equipment upon step —ENEA
acquisition from an associate ﬁﬂﬁlﬁ'ﬁﬂ%% .
10 a subsidiary BERZERE - 233,720 - - - - - 233,720
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE -BERZEZ
plant and equipment B% 3 29 - 1 - - - 33
Allowance for expected MERERUZZ
credit losses on finance it uﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
lease receivables - - 14,589 - - - - 14,589
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Geographical segments

The Group’s big data business, civil explosives business,
financial leasing, hotel operation, industrial parks and property
development and wellness elderly care business are located in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), other than Hong
Kong.

Property investments are located in both the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of
operation and information about its non-current assets by
location of assets are detailed below:

DEEE @
R E D EE R

FEBZARBEEZT RRAEBEFRE
B RMEBEHE EEEXER EXERY
FEBRMARBEEEXEBUNRPEA
REME (MhE) - FEEEE-

MERBEHIUR T KREE -

AEBERBIIEER ZRTHIZEEM
BN hEFRDEEREENES
DZBER RN

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets”
SNERER P Z S R E FEREBEE

2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEH —EZ—F —ZIEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT T AT BT T
The PRC s 520,285 293,314 1,970,946 1,475,941
Hong Kong 58 561 241 19,505 19,506
520,846 293,555 1,990,451 1,495,447

*

Non-current assets excluded deductible value added tax,
deferred tax assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, finance lease receivables, goodwill, interests in associates,
rental deposits, right-of-use assets and other unallocated non-
current assets

Information about major customers

During the year, HK$130,433,000 out of the Group’s revenues
from continuing operations of HK$520,846,000 arising from
civil explosives business were contributed by a customer. And
the customer accounted for approximately 25% of Group’s
total revenue.

* FERPEEFBERGFRINEGER
EIERMBEE - B AREBEFABRZ
TREE REAEREE - B
ERElzEm HERE -EARE
EREMRDEIFRBEE

FEEZREHN

RERN > REREBE®520,846,0007T
REFEREZEBNEEEXHENW
AFEBEERREREBFRERNAER
130,433,000t M AZRBEEH — I %K
FoMEBZEFEENBAGEAER
ZEETBBALN25%
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BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HILEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 9. HME&EZEWA
Other operating income included the following items: HME&EWABIEUTIER
2021 2020
—_T_—F B_BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Continuing operations FERE X
Bank interest income RITH EWA 7,722 14,510
Compensation and government subsidies B U 7 18 Ko BT 488 B
received
— Direct government grant —BUBEEER 11,306 21,746
- Recognition of deferred income — I 3R 3 Wi o T 5T 93,139 47,736
Dividend income iz S WA 959 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets at FVTPL  HERZA R EFT A
BazEMEEZ
W - 1,620
Income from lending of emulsion matrix REHELBEES
production capacity ERERUA 4,540 -
Interest income from rental deposit KEHEREN
FIB WA 271 217
Interest income from wealth management RBIEMERD
product 7F'J SUA 284 418
Net exchange gain U P EE 389 17,308
Rent concession %ﬂ%ﬁi B - 5,085
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. BAFE S Y

2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT

Continuing operations TIRIRE 2 ¥
Handling fee FEE - 9,526
Loan arrangement fee ERLHE 3,202 3,140

Effective interest on the following: THEIBEZ BRI E

- Bank loans —iRITEM 25,195 39,096
— Convertible notes — Al G B 13,404 12,437
— Lease liabilities —fHEaE 55,234 51,037
— Loan from an associate —Hﬁ%é‘@ﬂz%‘ﬁ - 782

— Loan from immediate holding company —BEEERAE
B 3,136 2,745

— Loan from a non-controlling interest —JFER R
=EN 2,677 922
— Other loans —HMMER 4,217 4,011
107,065 123,696
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11.

"2 —F+"B=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FIEHRAX
2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations TIRIRE 2 ¥
Tax charges comprise: RIEMAZ B4 .
Current tax: KIS :
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax R TSR
B (27,234) (34,3293)
(Under)/over provision in previous year: BEFE BEFD
/BRRRE
PRC Enterprises Income Tax FEl TSR (1,339) 573
Deferred tax (Note 33): IRIEFR IR (MI5E33) :
Temporary differences arising in current year ~ NEZ HEEER 12,191 (5,583)
(16,382) (39,333)
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% AEEGTEZERNEMNHNEENER

(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for the first HK$2,000,000 of a qualified entity’s
assessable profit which is calculated at 8.25%, (2020:8.25%) in
accordance with the new two-tiered tax rate regime with effect
from the year of assessment 2018/2019.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at
25% for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 25%).

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FhiiFMREX @

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit RiEGeEsREME2EREER X

MIAST HP] B @A H AR > WHMWMT

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRIATRA, (B5i8) 27,260 (26,173
Tax at the rates applicable to profit in the BRERBERNENES
countries concerned ZHREFEZRIE (7,123) 2,755
Tax effect of share of profit of associates FEAL ”Tﬁbﬂ
M5 & 6,940 7,568
Tax effect of non deductible expenses ENGIEaL A
METE (53,167) (66,772)
Tax effect of non taxable revenue FEERRIMAZ
IR 50,243 29,656
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERRIBEEIEZ
M5 & (12,166) (13,619)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to PRC BFHRERBABZ
subsidiaries MBER 230 506
(Under)/over-provision of previous year BEEEZ BHETR)
/B (1,339) 573
Tax effect for the year REEZRBLE (16,382) (39,333)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The outbreak of COVID-19 has impacted the operating
environment of the Group’s T-BOX® business. In this regard,
the Board resolved to cease the Group’s T-BOX® business
(“discontinued operation”) on 1 July 2020 after considering the
difficult operation environment.

The results of the discontinued operation included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below.

The comparative profit/(loss) and cash flows from discontinued
operation have been re-presented to include those operation
classified as discontinued in the current year.

ETET—F+"_F=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

BERIEEZET
MR RS BEEHNT-BOXOE
BIRBENTE-BILMS > TR
BNEERE BEEGREN_S-F
FLtA-—HRLEXREBENT-BOX X
(TERLEEEZER)) -

WE-E-—F+-A=+-BIL%E
Bt AR EakEMEERARK
GERENERIERIELEXER 2
EEFHIN T

REBKRIELE XK 2 EREA (B
TE) RIRERECEEY  UBzEE
BOBRARNFEERIEREER-

2021 2020
—E—F ZEIEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Revenue A - 16
Cost of sales THE A A = (1)
Gross profit EH] - 15
Other operating income HMZE WA 14 60
Administrative expenses THRX (5) (559)
Finance costs Mz = (46)
Profit/(loss) before taxation before ERIERE T
discontinued operation BRI EIRF (B518) 9 (530)
Income tax expenses TS8R~ - -
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued BRI E T
operation and attributable to owners NEERBF, (BB)
of the Company & /NSTE 2PN
m&EF,/ (E518) 9 (530)

228
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. BRIEREZEH @)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operation include the ERIEKCEEFAEERF (FH1B)
following: BEUTEIE:

2021 2020
—EZ—F —BTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Auditor’s remuneration ZE NN & - -
Depreciation e - -
Cash flows from discontinued operation BARIKEEBIRNER

2021 2020
—E”—F —E2TE2H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Net cash outflows from operating activities REREEHIRE
TR EER (6) (608)

Net cash inflows from investing activities REREBEEHRE
AP ER 14 980
Net cash inflows RERAEEE 8 372

None of the assets nor liabilities related to the discontinued

operation was classified as held for sale.

ERIEKEEEBHEBZEENERL
REDERTHE-
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13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

ETETT

e

—FE+"B=+—HLEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

13. NEEREF (E518)

2021 2020
—EZ—F “ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT
Continuing operations RFEREZER
Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at EEERA/ (BB
after crediting/(charging): Bt A (k) -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEE =
Audit service BETRT (1,800) (1,700)
Non-audit service FEE R (100) (494)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME--BEREEITE (37,011) (21,796)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE (33,459) (31,082)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERZEZ
plant and equipment BE (8,999) (39)
Net exchange gain bE S U # 2R 389 17,308
Operating lease charges RERERY (97) (64)
Allowance for expected credit losses on EWER 2 TEREE
trade receivables FiERE (499) -
Allowance for expected credit losses written EWER 2 TEREE
back on trade receivables BB H 2 Ol # 5 15
Allowance for expected credit losses on MEHERKRZ
finance lease receivables B EEERE (9,847) (14,589)
Impairment loss on other receivables HifEWRIE 2
RERK — (38,033)
Impairment loss on properties held for sale EYERERK (1,900) (1,598)
Cost of inventories recognised as expense EE IAEZZEERA (179,360) (41,876)
Total staff costs BET A
Directors’ remuneration (Note 14) EEME (M5E14) (8,938) (7,603)
Other staff cost HthE TR A (148,707) (69,446)
Retirement benefit schemes contributions HME T ZEK
for other staffs BRI ST R R (8,295) (6,348)
Termination benefits KIFEHNEF (43) (11,341)
(165,983) (94,738)
Gross rental income from investment properties REMEZRATIWA 29,593 9,309
Less: e
Direct operating expenses from investment FRNERSWAZ
properties that generated rental income BREMEZ
during the year BELERY (272) (89)
Direct operating expenses from investment FREHASHBAZ
properties that did not generate rental BREMEZ
income during the year BRELERY (1,249) (867)
28,072 8,353
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

14. EFREIME

a. Directors’ emoluments a. EEME

BENSEM AR (CEZEF N
2)EFEAZMEOT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine
(2020: eight) Directors were as follows:

2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fees HwE BETIT BT T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. He Xiangming faImAR T E 120 120
Mr. Fu Weigiang RFERAE
(Appointed on 1 October 2021) RZ2Z—%F
+A—BHEZT 30 -
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR L4
(Resigned on 5 September 2020) (RZEB_Z=4F
HBHBFT) - 90
Mr. You Guang Wu HERSTE 120 120
Mr. Huang Zhihe =EEMAE 120 120
Ms. Wang Xin T mz+ 120 120
Mr. Cheng Weidong BERELE
(Appointed on 1 January 2021) RZZ2Z—%F
—A—HEZD 120 -
Independent non-executive BIERITESE
directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai ok R 128 5 A 120 120
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PR 3E A ST 120 120
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B R & 120 120
990 930
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

a. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

14. EERETINE @

a. EEM=E @&

2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Salaries and other benefits e RHEMET BETIT BT T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. He Xiangming faImAR T E 600 600
Mr. Fu Weigiang RFERAE
(Appointed on 1 October 2021) RZEB_—%
+A—BHEZT 150 -
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR L4
(Resigned on 5 September 2020) RZE2EZZ=HF
NBEBERMD - 450
Mr. You Guang Wu HERSTE 600 600
Mr. Huang Zhihe |EMEE 420 420
Ms. Wang Xin T mz+ 420 420
Mr. Cheng Weidong BERELE
(Appointed on 1 January 2021) RZEB_—%
—A—HEZD 420 -
Independent non-executive BIERITESE
directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai ok R 128 5 A — -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PR 3E A ST - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B A - -
2,610 2,490
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

14. EERETIMNE @

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ BU¥ P £ B2 v
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4F#

a. Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a. EZEME @
2021 2020
—E”—F —E2TE2HF
Performance-based or ¥BRIRW HK$’000 HK$’'000
discretionary bonus BB R 2 TE4L BT T BT
Executive directors HiITES
Mr. He Xiangming ] A BR 4 &= 936 936
Mr. Fu Weigiang R aE
(Appointed on 1 October 2021) (RZT——%F
+A—HEZE) 237 -
Mr. Lin Pingwu MIFE L
(Resigned on 5 September 2020) RZEB_Z=F
HBEBBERE) - 701
Mr. You Guang Wu HERSTE 936 936
Mr. Huang Zhihe BHEMAE 655 655
Ms. Wang Xin F Mzt 655 655
Mr. Cheng Weidong BEREEYE
(Appointed on 1 January 2021) R —&F
—A—HEZMT 655 -
Independent non-executive BIEMITES
directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai FeR B & 51 A - -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng FRIER ST E - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B 7 T - -
4,074 3,883
2021 2020
—E_—F —EIZTHF
Retirement benefits HK$’000 HK$'000
scheme contribution BRIKEF BRI BETT BT
Executive directors BITES
Mr. He Xiangming fImBR 4 304 63
Mr. Fu Weigiang ﬁf%':?@?ﬁi
(Appointed on 1 October 2021) RZEZ—%F
+A—BEEF) 45 -
Mr. Lin Pingwu MER L
(Resigned on 5 September 2020) (RZEZEF
LB ABBEET) - 47
Mr. You Guang Wu BERSTE 304 84
Mr. Huang Zhihe =S M 232 53
Ms. Wang Xin T mz+ 232 53
Mr. Cheng Weidong BERLE
(Appointed on 1 January 2021) RZEZ—%F
—HA—B®EZEMF) 147 -
Independent non-executive BIERITES
directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai ok R 128 5 — -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BeR 3 BY ST - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B 7R T - -
1,264 300
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include their
services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Group. No directors had waived any emoluments
for both years. Save as disclosed above, no other
emoluments were paid or payable to any director.

During the year ended 2021 and 2020, no emolument
had been paid by the Group to the Directors or the five
highest-paid individuals referred to in (d) below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ material interests, transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance
to which the Group as a party and in which a director
of the Group had material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors

No loan, quasi-loan and other dealing in favour of
directors of the Group or body corporate controlled by
such directors, or entities connected with such directors,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 14. EEREIME @
EMOLUMENTS (continuead)
d. Five highest-paid individual d. LZEREHFMAL
During the year, the five individuals whose emoluments RERN AEEBRLELEZE
were the highest in the Group for the year ended 31 T+ A=+t—HLEFER
December 2021 are directors whose emoluments are EEMALTTAEZES  HlET®
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 14a. No fisE1d4an e Br TES 29N 8
individual other than the directors has been included in EEMEMALTEAARLLES
the five-higher-paid individuals. AL
15. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 15. B BER K3
The Group contributes to a defined contribution retirement AREBERBBERKSZEHNASTE
scheme which is available to Hong Kong permanent employees KA BERMBRETHRE TRKTE
under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance. This FERKRAE T2 EEHBILEEAE
retirement scheme is administered by independent trustees B EAEREENDRAFE - BTER
with their assets held separately from those of the Group. KRB ZHANLDBRECEREEN S
Contributions under the staff retirement scheme for each Z2REEBDLESHE LERGGEG
year are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ Hitt2mWmRkAiRe SFEZTEIZ
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of MR A B IE140,561 0 (CBE_BE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred. AHE49,6447T) RENGREEBEKEHE
The total contribution to the scheme amounted to HK$140,561 Al ERATNFR - RIEELIEZREE
(2020: HK$49,644) for the year and has been charged BRORET B 2 H AL B B HA B BE B T A
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Bz M ATEAEEBALUBREE
comprehensive income. Forfeited employer contributions in HR-ERFEARN UEEEHZ R
respect of former employees from the staff retirement scheme o

before vesting period may be used by the Group to reduce
its ongoing employer contributions. There is no forfeited
contribution utilised during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no balance of RS EARAS R o W2 WA
forfeited contributions available to reduce the contribution B AR LURD R E Z B RR o

payable in the future years.
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15.

16.

17.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (Continued)

Since the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF Scheme with Bank Consortium Trust
Company Limited effective 1 December 2001 to provide an
MPF Scheme to all employees. The contributions borne by the
Group are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages (monthly
contribution is limited at 5% of HK$30,000 for each eligible
employee) as calculated under the MPF legislation. During
the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the MPF Scheme and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$223,642 (2020: HK$81,050).

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
make the required contributions under the schemes.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is
based on the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$15,500,000 (2020: loss of approximately
HK$83,871,000) and on the number of 1,712,329,142 ordinary
shares (2020: 1,712,329,142 ordinary shares) in issue during
the year.
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15.

16.

17.

EERKETE =)

BEEBHTRAMLAEE (B
MR REBFRR _EE—F+_F—
BE2MTHREETLEERAT ZRA
BEEE AMEETRMERBEE
B o RERB ZHRLRIRBE R IEHIR
HERMEZ25%:18 (EGERKET
2 & B MR BE30,0007T25%) ©
MRABEEE  AEBEABEETEH
TMEERGEERREMEEREAR
k2 M8 58Z B 18023,6427T (Z &2
T 4F D BH81,050) ©

TEMNBARZEESTREBFEE
HEREERKEF T EIBALE - PE
MEBAREZE T EMEN—ELLA
MR AREA S B U E B B REF] o A&
B BRREANFENE-—SERRE

PR E MO HRET B o

e
EERHATRERFBE_T_—
FE+ZA=t+—HILEARS t_g:
BE o

ZhREE

REFBEEEEBRERILEEER

SRELAREEEBLIREAE
EEEABLAFEBBOEE
15,500,00070 (Z B -4  FEH
B #83,871,0007T) A FEE 1T
1,712,329,142Z B (ZEZFF .
1,712,329,142EE0%) st&E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_E_—F+_A=+—HLHFE

17. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 17. EREE @)

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

REFBEEEZER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

ERBEEAANBEZERERKREE
BEZSETER TIEUE

2021 2020
—_E_—F —ETFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Loss for the year attributable to owners of FEBERES
the Company KNBVEER A (15,500) (83,871)
Add: pi[I
(Profit)/loss for the year from discontinued  FRBER FLLE
operation 7% (BA) KB (9) 530
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss AR st EIFELE
per share from continuing operations (B BREAR
BEEE (15,509) (83,341)
Number of shares RipgE
2021 2020
2% —ETEF
’000 000
T T
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of R FEERER
basic loss per share BiEZZ BB 1,712,329 1,712,329

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both the basic and diluted loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no HE_S
diluted loss per share as the exercise of the convertible notes

would have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.
EE o

FiIERZz DR EXRsFAgRES
B iRPTEF L& AE R o

T ER-EISE+A
SH—BLER CESREBEES
AABMTEIREEREEERS
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HILEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

17. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

From discontinued operation

Basic/diluted earnings per share for the discontinued operation
is HK0.0005 cents (2020: loss per share HKO0.03 cents) per
share, based on the profit for the year from discontinued
operation of HK$9,000 (2020: loss of HK$530,000) and the
denominators details above for both basic and diluted earnings

17. SREE ©

RECRIEKEER

ERIEREEBEREN HERT

%858 7B 10.00051 (

f% E5 8 A& 1£0.031) -
IS ERE B ABEE,000T (ZE =
T FFIEABEES30,0007T) RERE

—ETEF B
»TLIRBERBER

per share. KRB EBNMEFRFRZ DEFE-
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REM=
In the PRC  In Hong Kong
held under held under
medium-term medium-term
leases leases Total
R E X REBEN
PHEFRANEE FERFRAFE Ha%E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT BT T
FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT REMEZARE
PROPERTIES
As at 1 January 2020 RZEZZF—HF—H 293,915 19,500 313,415
Transferred from construction HEEITEEE
in progress 17,446 - 17,446
Increase in fair value recognised in REBERERZ
profit or loss AR 49 - 49
Exchange difference ERELE 19,148 - 19,148
As at 31 December 2020 and R-_EBEZEH
1 January 2021 +=ZA=+—HBkK
—E-—%—HF—H 330,558 19,500 350,058
Additions NE
Transferred from construction HEETEEE
in progress 389,374 - 389,374
Increase/(decrease) in fair value REBERBERZ
recognised in profit or loss AnEEM GAL) 17,679 (1,000) 16,679
Exchange difference fE R A 18,443 - 18,443
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—%F
+ZB=+-— 756,054 18,500 774,554

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Hp [ 8L 3% ¢ B 45 BR 23 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All of the Group’s property interests held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

During the year, the Group added an investment property
through transferred from construction in progress amounting to
HK$389,374,000 during the year.

The carrying amount of investment properties amounting to
HK$392,543,000 (2020: HK$312,114,000) have been pledged
to secure general banking facilities and mortgage loan granted
to the Group.

Investment properties were revalued at their open market value
at 31 December 2021 by Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers
Ltd., an independent firm of professional valuer, on an open
market value basis. The valuation gave rise to a revaluation
surplus of HK$16,679,000 (2020: surplus of HK$49,000),
which has been recognised in profit or loss.

Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers Ltd is a member of
the Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

18. IREYE »)

FEBRMARFAEURNESZHIFER
BERRZYERZHURAARBERI
SR UDBRARSKEDE-

RAER > #H18389,374,000c 2 B Y)
ECHRETEIRSEA

S EYE 2 IREE 7 A& 15392,543,000
T (CEZEF  B1312,114,0007T)
BIRBUEREFTEAEEZ —KRIRT
BE R IE IR o

BEYER _E_—F+_-_F=+—
HHEBYSEXGHEMBBREERAE
THREARTEEMGEETR NAF
EEMBGHABN16,679,0007t B 5T A

FEEnkx (CE_ZTE . BiRABE
49,0007T) ©
HHEERAETARADASBME

EMREEEE UHAABERKAL
HrREEt R AERUEZ KR -F
HLENERBEERLGEEN RS ER
LMERZHERETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. REWE »

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s investment properties were classified under level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Level 3) based on the degree to which the inputs

tFEEERZEESANEERNRELE
H-EEENENARER  BRIER
MENRBSRRERSR -

K%lz&é%%%& PR/ ARESE
BB MR-NEANLEBEATEANE
ﬁ%z%ﬁ’w

TERAEHUAFEREMEZ LR
BEN BREHEREZREBZHA
B) URRBEAREHUEREED
BEAARENETEHRAANBESTRESR
(FE=M) -

to the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair Value Valuation
Hierarchy Techniques

DREER fEEAR

Relationship of unobservable
Significant unobservable inputs  inputs to fair value

TEBUBRZUE BUBRZBEARRENRE

Commercial unit Level 3 Direct comparison Estimated market unit sale price The increase/decrease in the market
located in Hong Kong method per square feet unit sale price would result in an
increase/decrease in the fair value of
the property
IR EBZEEE B=R BRELLEE B mBEMETARER G EHEERIEN,/ A A&
WMERAERM/ AL
Commercial units Level 3 Direct comparison Estimated market unit sale price The increase/decrease in the market
located in PRC method per square metre unit sale price would result in an
increase/decrease in the fair value of
the property
(NN ETPAEE SN B=R BRELEE G mBEMETAKER TIBEHEEHRIEN /B AE
MEQAEEM, AL
Industrial units Level 3 Combination of direct Estimated market unit sale price The increase/decrease in the market

located in PRC unit sale price or replacement cost
would result in an increase/decrease

in the fair value of the property

comparison method and ~ per square metre and
replacement cost method  replacement cost

IR Bz THEE( R BREBER BEmREASTHREER L E‘“”ufﬁ&ﬁﬂi%ﬁmi‘m/
BEMAEAS BEMA HORERMERAEEM/ R
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 ]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. E -BERZE
2021 B
Furniture,
Land and equipment
Hotel buildings and
property inHKand  Construction leasehold Plant and Motor

in the PRC the PRC in progress  improvements machinery vehicles Total

REER fRfih
RAEFEZ HEREZ ®ER BER
BENE THRET ERIE BFRE W HE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ARTT AR ARTT AR ARTT ARTT AR

COST AND VALUATION F§ &R {t(E

t 1 January 2021 R_E_—F
—B—H 115,000 458,004 573,025 81,634 38,820 8,539 1,275,022
Additions m RE - 74 590,464 8,928 - 2,067 601,533
Transfers/Reclassification &4 /E#H4 - 45,831 (80,848) 4,045 30,204 768 -
Transfer to investment ~ EEZREBYNHE
oroperty - - (389,374) - - - (389,374)
Disposals and write off ~ HE R - (7,625) - (1,344) (1,691) (956) (11,616)
Deficit on revaluation EftRE (5,000) - - - - - (5,000)
Exchange difference BRER - 13,257 21,197 2,354 1,811 270 38,889

At 31 December 2021  RZE_—%

+-B=+-H 110,000 509,541 714,464 95,617 69,144 10,688 1,509,454
Comprising: 25
At cost % - 509,541 714,464 95,617 69,144 10,688 1,399,454
At valuation - 2021 HE-25-—-F 110,000 - - - - - 110,000
110,000 509,541 714,464 95,617 69,144 10,688 1,509,454
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 January 2021 RIBZ-F
—B—H - 18,205 - 30,059 7,041 3,569 58,874
Provided for the year FEEE 5,111 13,620 - 10,623 6,352 1,305 37,011
Eliminated on disposals 1 & Rl iR K
and write off s - (194) - (1,202) (402) (749) (2,547)
Eliminated on revaluation 7 E & E 4 (5,111) - - - - - (5,111)
Exchange difference ERES - 475 - 895 343 81 1,794
At 31 December 2021  R_E_—%
+-B=1+- - 32,106 - 40,375 13,334 4,206 90,021

CARRYING VALUES  ERE3&E
At 31 December 2021  R_E_—%

+ZB=+-H 110,000 477,435 714,464 55,242 55,810 6,482 1,419,433
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED [ BUS £ 1 £5 B 23 ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4F# 241



/> # =3
Gro AR b R
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HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ME -BER=E @
(Continued)
2020 TECEF
Furniture,
Land and equipment
Hotel buildings and
property in HK and Construction leasehold Plant and Motor
in the PRC the PRC in progress  improvements machinery vehicles Total
REER i
REEREZ HEREZ FER BER
BENE THRET TRIR BFRE R nE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BETT BT BT BT BETR BT

COST AND VALUATION R R ftfE

At 1 January 2020 RIZZEE
—B—H 115,000 228,694 119,262 65,266 18,089 3,340 549,641
Additions RE - - 439,915 6,888 232 2,666 449,701
Additions upon step H—REHEAFE
acquisition from —BRBARZ
an associate to a PEWEZIEM
subsidiary - 208,202 4,932 4,440 13,959 2,187 233,720
Transfers/Reclassification &% /#1748 - - (5,069) 700 4,369 - -
Transfer to BRERENE
investment property - - (17,446) - - - (17,446)
Disposals and write off  HE Rifiik - - - (45) @ 21) (70)
Exchange difference EREH - 21,108 31,441 4,385 2,175 367 59,476
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-TE
+-B=1+-H 115,000 458,004 578,025 81,634 38,820 8,539 1,275,022
Comprising: (2ER
At cost [N - 458,004 573,025 81,634 38,820 8,539 1,160,022
At valuation - 2020 fhE-
“E°%E 115,000 - - - - - 115,000
115,000 458,004 573,025 81,634 38,820 8,539 1,275,022
DEPRECIATION ¥ S
At 1 January 2020 RIZZZE
—B—H - 12,340 - 20,380 3,655 3,175 39,550
Provided for the year ~ EEHf 4894 5412 - 8,204 2,990 296 2179
Eliminated on disposals 7 & R HIIRE
and write off s - - - (19) - - (19)
Eliminated on revaluation 1 E {4 B4 (4,894) - - - - - (4,894)
Exchange difference EREH - 453 - 1,494 396 98 2,441
At31 December 2020 R-Z-TE
+ZB=+-AH - 18,205 - 30,059 7,041 3,569 58,874
CARRYING VALUES IREFE
At 31 December 2020  R-Z_EfE
+-A=+-H 115,000 439,799 573,025 51,575 31,779 4,970 1,216,148
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 8 BUE P2 188 7 B 43 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10. E - -BEREE @

(Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s buildings

The Group’s hotel properties situated in the PRC were valued
on 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 by Associated
Surveyors & Auctioneers Ltd., an independent valuer not

related to the Group.

The fair value of the buildings were determined based on the
direct comparison method that reflects recent transaction
prices for similar properties, adjusted for differences in the
nature, location and condition of the buildings under review.
There has been no change to the valuation technique during

the year.

The Group’s hotel properties were classified under level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfer into or out of
level 3 during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

If hotel properties had not been revalued, they would have
been included in these financial statements at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation of HK$56,677,000 (2020:
HK$59,115,000).

EREFOAEE
FEERURPEZBAESYER _-F
T+ ZA=+—HRZIZEZEZEHF
TRt HHEBIEXEEMD
BEERBETARABEMGE

BREYMZAREZRBEERELLBE
BBPTRRBIE IR 5 B WE B
B BFRAESBERRUFHAE
FARGED L EEE -

FEBZEHEMNERDBERANES
BB =M-NEANLEEABEANE
HE=M-

R MEZRARER WEZEBSR
RFZBENDNREZRFEE-

WA EEMBENE ABEEDER
Y2 S8 Y AR 3T B 7% B 1556,677,0007T

(ZZE_ZF : #159,115,0007T) 5t
NSRS

Fair Value Relationship of unobservable inputs
Hierarchy Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs  to fair value
RAEER EsS IERNBR 2 HE EURZEZHBEARERNRRE
Hotel property in PRC Level 3 Direct comparison method ~ Estimated market unit sale price per  The increase/decrease in the market
square metre unit sale price would result in an
increase/decrease in the fair value of
the property
RABEZBENE B=R BRELLEE B mBEMETAKER hGEIHEERIEN, A TER

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Ho [ B3 ¢ B A BR 23 6]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

20. GOODWILL

20. &

Acquisition of
Guangdong

Tiannuo Investments
Co., Limited”

(formerly known

as Guangdong Tiannuo
Civil Explosives

Co., Limited*)
WKEEER KA
REBRAQE
(RIBTERXFERIR
BRAF
HK$’000
BT
COST (D%
At 1 January 2020 T _THE—FA—H -
Step acquisition from an associate to H—EEE BRI —RBNBARZ
a subsidiary 7 WS 2 38 0 125,024
Exchange difference bE R E%R 7,127
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RIE2EZZEF+"HA=+—HK
—E-——HF—H 132,151
Exchange difference E =28 4,379
At 31 December 2021 A _E_—F+_HA=+—H 136,530
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT 2itRE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and A TETEF—F—H»
1 January 2021 TETEF+_A=+—HK
2 —%—HF—H _
Impairment loss recognised MR ABEIEK -
At 31 December 2021 RZE2-_—F+"FA=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES IREEE
At 31 December 2021 N_EZ-_—F+"HA=+—H 136,530
At 31 December 2020 A\ ZEZIEF+ZA=+—H 132,151

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

20. GOODWILL (continuead)

For the impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business
combination was allocated to individual business segment that
management considers representing the Group’s separate
cash-generating unit (the “CGU”), which is the civil explosives
business.

The recoverable amount of the civil explosives business
CGU was based on its value in use and was determined
with the assistance of Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuer. The calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period, and at discount
rate of 10.68 % (2020: 11.56%). Cash flows after the five-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% (2020: 3%) growth rate in
considering the economic condition of the market. The growth
rate used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the five-
year period do not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the industry.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the
industry information and management’s expectation for the
market development including the fluctuation in civil explosives
business in the current economic environment.

Management determines that there is no impairment of the
goodwill at the end of the year since the value in use of the
civil explosives CGU calculated by using discount rate is higher
than its carrying amount.

20.

BE @
ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@%ﬁéﬁ%%%
HEODOREEEERAREALE

BENRsEEEM MRABIELE
BoRBEEFDE-

ABIIEEGEMRETLERRAE
BT RRBRIFRER CREELS
A el 2 E HiIREERE
BzstEMEBETE ZstBEAMNRERR
EENRERELEEMZHNEAFH
B EBE K 10.68% (ZE 2T .
11.56%) MITIRESTE - AFHMUEN
BERE2% (CE_FF:13%)ER
EHRE LIS RETRIELSEKR =015

BT - B & HILUS IR & B SRR
R IEEETNGBBITENENT
R

HMARGEEREENEIEZERRY
RBEHERERENNRERAAE
b ZAHEDERITEENREERE
HHEERNPE GEEMNKERIE
TRABRIFFRERBRE

EEERS ARNREABRIFMEFNIR
TELBEUZEREERNAKEE"
HIt > BEEFRTFERERSK-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The movements in the Group’s interests in associates,
(including goodwill), during the year are analysed as follows:

21. RS TR

AEEBRAFEMGHEQATD ZEa
(BEEE) EFHOMNT -

2021 2020
—g8_—%F —ETEHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
At 1 January t—H—H 569,674 651,873
Share of post-acquisition profits LU B R R F] 25,361 67,897
Share of exchange difference FE(SPE 2 = %8 18,284 33,654
Distribution from post-acquisition profit WiE®R 2 REDE (57,293) -
Step acquisition from an associate to H—EEE QT J
a subsidiary — BB RE
DU EE - (183,750)
At 31 December K+ZA=+—H 556,026 569,674
Details of each the Group’s material associate at the end of the PREPRAEESEAHE LA F
reporting period are as follows: BUWT -
Proportion of Proportion
Principal Class of ownership of voting rights
Form of Place of place of shares interest held held by Principal
Entity Name the entity incorporation operation held by the Group the Group activities
&R
FRfsEa1E FEEFRE
BRLE BRETL A TTEEMY FERMER 4] BRERLH TEEH
2021 2020 2021 2020
- CTZZZF B CZ°ZH
Nanhai Changhai Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary 31.875% 31.875% 31.875% 31.875% Generation and sale
Power Company of electricity and
Limited (Note (a)) heated steam
AERERE Bl FEAR FEAR ZER REREBERANA
BRAF HAE HAE e
(i)

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note:

(@)

On 18 March 2019, the Group entered into a capital increment
agreement with another existing investor in which the registered
capital of Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* (“Nanhai
Changhai“) would be increased from USD31,132,460 to
USD32,235,446. The transaction was completed on 11 October
2019. The Group did not subscribe for additional shareholding
and accordingly, the equity interest held by the Group in Nanhai
Changhai decreased from 32.636% to 31.875% after completion
of the transaction. Deemed disposal of an associate amounted
to HK$3,993,000 is recognised in the Group’s interest in Nanhai
Changhai as at 31 December 2019.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

material associate is set out below. The summarised financial

w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

REBEATER @
M 5%
@ WIE—-—hAhE=ZB+N\H Xx&EH

NEERESZEEARAA (MER
B1) ZEMEARKHS1,132,4605% 7T
8 f1%32,235,44655 T B —EIRE
HEET N TIEERE LRSI
T-—NE+A+—HEM AEEL
FREBEEEEIMG R > UL R B3R 5 FE AR
BOAEEREEREMEEZRE
FH32.636% FPEZE31.875% R4
7B 13,093,000t iR A H & — R B
EABBR _E—hE+A=+—
HzAEEREESREZEE T IUE

=
B ©

ERA-EBRZBEARN ZUBERE
SHEINMT - UTHHEMEEZZ5)5

information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s BEARZMBRERZEH BRRE
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. B IR SRR
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* ABREBUHERRAA

2021 2020

—_E_—F —ETFF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Current assets MENE E 1,024,979 1,006,635

Non-current assets EREBMEE 2,127,734 1,562,036

Current liabilities mEaE (581,560) (375,365)

Non-current liabilities EliEl =K = (827,583) (409,8086)

Net asset value BEFEH 1,743,570 1,783,500

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21.

Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* (Continued)

REE B D @)

EERBEBERAR (B)

2021 2020
T —F B_BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Revenue LON 1,665,465 1,248,277
Profit for the year KEEREF 80,273 212,442
Exchange differences for the year FEERERE 55,595 103,005
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2EMWmAREE 135,868 315,447
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to REETHERRPEDH S 7&2
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised ZEREEHE FI B E R /th
in the consolidated financial statements:
2021 2020
—E-—% —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Net assets of the associate BENBI 2 EBESRR 1,743,570 1,783,500
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in &N&E BN EE &S
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited BERERBZ
HERERPIG
BOX 31.875% 31.875%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in KEEBREERE
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited BEERRE
(Note) a2z REE
(MF5E) 556,026 569,674
Note: B 53
On 22 March 2019, the Group’s shareholdings in Nanhai Changhai RIZE—AF=ZBAZ+ZH > xEEREE

Power Company Limited* decreased from 32.636% to 31.875%.
There was undistributed profit due to the dilution of the Group’s
shareholdings in Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited*. It is
therefore the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Nanhai
Changhai Power Company Limited* as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
cannot be directly calculated by multiplying its net assets with the
proportion of the Group’s ownership interest.

*

For identification purpose only

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Hp [ 8L 3% ¢ B 45 BR 23 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22,

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

g’&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ\?ﬁEZﬁﬁﬂﬁ

2021 2020
—EZ—%& TETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Analysed as: DR
Non-current e B
Unlisted equity investment (Note a) FELETROEE
(Mfzta) 8,187 13,643
Current: TMED
Option granted for selling the 72% equity BY—RERERD
interest in a subsidiary to non-controlling HEFTIEER
interest (Note b) HERT2%REDN
HAE (Mf5Eb) 54,868 63,881
63,055 77,524

Movement of financial assets at FVTPL is analysed as follows:

BARBEHAEGZEREEZES
LI

2021 2020
—EZ—%& TETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
At 1 January *—H—H 77,524 54,757
Additions upon step acquisition from H—RE#E AT E
an associate to a subsidiary —ERE ARz
3 U 2 18 0 - 5,012
Disposal during the year FRHE - (6,909)
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of financial FAERZEHREE
assets at FVTPL ZRARME R
1Em (16,730) 20,239
Exchange difference PERE%R 2,261 4,425
At 31 December R+-B=+—H 63,055 77,524
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BE_EC

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes:

The fair value of the financial assets was approximately HK$63,055,000
(2020: HK$77,524,000) as valued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited,
an independent firm of professional valuer.

a.

*

The unlisted equity investments represent equity interests issued

by unlisted entities in the PRC.

(i)

(i)

On 30 October 2019, the Group acquired 33% equity
interest in Foshan Baihualin Investment Management Co.
Ltd.*, a company was established in PRC and engaged
in providing capital investments and funds management
services. As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the
equity investment was approximately HK$1,309,000
(2020: HK$1,034,000).

On 22 November 2019, the Group acquired 12.6% equity
interest in Shenzhen Waicheng Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*, a company established in PRC and
engaged in investment holding,. As at 31 December 2021,
the fair value of the equity investment was approximately
HK$4,155,000 (2020: HK$8,306,000).

On 31 August 2020, the Group acquired an additional
2% equity interests in Guangdong Tiannuo Investments
Co., Limited (“Tiannuo”), an associate of the Company.
Upon the completion of acquisition, the Group will be
deemed to have controlling power on Tiannuo. Thus,
Tiannuo will be deemed as a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Tiannuo held 7.16% equity interest in
Guangdong United Civil Explosives Co., Ltd.* (BE &
BB FR/AT), a company established in PRC and engaged
in agent services for the sale of emulsion explosives and
industrial detonating cords. As at 31 December 2021,
the fair value of the equity investment was approximately
HK$2,723,000 (2020: HK$4,303,000).

For identification purpose only
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—FE+"B=+—HLEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

22, BARETAE

6=

P5E

M2 EREE

TRHMEEZANERB UL EEGLEMRR
A R A B hEA B 163,055,0007T (Z
LT 1 BET7,524,0007T) ©

a. RFLHROREERENEREF
EHZERETHREES

(i)

(ii)

RIE—AFE+A=+HB %
ERKBEOEMEEEERR
AB) (—ER BRI A B
ﬁéiﬁfﬁémﬁé%ﬂﬁéﬁiﬁ
BR75) Z33% MR A HE %5 o
TR —F+ZHA=+— Ei’
ZRMBEZ AAEANBIE
1,309,0007t (ZEZZ & B
1,034,0007T) °

RZE2E—h&F+—AZ+Z
B> AEBKRBE RN TERE
EEBLE BREE (—HER
FEAT REBEREZERNA
T)ZQG%W&$&‘°%§
T —F+ZHA=+—8>
ZRMBEZ AAEANBIE
4,155,0007c (ZE 2T F B
8,306,0007T) °

— =

R_EEFENA=+—8">
NEBMBE—BHEABTER
AAREBRAR RIBIER
XERBEBRAE) (TXRH)
2% TR B RIE
B AEBMEGRANESIRE
RAIKERBEABNIERE
ZERWBAG - REEBER
HEREBRATE (—REFPEH
Jﬁi’ﬁé%ﬁfﬁﬁ FL 15 Ve B
BIEERMWATE) 7.16%M R4
&*oé&zi_v:—fﬂrﬂ%
_+ B RAEmZARE
) H 82 723,000 (T &=
§¢.4s%pmhdo
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23.

w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_E_—F+_A=+—HLHFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22,

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. This represents the Group’s has the right to sell the partial or all
of the equity interest in the Company’s subsidiary, Guangdong
Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Limited* (B &= RRHER
BRAT]), to the non-controlling interest. As at 31 December
2021, the fair value of the sale option was HK$54,868,000
(2020: HK$63,881,000).

Details of the fair value measurement of the financial assets for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 6.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BRASMESABEZEMEE
(&)

MisE : (&

b. ERIEAEEEARERFOIEEREDR
HEXARQRTAZHBADERTER
HERBRATZ MDA IFARME-
HE_Z-_—E+"_FB=+—H 4
EHEZ N A EA B E54,868,0007T
(ZE =% B¥63,881,0007T) °

HE_Z2_—F#+_-_B=+—HLt*H=E
EtREE AAESEZFIBFEH
FABE 526 ©

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 23. FREEEREEER
LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets FEREEE
2021 2020
—E—fF —ETEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 January w—A—H 1,014,500 988,067
Addition g 69 -
Addition upon step acquisition from H—REE AT E
an associate to a subsidiary —EREARZ
D UEE 2 1E 0 - 312
Depreciation provided during the year FRFHRITE (33,459) (31,082)
Adjustment on rental deposit HHEERE
EH B R R 2,063 (1,952)
Exchange difference bE R E%R 33,035 59,155
At 31 December “+—B=+—8 1,016,208 1,014,500

The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to
use underlying leased premises under operating lease
arrangements over the lease terms, which are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liabilities.

*

For identification purpose only

ERAREEREAEBRRBELENER
FREEHANEEREREEYEZ
A HU AR RSHTE R Rt RIE
BE (AMEAEEERENFAETU
) FER o
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23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 23. FRAEEERESEGEE®
LIABILITIES (continued)
Lease liabilities HEaR
2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Maturity analysis B
- Contractual undiscounted cash flows: é\/ NRAGIRIRE
/)ItLE .
Within one year R—&FR 52,708 50,675
Over one year but less than two years Bid—FEIRn
i E 56,099 50,994
Over two years but less than three years =R IR SEDYN
=4 56,063 54,265
Over three year but less than five years EiE =gl
Eag:S 117,133 109,149
Over five years BidhHE 2,134,733 2,121,907
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at REXRZKRMIRHEE
the end of the year BEAREE 2,416,736 2,386,990
Less: total future interest expenses B RRA E R AR (1,280,948) (1,294,314)
1,135,788 1,092,676
Analysed as: DER
Current BNHEA 52,708 50,675
Non-current JEBNHA 1,083,080 1,042,001
At 31 December W+ZB=+—H 1,135,788 1,092,676
The Group recognised rental expenses from short-term leases REAN REEBEDEBEEZHEM
of approximately HK$97,000 (2020: HK$64,000) during the B IEYT,000T (ZEZEF 1 498
year. #64,0007T) °
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23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position

w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

HESE @)

23. FRAEEEKREEGR @

RS BRREANEEZ 2

2021 2020

—E—F —E2TZ2HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETIT BT T

At 1 January t—H—H 1,092,676 1,024,830

Addition i 69 -
Additions upon step acquisition from an H—RE#E AT E
associate to a subsidiary —EREARZ

U 2 18 0 - 385

Interest charged to profit or loss SFAETMF B 55,234 51,037

Payment during the year KEBNR (48,515) (42,029)

Rent concession HEHE - (5,085)

Exchange difference bE R E%R 36,324 63,538

At 31 December W+-ZB=+—H 1,135,788 1,092,676
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23.

24,

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

23. FRAEEEKREEGR @

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEeEasE @
Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit RirSBmREMEm K R ERZ
or loss and other comprehensive income E]
2021 2020
—E—fF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest on lease liabilities HEsGEZHE 55,234 51,037
Depreciation e 33,459 31,082
Rent concession TS RE - 5,085
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of RS R ENERERZERE
cash flows
2021 2020
—E-—% —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Total cash outflow for leases MEZRES ML 48,515 42,029
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE TEME
Properties held for sale are stated at net realisable value. They SEMEDDUERFEI R oZE

are held under medium-term lease in the PRC during the year
(2020: under medium-term lease).

The cost of properties held for sale incurred and recognised
as expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021 is HK$nil.
(2020: nil).

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Hp [ 8L 3% ¢ B 45 BR 23 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78
2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Raw materials Rt
Chemicals for manufacturing emulsion HIEVFEREIER
explosives and industrial detonating cords YEREZRH 4,622 3,030
Fuels AL 81 77
Finished goods X &
Emulsion explosives and industrial FLAEVEEE R B IR R
detonating cords 2,480 1,209
Food, beverages and hotel supplies B B ROBIE
HEm 868 907
Health smart devices HEEERE 35 34
Medical supplies BERAMm 820 -
Pharmaceuticals B 994 -
9,900 5,257
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in BHE_Z_—H+_A=+—HLHF

profit or loss amounts to HK$179,360,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: HK$41,876,000).

The Directors considered the provision for obsolete inventories
is not required. (2020: Nil).

= Eﬁub%%ﬁiiﬁ)\%%ﬁzr =1 N
27 18179,360,00070 (ZE T4 &
#41,876,0007T) ©

EERNEANBHNFESIEAE
BECEZEF 8

26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 26. FIE A EE W
2021 2020
—E-—fF TR TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Analysed as: DA
Current SREN 777,069 438,765
Non-current JETRED 2,453,338 1,348,274
At the end of the year REXR 3,230,407 1,787,039
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26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Minimum lease

26. FIEHERKE @

Present value of

payments minimum lease payments
RIEEEAR RIEHEMRZRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEF —EZ—F g
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BBFIT AT BBFIT
Finance lease receivables comprise: ~ BiEHEEIREIE
Within one year R—ER 967,370 542,618 777,069 438,765
Over one year but less than BB —FEFBEWF
two years 1,038,634 502,756 902,321 425,779
Over two years but less than BEmEENBBAE
five years 1,702,841 1,030,475 1,572,212 939,947
Over five years BB AHF 7,046 - 6,863 -
3,715,891 2,075,849 3,258,465 1,804,491
Less: Unearned finance income B AR BEEGR] B WA (457,426) (271,358) N/A RiER N/A 8
Present value of minimum lease R RERENRZRE
payment receivables 3,258,465 1,804,491 3,258,465 1,804,491
Less: Allowance for expected B EREEREREE
credit losses (28,058) (17,452) (28,058) (17,452)
3,230,407 1,787,039 3,230,407 1,787,039

Movements of allowance for expected credit losses on finance

MERAERRRZEMEEBERER

lease receivables are as follows: BT :
2021 2020
T —F —ETFH
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
At 1 January w—B—H 17,452 1,913

Allowance for expected credit losses MR FEHREERIE

recognised B 9,847 14,589
Exchange difference PE R E%R 759 950
At 31 December ®+ZBA=+—H 28,058 17,452
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-S- E+-B=t QLEE

26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All leases are denominated in RMB. The term of finance leases
ranged from less than 1 year to 6 years (2020: 1 to 5 years).
The effective interest rates of the finance leases ranged from
4.98% to 11.50% per annum (2020: 5.30% to 10.40% per
annum).

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection with
finance lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements
that needed to be recorded as at the end of the reporting
period.

The finance lease receivables are secured by the leased assets,
mainly plant and machinery. The Group is not permitted to
sell or repledge the collaterals of the finance lease receivables
without consent from the lessee in the absence of default by
the lessee.

Estimates of fair value of collaterals are made during the
credit approval process. These estimates of valuations are
made at the inception of finance lease, and generally not
updated except when the receivable is individually impaired.
When a finance lease receivable is identified as impaired,
the corresponding fair value of collateral of that receivable
is updated by reference to market value such as recent
transaction price of the assets.

As at 31 December 2021, the pledged finance lease
receivables amounted to approximately HK$2,643,168,000
(2020: HK$1,211,168,000).

Security deposits received from customers represent finance
lease deposits received from customers, which will be
repayable at the end of the lease period of the respective
finance leases. As at 31 December 2021, security deposits of
HK$132,625,000 (2020: HK$78,340,000) have been received
by the Group, in which security deposits of HK$11,626,000
(2020: HK$3,207,000) were classified as current liabilities
and the balances were classified as non-current liabilities,
based on the final lease installment due date stipulated in the
finance lease agreements. All security deposits are non-interest
bearing.

None of the finance lease receivables at the end of the
reporting period is past due. Details of impairment assessment
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 6.

26.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

FIEHEREWER @

FFEMEHEUAREHE sJIuIMEMR
EHBPENFIOR—EFEEZEAE (CE
“EF—ELF) MEMHAEZER
FEMENF498%FE11.50% (CE =
F I EFEKE30%ZFE10.40%) ©

RBEHR TEERREEELH N
HABE LB Z RIEFRFEBRBEEANK.

MEHRERRMUBEEEEFER £
ERBE RS - EABALEENRN
BRT REEBAABDR AEBRF
PENBRENREBERERZIE
fRame

REEEMBRET HIERRZARE
R b5t e R EMEZ AT RILA
EHEERFEL WEETEEMN FRIF
& YRR IE H IR B B R B B E B R  E B
ERE RGBSR E R > Z B
THERENERAAERZ2ENE
B WEELHRRZER) Bif-

RZE-_—F+_"HA=+—H B
LB B WA B 152,643,168,000
T (T ZZF 0 B11,211,168,000
7T) °©

BERELARERENHIEERETARE
HERS BRI EHEHRBE
BFEE R _E_—F+"_A=+—
H» AEBEBUWIZE B 1£132,625,0007T0
(ZE =4 1 B1878,340,0007T) * H
&S HAEK11,626,0000 212 %
(ZZ2ZZF  B¥S3,207,0007T) Jh 5
RIEMEREHETMIBZ &REHE
BN REPHE»EARBEE &
MEREDBAERBEE ZEXLEA
RErBo

REREHAZR > P A Rl B & B UG &
BH-BHE T _—HF+_-_F=+—H
IEBY R E A B E A M E6 0
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27. DEDUCTIBLE VALUE ADDED TAX

Deductible value added tax (“VAT”) mainly represents the input
VAT relating to purchase of property, plant and equipment,
which is deductible from output VAT. Those expected to be
deducted within one year is presented in other receivables.

27.

HIEIEER

FHRNEERTEEIANENHEER
RERNERBEYNFE BEKRRHEN
EIRIRER - ERFIENIBERRAS TS
E—FMIED-

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. FEUNBRTR T H fth FE K FRIE
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on BRaEREBE BRSNS AEE R
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is BRZRZEREBUEEET - KE

normally required. The Group allows an average credit period of
90 days to its customers.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade and
other receivables after deducting the allowance for expected
credit losses presented based on invoice dates at the end of
the reporting period:

EiGTHERTH0RZEEH-

AERRRSHRREZZAHZY
2 P& U AR 7R e HL th & WSURR TE AL 40 TR HA
EEHEEREEZRENINT

2021 2020
=B BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT TT

0-60 days 0E60H 33,719 21,429
61-90 days 61ZE90H 3,217 894
91-120 days 91E120H 3,277 838
Over 120 days HBi#®120H 6,620 670
Trade receivables FE UL BR =R 46,833 23,831
Other receivables (Note i) Hh U sIa (ki) 96,931 42,754
143,764 66,585

Note: B sE -

Hh @ E a0 ER  EWARE
FEWA) B R BT R e R ERNMIGIEE
TEEWRKREZHIBER £EAD
HB#£40,917,0007T (ZEZZ 1 ) ©

It includes deductible value added tax, dividend receivables, (i)
interest receivables and prepayments. The increase during the

year was mainly related to the existence of dividend receivables

amounting to approximately HK$40,917,000 (2020: HK$ Nil).

AERTERZFEHRTE TR
mAHMAEEERF

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

At as 31 December 2021, trade receivables over 90 days
amounted to HK$9,897,000 (2020: HK$1,508,000) were past
due but not impaired as the balances were related to debtors
with sound repayment history and no recent history of default.

An aging analysis of trade receivables that were past due but

28. FEWER A R ELMh FEUR FRIE (42)

R_E_—F®+_B=+—H 86
90 H B FE W BR 7 <& 2B 78 1159,897,0007T
(ZZ =4 B¥1,508,00078) &
B BARPEREFEABREZAOM
S0 8RR 3T HE R X 50 8% B R 7E B R
EE

BHABARIRE Z RN ERRBIBRE IO T ¢

not impaired:
2021 2020
—EZ—fF “ETEHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
91-120 days 91ZE120H 3,277 838
Over 120 days BiB120H 6,620 670
9,897 1,508

The Group’s largest trade receivables balance amounted to
HK$10,470,000 (2020: HK$19,712,000) at the end of the year.
Moreover, the Group’s five largest trade receivables balances
amounted to HK$29,350,000 (2020: HK$23,072,000) in total at
the end of the year.

REFR > AEBZ RABERERREH
%7AB110,470,000C (ZEZEF 1 B
#19,712,0007z) ° tboh > RERAKE
ErRAABEEWRRRGHREEAD
29,350,000t (ZE T F | B
23,072,0007T) ©
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HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28.

(Continued)

Movements of allowance for expected credit losses on trade
receivables are as follows:

PR LSt B oK T L At R Wi vk T

B ZAREEBERRENES
meE:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

HET T BT

Balance at the beginning of the year R EF 4 ER 251 251
Allowance for expected credit losses W2 A EEER

recognised B s 499 -
Allowance for expected credit losses written BHREEREREE

back o] $3 (5) (15)

Exchange difference PERE%R 17 15

Balance at the end of the year MRERGEER 762 251

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are
set out in Note 6.

The carrying amounts of the other receivables were no past
due.
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BE_E_—F+_A=+—HLHFE

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

a)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

- BRERFEEFEYRERF

IRITEM

() RERFREFEMELE:

2021 2020

—E—fF —ETEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Cash at bank and on hand RITRIREMEER 876,255 823,731
Less: pledged bank deposit A BIERIRITER 349,418 25,468
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIBEEHEY 526,837 798,263

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand held by the Group and bank time deposits.

Bank balances are interest bearing at respective saving
deposits rate in the Hong Kong and PRC, and the
effective interest rates of the Group’s bank balances
range from 0.01% to 2.50% per annum in Hong Kong
and from 0.3% to 2.63% per annum in PRC. (2020:
0.02% to 2.63% per annum in Hong Kong and 0.30% to
2.19% per annum in PRC).

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits amounting to approximately HK$349,418,000
(2020: HK$25,468,000) have been pledged to secure
a bank borrowing and is therefore classified as current
asset.

ReMkBeSBYEEAEEFRRN
FIRTT BT RIRITTERFR

RITEHRLHBREBRTESEN
ERMEE MAEEIRTE
BHNERFENEESEN F0.01
EZE2.50E  EHRENF0.3EE
263 (ZEZEHF . ZEFANT
0.02EZ2.63/E > £ E /T F0.30
EZE2.19E) o

E#&ﬁfﬁﬁr‘—ﬂx%mﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁu

SEYAERFETREZF

?A » #)B16349,418,0007T (&

T | BH25,468,0007T) BITF

ET’E%%EHF*‘EMEH@ » F I
ﬁiﬁ%mt@]§§0
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HE_Z_—F+_"_HA=+—HLILEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 20. HERIINELXEEBY R BIKF
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (Continued) RIT1E =

a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Continued) (a)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

RERRTEE/MEE . (@)

RERRESBEYRRE S
T EEEHE !

2021 2020

—E-—%F —ETEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT T BT 5T

Hong Kong Dollars o 14,259 21,665
Renminbi AR 512,469 717,596
United States Dollars =TT 109 59,002
526,837 798,263

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$518,735,000 (2020: HK$781,062,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible
currency in the international market. The government of
the PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the government of the
PRC.
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (continued)

b)

w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—FE+"HB=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

20 REXREEZEBYREIE

IRITER =

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RMEBEZEBFREENEEHIEE
activities
Interest
from Convertible Lease
Borrowings borrowings notes liabilities Total
fam ER ) AR EE HEaRE ek
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AETT BRI AETT AT AETT
At 1 January 2021 A ZE-_—-E—F—H 2,555,945 4,836 122,565 1,092,676 3,776,022
Changes from financing rﬁﬁfﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ :
cash flows:
Proceeds from borrowings BIFETIE 2,380,354 - - - 2,380,354
Repayment of borrowings BEER (788,833) - - - (788,833)
Interest paid BAFE - (31,933) (3,325) - (35,258)
Interest element of lease EfNHEE %E%Z%‘ E=iby
rentals paid - - - (48,515) (48,515)
4,147,466 (27,097) 119,240 1,044,161 5,283,770
Other changes: HEthgs .
Additions i - - - 69 69
Exchange difference EREHR 88,653 - - 36,324 124,977
Interest expense FEHY - 35,225 13,404 55,234 103,863
At 31 December 2021 —22-&+ZH
=+—H 4,236,119 8,128 132,644 1,135,788 5,512,679
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (continued)

b)

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Hp [ 8L 3% ¢ B 45 BR 23 5]

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

—FE+"B=+—HLEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

20. RERRESFEYREIER
RITER @

(b) REZBFEENGGEHEK (@

Interest
from Convertible Lease
Borrowings borrowings notes liabilities Total
BN BIFE RRER HESE BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT BETT
At 1 January 2020 RZEZTE—-F—H 2,150,087 9,235 113,453 1,024,830 3,297,555
Changes from financing REREREH .
cash flows:
Proceeds from borrowings BIFETIE 1,097,897 - - 1,097,897
Repayment of borrowings BEER (818,914) - - - (818,914)
Interest paid BAFE - (52,001) (3,325) - (55,326)
Interest element of lease BNHEE %H%Zﬂ 1%
rentals paid - - - (42,029) (42,029)
2,429,020 (42,766) 110,128 982,801 3,479,183
Other changes: Hitneg) .
Additions i - - - 385 385
Acquired through step-acquisition 538 F3 — 5 & /A 5] 5
from an associate to a subsidiary —EMBARZDY
WEEER 58,245 - - - 58,245
Elimination on step-acquisiton ~ HA—EKE AR E—E
from an associate to a subsidiary BAT 295 I
i (26,966) - - - (26,966)
Exchange difference ERER 95,646 - - 63,538 159,184
Rent concession HERE - - - (5,085) (5,085)
Interest expense FIERHX - 47,602 12,437 51,037 111,076
At 31 December 2020 RZIZZEE+ZA
=+—H 2,555,945 4,836 122,565 1,092,676 3,776,022
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HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. FE{FERFA R EL{th FE (T TR 1B

The credit period granted by the Group’s supplies ranges from AERRFHEBZEEHNFI0H
30 days to 90 days. FO0H-

AEERBEHR RERQRETZ
EARMZREDFMT

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
payables based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

period:
2021 2020
—E-—%F TETTE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
0-60 days 0Z60H 32,680 6,668
61-90 days 612 90H 330 249
91-120 days 91&120H 1,329 34
Over 120 days 8120 6,290 73
Trade payables FETBRFR 40,629 7,024
Other payables HMEARIE 135,158 87,552
175,787 94,576
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuec) 30. FETARFR B HL Mt FE (T FRIE (@)
Other payables included the following items: HiENHRIBESE T IER
2021 2020
T —F —ETFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BIETIT
Contract liabilities (Note iii) aHas’ (ki) 588 4,224
Deposits received from customers BWEFEE 23,929 6,440
Receipts in advance FEURER R 14,954 868
Other tax payable (Note i) HMEA R 1E (faki) 19,162 20,671
Staff salaries and welfare BI s REN 45,196 23,449
Provision for termination benefits BIEENEN G 9,057 11,876
Others (Note ii) H it (Bt 5Eii) 22,272 20,024
135,158 87,552
Notes: MIEE -
Other tax payable mainly includes value added tax payables. () HOEMRBEIZEFEEMGIEER-
i.  Others include interest payables, accrued expenses and other (i) HMBEECFE BYERKAM
temporary receipts. B R ©
i.  Movements of contract liabilities are as follows: (i) BHEEEENT:
2021 2020
B T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 January w—B—H 4,224 293
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRHERUW EER
recognising revenue during the year that sHaERD
was included in the contract liabilities REBVIGT AN EE
at the beginning of the period (4,581) (182)
Increase in contract liabilities during the year —~ FERER &L EFEE N 928 3,884
Exchange difference FERELR 17 229
At 31 December w+ZBE=+—H 588 4,224
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to KREBEH EHH RSB LR
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe. RETBEERNHRBEBANEERREANZ T
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 8 S £ 7 W45 ]
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HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. B

2021 2020
—EZ—F —BTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Asset-backed securities (Note a) BEEXFRES (W5a) 471,225 192,246
Bank loans (Note b) RITEE (5Eb) 3,180,632 2,128,019
Loan from immediate holding company (Note c) BZZER AT ZEMN
(MfzEe) 136,000 90,000
Loan from non-controlling interests (Note d) FEEERR E m B
(B 5Ed) 31,655 61,565
Other bonds (Note €) HiEs (iste) 147,239 _
Other loans (Note f) HhE R (MI5E.) 269,368 84,115
4,236,119 2,555,945
Secured B 3,654,972 2,027,069
Unsecured SR 581,147 528,876
4,236,119 2,555,945
Carrying amount repayable: FEEIRARTE -
Within one year —FR 1,610,078 1,250,142
Over one year but less than two years BE—FE81EBB
m 758,706 463,974
Over two years but less than five years B8 W B A
FiR:s 1,632,250 636,046
Over five years BidhF 235,085 205,783
4,236,119 2,555,945
Analysed as: DERA
Current liabilities nEas 1,610,078 1,250,142
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 2,626,041 1,305,803
4,236,119 2,555,945

During the year, the Group settled borrowings amounting to
HK$788,833,000 (31 December 2020: HK$818,914,000).

REFER FAEECEEERSBE

788,833,0007T (B ZE—

FoFEC

H=+—8 : #818,914,0007T) °
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31. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

At 31 December 2021, Asset-backed Securities (“ABS”)
amounted to HK$471,225,000 (2020: HK$192,246,000) are fixed
rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates ranged from
6.05% to 6.07% (2020: 6.07%) per annum.

At 31 December 2021, bank loans amounted to
HK$2,646,377,000 (2020: HK$2,128,019,000) are variable-
rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates ranged
from 1.42% to 6.18% (2020: 1.95% to 6.50%) per annum. The
remaining bank loans amounted to HK$534,255,000 (2020: Nil)
are fixed rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates
ranged from 4.05% to 7.50% (2020: Nil) per annum.

At 31 December 2021, loan from immediate holding company
amounted to HK$136,000,000 (2020: HK$90,000,000) are fixed
rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates ranged from
3% to 4% (2020: 3%) per annum.

At 31 December 2021, loan from non-controlling interests
amounted to HK$30,675,000 (2020: HK$61,565,000) are
variable rate borrowings which carry effective interest rate of
4.75% (2020: 4.75%) per annum. The remaining loan from non-
controlling interests amounted to HK$980,000 are fixed rate
borrowings which carry effective interest rate of 4.65% per
annum.

At 31 December 2021, other bond amounted to
HK$147,239,000 (2020: HK$NIl) is fixed rate borrowing which
carries effective interest rate of 6% (2020: Nil) per annum.

At 31 December 2021, several loans of other loans amounted
to HK$49,080,000 (2020: HK$83,135,000) are variable-rate
borrowings which carry effective interest rate of 5.23% (2020:
4.75% to 5.23%) per annum. The remaining loans of other loans
amounted to HK$220,288,000 (2020: HK$980,000) are fixed
rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates ranged from
5.73% to 6.30% (2020: 4.65%) per annum.
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ATE T —F+-/FA=+—H Hth
B35 HE18147,239,000 (ZBEZZ
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31. BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, certain
borrowings of the Group are secured by investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, pledged bank deposit, pledged
lease receivables, pledged paid-up capital of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary and future rental receivables. For the details
of the pledge of assets, please refer to Note 40 to the financial
statements.

The Group’s borrowings denominated in the following

31.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B @)

TR -FRIZFEF+TA
=+—HB > FEEETRITERURE
ME-ME - -BERRKRFE BETIRT
FR BEAREEERKN  EER
FEEWNBARNZEHELRRRRKRE
WHE AREERMZFE F2H
MR ARMIEEA0

RERZEMUM THERHE !

currencies:
2021 2020
T —F —ETFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong Dollars 7B K 212,017 189,370
Renminbi AR 3,357,433 1,668,749
UsD ETT 666,669 697,826
4,236,119 2,555,945

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Ho [ B3 ¢ B A BR 23 6]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 44

269



270

e MR b

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 12 March 2019, in accordance with the terms and condition
of the 2014 CB, the Company entered into the extension deed
with the holder of the 2014 CB, Prize Rich Inc. (“Prize Rich”)
to extend the maturity date of the outstanding 2014 CB in
the principal amount of HK$166,232,000 by 5 years from 13
October 2019 to 13 October 2024 (the “Extended CB Maturity
Date”), with all the terms and conditions of the outstanding
2014 CB unchanged. On 23 May 2019, after passing the
ordinary resolution to approve the extension deed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting, the extension
deed became effective. The 2014 CB was redeemed and new
convertible notes with the same terms and the Extended CB
Maturity Date (the “2019 CB”) was issued.

The 2019 CB in the principal amount of HK$166,232,000
(of which its fair value at the issuance date is approximately
HK$109,616,000) bears coupon rate at 2% per annum and is
convertible into shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.76 per share at any time following the issue date up
to the maturity date. At any time prior to the maturity date of
the 2019 CB, the Company is entitled to redeem in whole or in
part of the 2019 CB. Unless previously redeemed, converted or
purchased and cancelled, the 2019 CB will be redeemed on 13
October 2024. The 2019 CB carries interest, which is payable
annually in arrears or upon the conversion or redemption of the
notes.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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32. AR ERE

RZZE—-—NF=RA+=H 1R#&E2014
AR ER RN MG AR A

20140 IR = #R 5B APrize Rich Inc.
STILIERARR I LI i R EIBE R IR AR
BZHBHHBRZ-AFE+A+=H
EAFETNE+A+=0"
REBRZ20140 R BE 2 FTBIRR

RiEHErg R _ZE—AFRAZ+=
H> BREREKREIFHIAE LEBZER
EEMEERRZER EHRZEIELX
ERM2014F ARG BIR B HE D] > i 22
TEEHBBRAMREET#REREE
BHZH AR ER (2019 K=
) o

& AHB166,232,00075220198]
BEER (EQAAERBTEHAORE
#%109,616,00070) 2 I FE S X2E 5
B RETEREAGEEEIREH
BRI ZERESRKRERL.76TERS
AT BED o 7220197 #a fs 24 B A
BHARIEAER > A BB BRI
EBD2019F MR EIR o fRIFL A EE
O] 8o g B Kty T HI201907#
REREEN _Z_NE+B+=RHE
Ble 2019 M EHEZFESFHRN
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32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The convertible notes contain two components,

32.

liability, and

equity components. The equity component is presented in

equity under heading “convertible note equity reserve”.

The

fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion

component were determined at the issuance of the notes.

Movements of liability component of the notes for the year are

set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

T?ﬁﬂ JE /VE

_H@EQ?TF EmEn—BfRkEnD
Do 2N REIBE T Z A

x/—m?)‘é% o ft s BRER D R EmEL D

NWARERFETESFRERE

REEEMONEFZEBHEWT -

HK$’000
BT
At 1 January 2020 RZE2EZZ2H—HF—H 113,453
Interest charged at an effective interest rate BEBRMEI1064EFEZF B
of 10.64% 12,437
Interest paid BEHE (3,325)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 HRZZ-ZEHF+_A=+—HR
—_E”_—#%—H—H 122,565
Interest charged at an effective interest rate BEEFIZE10.64E
of 10.64% stREZMEMX 13,404
Interest paid BENFE (3,325)
At 31 December 2021 R-_E2_—H+”"A=+—8H 132,644
2021 2020
B —F —ETE2H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Analysed as: DER
Amount due after one year shown under 3Fm§JE\TAIE—FFﬁT
non-current liabilities R—FBEIRZ
+ XA 132,644 122,565
The fair value of the liabilitly component of the convertible notes MR REEERI D 2 AR BEUE
is calculated using cash flows discounted at market interest 10.642 (ZZZZF 1 10.64F) 25

rate of 10.64% (2020: 10.64%).

FEFRZIRERBAE o
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BHEZ

33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

T —F+"H=1+—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

e

33. EEMEEE (BR)

The following are the deferred tax assets and liabilities MUTAREf RBTEFEBERR
recognised and movements thereon during the current and ERESEMBENEEE) .
prior years:
Addition
upon step  Recognised in
acquisition from the consolidated
As at an associate to statement of Exchange As at
1 January a subsidiary profit or loss difference 31 December
H—RAREAT
B
MEARZ
AEWEZ RE&IEER
®—B—H &m i ERZ®E W+-BA=+—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETR BETR BETT
2021 —E--F
Deferred tax assets: ELRBEE
Allowance for expected MEREEKTZ
credit losses on finance BHEERBERE
lease receivable - - 6,888 126 7,014
Deferred tax liabilties: EERBEEE:
Undistributed profits of BENBZRDERA
an associate (17,559) - 2,843 (446) (15,162)
Revaluation, net of ERIINGRERNE
related depreciation (44,118) - 2,460 (1,415) (43,073)
(61,677) - 5,303 (1,861) (58,235)
(61,677) - 12,191 (1,735) (51,221)
2020 ZECIZE
Deferred tax liabilities: EEREAR:
Undistributed profits of BENB 2z RDERA
an associate (10,558) - (6,007) (994) (17,559)
Revaluation, net of B MREMITE
related depreciation - (42,162) 424 (2,380) (44,118)
(10,558) (42,162) (5,583) (3,374) (61,677)

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Hp [ 8L 3% ¢ B 45 BR 23 5]
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33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

3. IREMBEE (B8R @

MU AEERIBL R Z D UIER TS
Rz A :

2021 2020
—E-—F TETEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
AT T BT T
Analysed as: DA
Deferred assets RILIRIEE =
Non-current JERE 7,014 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE A
Current Vi) 43,073 44,118
Non-current JETRE 15,162 17,559
58,235 61,677

No deferred tax has been provided in respect of the valuation
surplus relating to the hotel properties for the year as the
carrying amount does not exceed the total investment cost
and the Directors considered that there is no taxable flow of
economic benefits to the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$48,664,000 (2020: HK$54,476,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, dependent
upon the nationality and domicile of the foreign investors, a
5% to 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement has become
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rates range from 5% to 10%.

AEETEAEMERBZGER
BREHRIEIERR R T AU EY) E B IRE
BEITEBEBREERESTIAHEL
EEMES WERE L AVEE W -

A B —F+ZA=+—H Fx&EHE
FAEMIBE 1828 1648,664,0007T (=
T TBE B H54,476,0007T) BT K5
R AR F] o H L R B TR R R AR A
B2 WHER E MR IBEIEERRIERIE

RIFPEGEMRERE IR ES
MBS &P ERERIINIINERE
PEASTRTIIEALEENRE R
WENZE10ONEHMBR - ZREEZ
EEINEFE-A—HEIRBRAR_-Z
ZtFEF+ZA=+—HBZRFM -HPEH
BUENNMCEEMBZ B AHEE S
HERB R MERREZEINRR
Ko REBRNERARERS%E10% -
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33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

With regard to the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong, as none of them is held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the investment
properties as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of its investment properties in Hong Kong.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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3. IREMBEE (B8R @

BEBEFEEEMSREZ BZTTNE
—HA—HiE > AR EME LB PR
BHNEIRZREAGMTEINR - A A
EEA BRI EE R M
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BRIt ERGES M B RERARS
B B AR Z Retm M PR (G 2 & B
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ERTEREREEZKREN R Bz
BB 0 3F LARE 2 B RS R P B A B W
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SHARE CAPITAL 34. B#&
Number of shares Share capital
IR & E S
2021 2020 2021 2020
B —F “E2TTF B —F “ETTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT AT BB
Authorised: EERAE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREERK0ITZ
ZER 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EZFTRHERE .
At beginning of year and the end EERINEEES
of year 1,712,329,142 1,712,329,142 171,233 171,233
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. B RESTE
A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the KRBRER_E—=ZFEOA =+

Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013
(the “New Scheme”).

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remuneration, compensating and/or providing benefits to the
participants for their contribution or future contribution to the
Group and to strengthen the many long-term relationships that
the participants may have with the Group. Eligible participants
means any person falling within any of the following classes (a)
any employee; (b) any business associate of the Company or
any subsidiary; (c) any other group or classes of participants
which the board, in its absolute discretion, considers to have
contributed or will contribute, whether by way of business
alliance or other business arrangement, to the development
and growth of the Group. The New Scheme became effective
on 26 April 2013 and, will remain in force for 10 years.

HEGTZREBFAE LR —BER
festEl (T5t80)) -

SHEEERARBERMEEZ T E A
FT2HEERE RE BN -BERS
B @ URERSEHAEBFHE
R Z B UREE2RERAE
BzREZRABG RNEER2HEY
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10 per cent of the total number of shares in issues as
at the date of adoption of the New Scheme (i.e. 118,832,914
Shares of the Company) unless the Company obtain a fresh
approval from the shareholders.

No option shall be granted to any participant such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to such participant
under the New Scheme and any other option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant shall exceed 1 per cent. of the total number of
shares in issue.

Under the Scheme, where the Board proposes to grant any
option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or any of their respective associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to him or her under the
Scheme and any other option schemes of the Company in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant; (i)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1 per cent. of the total
number of Shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such proposed grant of
options must be approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting with all connected persons of the Company
abstaining from voting (except that any connected persons may
vote against the relevant resolution at such general meeting
provided that his intention to do so is stated in the circular
to the shareholders of the Company). Any vote taken at the
meeting to approve the grant of such options must be taken on
a poll.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the
option to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have
been granted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer, duly signed by the grantee with the number of
share in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated
therein, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company within 1 month from the offer date.

The subscription price of share options granted under the New
Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant in the offer letter and shall be at least
the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (b) a
price being the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of a share on the offer date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30 per cent. (or
such higher percentage as may be allowed under the Listing
Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

No option has been granted under the New Scheme since its
adoption.

35. B tEETE @)
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36. DEFERRED INCOME 36. IRIEUW =
2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETIT BT
At 1 January w—A—H 82,272 -
Additions Fig 231,443 165,388
Addition upon step acquisition H—REgE R s
from associate to subsidiary —HERBARZ
ﬁ*ﬁuﬁzﬁﬁziﬂn - 1,728
Recognised in profit or loss (Note a) ﬁé% m NFESE (fYsta) (104,621) (89,281)
Exchange difference RERE 5,060 4,437
At 31 December w+ZB=+—H 214,154 82,272
Analysed as: DEEA .
Current-liabilities T - 312
Non-current liabilities JEmED 214,154 81,960
214,154 82,272

Deferred income represents the government grants received

by the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in connection

with certain constructions and income-generating projects.

There are no unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies

attaching to these grants. Deferred income of approximately
HK$104,621,000 (2020: HK$89,281,000) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and included in

“Other operating income”.

Note:

(@) Included government grants amounting to HK$11,482,000
(2020: HK$41,545,000), which were recognised in the profit or
loss as a deduction of the relevant costs or expenses during the

year.
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The table below shows details of the non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non-controlling

BEZ

e

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
T —F+"HB=1+—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

37. JEEER R

TR AQATDEAEEANFEREDR
BRIEFEEEZERNB AT ZEFIE

interests:
Place of
incorporation Proportion of Proportion of Total comprehensive
and principal ownership interests voting right held by income allocated
Name of place of held by non-controlling non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated
subsidiary business interests interests interests non-controlling interests
SRR IR R iR FiEREE BERIEERERR
WA AR TREENE FiB LA FisRRRLLA 2EWE EHEa 8
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEZ-f 22§ CZEZ-F CZCZE BRI CIZCZE BRI CEZIIZFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTT R BRI BB
Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco PRC 28% 28% 28% 28% 13,579 17,265 325,486 311,907
Construction Co., Limited*
ERPERENERBRAT AR ATE
Canton Greengold Financial Leasing PRC 42.17% 38.85% 42.17% 38.85% 38,593 45,266 482,124 338,267
Limited*
ERGEHENEERAR AR ATE
Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., ~ PRC 49% 49% 49% 49% 1,564 8,686 194,021 192,457

Limited* (formerly known as Guangdong
Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., Limited")

ERRERERRAT

FBERXERIBERAR)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Company’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts after fair value adjustments and before

FE \RH#HE

intragroup eliminations.

*

For identification purpose only

BRE

ERARRHEAEERIFERERH
FEEWNBARNZHMBENBZHI
AT U THBERBRERRRIFH QT
BEBABHEA e
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BE_Z_—F+_H=+—HILEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued)

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Limited*

37. IEEREDS @)

BERPERHNERAMRAE (MhER

(“Sino Rock”) )
2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current assets HEE 540,558 770,327
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,466,714 1,823,859
Current liabilities EI=RE (94,024) (80,633)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (1,750,797) (1,399,595)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AABI#EB A
e 836,965 802,051
Non-controlling interests JEPER RS 325,486 311,907
Revenue WA 31,093 -
Profit/(loss) for the year REERHM (G8) 11,379 (20,747)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: FERBF (B
ER B
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZF =N 8,193 (14,938)
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock hERRZ
JEERER 3,186 (5,809)
11,379 (20,747)

*

For identification purpose only
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued)

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Limited*

w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. IEEREDS @)

—FE+"HB=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

BERPERHNERAMRAE (MhER

(“Sino Rock”) (Continued) B @&
2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Other comprehensive income, HtemWam o
net of income tax: PRI
Exchange difference arising on MBI ERE
translation of foreign operations: EEZERERE:
Owners of the Company KRBEE AN 26,721 41,813
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock REHRRBZ
JRIER 10,393 23,074
37,114 64,887
Total comprehensive income FE2EKE
attributable to: WEEERR B
Owners of the Company KRBVEB A 34,914 26,875
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock RERRBZ
JRIER 13,579 17,265
48,493 44,140
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEHRE
MAEEE 233,220 130,391
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEFHIRE
TR P EE (541,498) (486,766)
Net cash inflow from financing activities RMEEEIRE
TP EE 111,355 97,325
Net cash outflow RE M FEE (196,923) (259,050)
* For identification purpose only
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED #[ BUSE 3% 2 £ 51 43 7
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued)

Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Limited* (“Greengold

Leasing”)

. FEIERR R )

BERGEMEVERRAE (Mg

&)

2021 2020

—E—F —E2TZ2HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETIT BT

Current assets mENE® 1,885,716 1,069,846

Non-current assets ERBMES 2,465,676 1,358,716

Current liabilities mEAaE (1,103,395) (687,754)

Non-current liabilities JEREBE (2,096,632) (870,262)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZAATHEE A

FE(LRE 669,241 532,279

Non-controlling interests IR R 482,124 338,267

Revenue™ N 223,574 181,974

Profit for the year KEERF 72,106 65,740

Profit for the year attributable to: FERANERES

Owners of the Company KRNBVEB A 44,179 40,204
Non-controlling interests of GEHEZ

Greengold Leasing FEERER 27,927 25,536

72,106 65,740

*

For identification purpose only

*k

In which revenue from external customers for the year amounted
to HK$216,144,000 (2020: HK$158,602,000).
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HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (continued) 37. EEERRER @

Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Limited* (“Greengold ERGEMEHEFRAR (REH
Leasing”) (Continued) g (@&
2021 2020
—E—F —E2TZ2HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Other comprehensive income, HttemWam o
net of income tax: fRiRE
Exchange difference arising on MBEBINERE
translation of foreign operations: EEXCERER .
Owners of the Company KRBVEE A 19,431 30,266
Non-controlling interests of EHEEZ
Greengold Leasing JEER 10,666 19,730
30,097 49,996
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FE2EKE
MREEER R -
Owners of the Company KANBHEB A 63,610 70,470
Non-controlling interests of gEHEZ
Greengold Leasing JEVER 38,593 45,266
102,203 115,736
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest MIEZE R S A
ZRE 23,651 11,717
Net cash outflow from operating activities KETHRE
piiaape e (1,280,412) (164,205)
Net cash inflow from investing activities BEEHRE
AP ER 2,237 1,997
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEHIRE
TMAEER 1,564,371 61,566
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BERA ) $88 286,196 (100,642)

*

For identification purpose only
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued) 37.

Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited* (formerly
known as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co.,

Limited*) (“Tiannuo”)

FRIERRiED @

BERXFREARAR FIBERXHE
RIBARAE) (TR

2021 2020

—EZ—%& TETEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT

Current assets MBEE 101,400 137,770
Non-current assets ERMEE 280,187 253,731
Current liabilities mEEaE (66,293) (129,176)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (55,594) (1,447)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &AS#HE AEGLER 132,447 133,048
Non-controlling interests IR 127,253 127,830

*

For identification purpose only

*k

an associate to a subsidiary.

It did not include the goodwill arising from Step Acquisition from
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued)

Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited* (formerly
known as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co.,

Limited*) (“Tiannuo”) (Continued)

w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. IEEREDS @)

—FE+"HB=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

BERXFREARAR FIBERXHE
RIBRAERAE) (TXHE) @@

1/9/2020-
2021 31/12/2020
“ETEHF
hB—HBE
TETEF
—E_—%&% +”HB=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Revenue LON 140,847 86,284
Loss for the year/period NEE HAEEE (9,643) (3,457)
Loss for the year/period attributable to: FEHRNERRS
Owners of the Company KNBVHEB A (4,918) (1,764)
Non-controlling interests of Tiannuo KBEZIFERER (4,725) (1,693)
(9,643) (3,457)
Other comprehensive income, HittemWam
net of income tax: FRiRE
Exchange difference arising on MEBIINEBRES
translation of foreign operations: PERE%R .
Owners of the Company KRBVER A 6,302 10,407
Non-controlling interests of Tiannuo KBEZIEERER 6,289 10,379
12,591 20,786

*

For identification purpose only
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (continued) 37. JEiEtER @)
Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited* (formerly ERXHRERGRAT FiIBERXSE
known as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., RIZEBERARE) (TX581) #)
Limited*) (“Tiannuo”) (Continued)
1/9/2020-
2021 31/12/2020
ZEIEF
hAB—HZE
TETEF
—2_—% +ZHR=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2HEWNmARERE
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZF =N 1,384 8,643
Non-controlling interests of Tiannuo KA Z IEERERD 1,564 8,686
2,948 17,329
Net cash inflow from operating activities KETHIRE
AP ER 5,251 25,171
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEFHIRE
TR EE (39,639) (5,250)
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEEIRE
TR (8,346) (22)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow BWE CORd)
AR (42,734) 19,899

*

For identification purpose only
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38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 38. &

39.

The Group as lessor

The Group’s property rental income earned during the year
was approximately HK$38,673,000 (2020: HK$13,791,000). All
of the properties held have committed tenants 1 to 20 years

(2020: 1 to 8 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

w3 A5 AR B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

B H

FEEBEBAA

AEBRFARMERSEHSBALY

H£38,673,0007T (=
13,791,0007T) ° FriEH
—FEAF(CEZE:

BHETNHER-

=t 2L
GUETE S S
—END

REEH ~EBBERBRITHOZARIEK

with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: REMRETWT
2021 2020
T —F B_BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Within one year R—FR 73,400 7,874
In the second year REZ 65,856 3,597
In the third year RE= 62,963 2,917
In the fourth year REIYE 55,683 2,937
In the fifth year RERF 37,480 2,896
Over five years EFEME 78,692 5,358
374,074 25,579
COMMITMENTS 39. K
2021 2020
—E-—F TR F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Commitments for the acquisition of BAVME - -BE KM
the property, plant and equipment R R 7,196 20,307
Commitments for the investment cost of BRI FREIEERE
establishment of subsidiary ZIRIE 348,378 198,275
Commitments for the development cost of BREAMEXERE
Industry Park in Danzao B A 2 A 305,505 539,416
Commitments for the acquisition cost of BAREFAB®mZ
financial asset at fair value through SR E BB A
profit or loss Y 2,863 2,771
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BE_ZTZ

e

40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

41.

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged

to secure general banking facilities to the Group or borrowings

of the Group (see Note 31):

40.

—FE+"B=+—HLEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

BEERH

AEAENTREENEESBRMPLUER
RY¥FERN—RBITHRENEEER
WEE (f15E31) :

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

HET T BT

Investment properties (Note) SEYE (5 392,543 312,114

Property, plant and equipment MEBERRE 439,604 222,130

Pledged bank deposit BIRRIRITER 349,418 25,468

Pledged lease receivables BIRIFRERE R 2,643,168 1,211,168
Pledged paid-up capital of BEIRFIE2ENE

a non-wholly owned subsidiary NEZEBHER 249,080 241,093

Note:

The future rental receivables from several properties are pledged for a
loan facility of RMB285,000,000 in total from China Development Bank.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

A)

On 5 December 2017, the Group obtained a three-year
loan amounting to HK$90,000,000 from the Group’s
immediate holding company, Prize Rich Inc., which
is unsecured and with a fixed interest rate at 3% per
annum. On 3 December 2020, the Group entered into
the Supplemental Loan Agreements with Prize Rich Inc.,
in which the loan repayment period for the loan was
extended by two years to December 2022. Interest rates
and all other terms and conditions of the loans remained

unchanged.

On October 2021, the Group obtained another three year
loan amounting to HK$46,000,000 from Prize Rich Inc.,
which is unsecured and with a fixed interest rate at 4%
per annum.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Continued)

B)

C)

D)

On 28 February 2019,
amounting to HK$980,000 from a non-controlling interest,

the Group obtained a loan

T-Box Union (China) Financial Holdings Investments
Limited (“T-Box Union (China)”), which is unsecured with a
fixed interest rate of 4.65% per annum.

On 25 November 2019, the Company’s non-wholly
owned subsidiary, Canton Greengold Financial Leasing
Ltd* (“Greengold Leasing”), entered into the Entrusted
Shareholding Agreement with its 8 employees or directors
for the acquisition of 1.26% equity interests of Shenzhen
Weicheng Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership),
for the total amount of RMB504,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$605,000).

In 2020, the Group obtained two one-year loans,
amounting to RMB51,838,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$62,455,000) in total from a non-
controlling interest, Guangdong Nanhai Chemical Factory
Co., Ltd.
interest rate of the loans is 4.75% per annum. The loans

(“Nanhai Chemical Factory”). The effective

have been fully repaid during the year.

During the year, the Group obtained another loan,
amounting to RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$30,675,000) from Nanhai Chemical
Factory, with a loan period of two years. The effective
interest rate of the loan is also 4.75% per annum.

The interest on loans from Nanhai Chemical Factory
during the year was approximately HK$2,677,000 (2020:
HK$922,000), which has been included in the finance
costs of the Group.

For identification purpose only
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B)

C)

D)

A ZE-AEFEZBZ+NB &
EEN—EIFERER SR
(FE) tMHERREERBR
RE(T28R (FE) ) BEBER
£ E A H980,0007T 2 B A
BIER BEFHNE%4.65%°

RZZE—hE+—BZ+HH"
RAABIZEZTENBABER
ﬁ%%%ﬂiﬁ%ﬂ‘* NEINQES &3]

BE)RENGBIKREEES
éﬁf%ﬁxTﬁ%E&’L?&?ﬁ”yﬁﬁ
FImEREEGRBLE (B
[EEE) 1.26%0 IR > 4851 A
R #504,0007t (BERHNBIE
605,0007T) ©

2225 AEER—EIF
ERED BNEREEELEIE
WABERAE (TREEt T4ER) &
EME—FHER aHAAR
51,838,000 T (IHE R A BIEE
62,455,0007T) - EM B R FFI=
R4 T5% ERBEBRRELHER
Eo

RER AEBEEE S TER
/B —% AR#25,000,0007T
(FBE R 4978 130,675,0007T) B
FOEBERMBAME ERERESR]
KINE4.75% o

BREESEIEmERNERZ
B BHE2 677,000 (ZE
T4E 1 B18922,0007T) * EEF AT
EEZHBSZH
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Continued)

E) During the year, the existing sales and purchase
agreement involving the sale and purchase of paper
boxes was entered into between Guangdong Nanhong
Chemical Co., Ltd.* (“Nanhong Chemical”), a subsidiary
of the Company, and Nanhai Chemical Factory, a non-
controlling interest. The purchased amount of the paper
boxes was approximately HK$1,636,000, which has
been included in the cost of sales and services of the
Group. Unit price of paper boxes was determined by the
parties after arm’s length negotiations with reference to
the prevailing market price of paper boxes of comparable
quality and quantity.

F) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

M. ARG @

E)

F)

RER EREIETARRAF
(TREMET)) (RRAZHWEA
7)) B st TR (—EIFE IR
@) AL — T REBERBEZ
HE IKBERESBNAE
#1,636,0007¢ ° I B 5t A A EEE
ZHERRE N A - R EE
WoThHEFSEEERHMEM
GZHMBRITHESRATER
BETE-

FTEEEABFHM

EEhEMETFEEEASNER
ZEHMmT

2021 2020

—E—F —E2TE2HF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Short-term employee benefits DHEE =T 7,674 7,303
Post-employment employee benefits BRIKEEREF 1,264 300
8,938 7,603

The remuneration of Directors and key management
personnel is proposed by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

For identification purpose only
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. T EM B A E
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 ZIK’\TZIEMT):' BN —F
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as follows: RZZEZEF+T E +—HZ#15
Wr:
Place of
incorporation or
registration/ No. of shares issued
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
B DA BETRZZHE
WERE4HE SERY (BER) BARRE BHEEMM TEER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
%°-% Z32% Z8C-% Z3I%% Z%--% kg 5
Direct subsidiary
E#MBAT
China Investments Limited Hong Kong 200 200 HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
TERERAERAG 5% 151,000 1,000 REER
Indirect subsidiaries
HEHBAT
Canton Greengold Financial Leasing PRC N/A N/A RMB RMB 57.83 61.15  Financial leasing
Limited* (Note 2) 864,645,944.25  671,222,179.15
EREEREREERAT (H:2) HE &R TER AE# AE#® HERE
864,645,944.255  671,222,179.157C
Centon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
BEERBRAT EY) it Ao NEEE
China Industrial Development Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
REI£ERARAT EY) it Ao RERR
CIH Finance Investments Holdings Limited Hong Kong 4 4 HK$4 HK$4 100 100 Financial Investment
FEELERRELRERAT EY et AT EREE
Greenswood Property Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property investment
BANEERAT EY) it Ao NERE
Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco PRC N/A N/A~ RMB910,000,000  RMB910,000,000 72 72 Investment in the
Construction Co., Limited* (Note 2) development and
construction of
industrial park
BRPERNERERAT (H2) HEl &R TER AE# AE#® EREEREZE
910,000,000 910,000,007 %8
Guangdong Sinsing Technology Limited PRC N/A N/A RMBS,000,000 RMBS,000,000 100 100 Big data business
(Note 3)
BREENRARAR (H32) HEl &R TER AE# AE#® RYBEH
5,000,0007C 5,000,0007
Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health PRC N/A N/A~ RMB10,000,000  RMB10,000,000 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Technology Ltd" (Note 3) care service
BREARARRHZBRAS (H3) HEl &R TER AE# AE#® RERBRE
10,000,0007C 10,000,0007
Guilin Plaza Hotel (Note 1) PRC N/A N/A~ US$10,400,000  US$10,400,000 100 100 Hotel operation
ERERER (1) e TER FER 1040000057  10,400000%7 BEEE
China Investments (HK) Limited Hong Kong 1 1 HK$1 HKS1 100 100 Financial leasing
HERE (58 BRAR EY) etabe BRI HERE

*

For identification purpose only
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuead) 42. TEMBAT @
Place of
incorporation or
registration/ No. of shares issued
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
B BETREZYE
WEAR4HE BERY (BER) BARRE BEEAL TEER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
5Tk it St it 3 ZBCEE IEI-% k%3
Jofra Company Limited Hong Kong 1,000 1,000 HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
&% #151,0007 7A11,0007 REER
Foshan City Nanhai Jia Shun Timber Company ~ PRC N/A N/A HK$39,800,000 HK$39,800,000 100 100 Manufacturing and
Limited* (Note 1) trading of medium
denstty fibreboards
BUTHEEEAZERAR (1) HiE &R FEA  #K30,800,0007  #7%39,800,0007 RENBETSRE
ek
Foshan City Nanhai Kang Sheng Timber PRC N/A N/A~ HK$81,596,586 HK$81,000,000 100 100 Investment Holding
Company Limited* (Note 4)
BUNEEREAEERAT (H:4) HE TER FEA  #K81,506,5867 481,000,007 REER
Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage Investments PRC N/A N/A~ RMB37,547,100  RMB30,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Holdings Limited” (Note 2)
BUTHREREFRAR (i) HE TER TER AE# AEE NERE
37,547,1007C 30,000,0007T
Kingsgrand Developments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 10,000 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Property trading
BRERARAT &% #110,0007 #110,0007 N%EE
Metropolitan Development Limited* Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
PHERERAT &% Ao Alon N%EE
Natural View Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 10,000 10,000 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Property trading
AREEBERAT &% AR100000  EH1000007 N%EE
Senicon Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
BRRERRAT &% Ao Aon N%EE
Sabrina Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 1 US$1 US§1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
REREgEE/ 127 E50 RERR
&%
Southern Limited Hong Kong 10,000 10,000 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding and
property investment
BABRAT &% #1510,0007 A110,0007 RERREMERE
Tally International Traders Limited Hong Kong 8,000 8,000 HK$800,000 HK$800,000 100 100 Property Trading
ARERRRERAR &% #18800,000r 800,000 NEEE
Zhong Chuang Xing Ke (Shenzhen) Investment ~ PRC N/A N/A~ RMB150,000,000  RMB150,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited* (Note 3)
FEIER (F1) REFRAF (H3H3) HiE &R TBR N AE# REER
150,000,0007% 150,000,00070
Guangdong Taoyuan Comprehensive Health PRC N/A N/A~ RMB33,684,068  RMB25,000,000 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Operation Co., Ltd" (Note 3) care services
ERIEARREZELERAT (H:3) HiE &R TBR N AE# BEGERE
33,684,0687C 25,000,00070
Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan Nursing PRC N/A N/A RMB100,000 RMB100,000 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Home Company Limited* (Note 3) care services
HUTESEREERERAT (H53) HE &R FEE  ARE100000%  AEH100,0007 BEGERE
Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan Welfare PRC N/A N/A RMBS,000,000 N/A 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Center Co., Limited" (Note 3) care services
BUTHEENERNPLOBRAR (i3) & TER TER  AKH5,000,0007 B8 RERARE
Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan PRC N/A N/A RMB100,000 N/A 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Rehabilitation Hospital Co., Limited* (Note 3) care services
BUNEERNEREBRERAS (W) & &R TEA  ARK100,0007 18R BEGERE
Foshan City Xianhuwan Development Co. Limited* PRC N/A N/A~ RMB203,000,000 RMB203,000,000 72 72 Property Investment
(Note 2)
BUBLHEELERAR (i) HE TER TER AE# AEE NERE

203,000,007 203,000,007

*
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HE_Z-_—F+_"_BA=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuead) 42. TEMBAT @
Place of
incorporation or
registration/ No. of shares issued
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
B BETREZYE
WEAE4H] BERY (BER) BARRE BEEAL TEER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
8% it g3 —8C-f ZBCEE IEI-% k%3
Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited ~ PRC N/A N/A~ RMB102,040,863  RMB102,040,863 51 51 Manufacture and
(formerly known as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil sale of emulsion
Explosives Co., Limited)* industrial
detonating cords
ERREREERAT HE &R &R AE# AEE RERFEALIHEN
(5178 | BRRERIBARAF) 102,040,8637C  102,040,8637C T¥853%
Foshan Nanhua Logistics Co., Limited* PRC N/A N/A RMB500,000 RMB500,000 51 51 Transportation and
carriage services
for general and
hazardous goods
BUREESERAS HE TER TER  ARE500,000%  ARH500,0007 BHRERGER
ERENES
Guangdong Nanhong Chemical Co., Limited* PRC N/A N/A~ RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000 51 51 Manufacture and
sale of emulsion
industrial
detonating cords
ERAIIETIBRAS HE TER TER AR AEE RERFEALIHEN
50,000,0007 50,000,000 TX81E%
Foshan Xianhuwan Hotel Management Co., PRC N/A N/A RMB3,000,000 RMB3,000,000 72 72 Hotel management
Limited* (Note 2) and services and
catering
BUlHEEEERERAT (M) HiE &R TER AE% NE¥% BEEEREHNRE
3,000,0007C 3,000,007
Guangdong Province Fu Neng Power Co., PRC N/A N/A RMB8,000,000 RMB3,000,000 72 72 Generation and sale of
Limited* (Note 2) electricity
BREMAEENERAT (HzF2) HiE &R TER AE% NE¥% BERHEEN
8,000,0007C 3,000,007
Foshan City Shangyi Intelligent Technology Co.,  PRC N/A N/A RMB300,000 N/A 51 - Comprehensive elderly
Limited™ care services
BT LEBENRERA HiE TER TER  AEH300,0007 TBR BEGERE
Note 1: The subsidiary is wholly foreign owned enterprise established WEE B AR AR PR IZIIEE
in the PRC. Bk
Note 2: The subsidiary is registered as Sino-foreign equity/joint a2 B AT R TEEMATIIEE
venture company in the PRC. S EERE-
Note 3: The subsidiary is wholly owned enterprise established in the WS  ZMWB AR AR YRR LINEE D
PRC. e
Note 4: The subsidiary is foreign owned enterprise established in the BMosE4 @ 5% B B A B A H AR B AL 3L B9 b
PRC. Bib%o
" The subsidiary was set up during the reporting period i ZB AR RS AR
* For identification propose only
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42.

43.

44,

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with the current year’s presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 January 2022, Canton Greengold Financial Leasing
Limited (“Greengold Leasing”) entered into finance leases
with a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC,
an independent third party, to acquire the ownership of the
assets from this company for an aggregate consideration of
RMB19,808,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$24,245,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its own use
and possession for a term of 3 years. Further details of the
finance leases are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 January 2022.

On 14 January 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into a
finance lease with a limited liability company incorporated in
the PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the ownership
of the assets from this company for a consideration of
RMB39,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$47,736,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its own use
and possession for a term of 5 years. Further details of the
finance lease are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 January 2022.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4F#t

42,

43.

44,
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tREAEARE (B E)) &
—BRFERIZEREEAE (B
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AER119,808,0000 (HHER AN AL
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44. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

On 20 January 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into a
finance lease with a limited liability company incorporated in
the PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the ownership
of the assets from this company for a consideration of
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$61,400,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its own use
and possession for a term of 5 years. Further details of the
finance lease are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 20 January 2022.

On 24 January 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into finance
leases with three limited liability companies incorporated in the
PRC, all independent third parties, to acquire the ownership
of the assets from these companies for an aggregate
consideration of RMB125,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$153,500,000), which would be leased back to these
companies for their own use and possession for a term of 5
years. Further details of the finance leases are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 24 January 2022.

On 25 January 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into a
finance lease with a limited liability company incorporated in
the PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the ownership
of the assets from this company for a consideration of
RMB35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$43,050,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its own use
and possession for a term of 5 years. Further details of the
finance lease are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 January 2022.

44, FJHREHHEEIE @

RZIEZ-_F—EBEZ+H %%
BH—BRHERIZBEREEAT
BUFE=ZR)FTUMERE > UKL E
AR #50,000,0007t (HHHE R4 B
61,400,00070) BEZ AR WEEE P
B LEEERRBETZAT  HE
FRAREE HPRARF BRALLME
MEZE—FTHBEINENALEBH
AR_E__F—BZH+HzRE

RIEZZHF—BZ+HEB &£
EE-MRPEAIZBRSEETAT
HABIUFE=H) s TUMEREE U
“ARBARME125,000,0007T (FBE R
iﬁ%fﬁﬁ% 500,0007t) BZE QB
BEEZFER LWEEERRETZ
ENEHEEERARMEE BRAR
FoARELERMEREZE—THB
TR ARBIHBPAZEZZ5—A4
it It /N =

R_E__F#—H_+aH &M
BH—BRHERIZBEREEAT
BUE=ZR)FTUMERE > UKL E
AR #35,000,0007t (FHHE R4 B
43,050,00070) BEZARIWEEE P
B LEEERRETZAT  HE
FRAREE HHRARF BRAILLME
MEZE—FTHBINENALEBH
R _ETTF—BZ+hHBZRE-
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44. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

On 16 February 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into a
finance lease with three limited liability companies incorporated
in the PRC, all independent third parties, to acquire the
ownership of the assets from these companies for a
consideration of RMB95,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$116,945,000),
companies for their own use and possession for a term of 5

which would be leased back to these

years. Further details of the finance leases are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 17 February 2022.

On 2 March 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance
lease with a limited liability company incorporated in the
PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the ownership
of the assets from this company for a consideration
of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$185,700,000),
company for its own use and possession for a term of 5

which would be leased back to this

years. Further details of the finance lease are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 2 March 2022.

On 17 March 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance
lease with a limited liability company incorporated in the
PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the ownership
of the assets from this company for a consideration of
RMB35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$43,120,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its own use
and possession for a term of 5 years. Further details of the
finance lease are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 March 2022.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8% P £ B2 7
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44, FJHREHHEEIE @

RIEZ-_F-_RB+ B #E=HE
B=MPRPERIIZERSEAE (9
ARBUE=ZF)JUMERE URE
AR #95,000,0007t (HHFERA B
116,945,0007T) BZEARIWHEEE
AR LEEERERBETZEL
B HEEFRARMEE HRARSF-
ERLtmEREZ E—TEBWEHN
XABHHAAZZE /8 +tH

Z/_\tl:

RIE__F=BZH #+HEHA
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UEZH)TUIBERE UREA
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44. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

On 21 March 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance
lease with a limited liability company incorporated in the
PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the ownership
of the assets from this company for a consideration
of RMB120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$147,600,000), which would be leased back to this
company for its own use and possession for a term of 5
years. Further details of the finance lease are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2022.

On 29 March 2022, Greengold Leasing entered into
finance leases with a limited liability company incorporated
in the PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the
ownership of the assets from this company for an aggregate
consideration of RMB85,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$104,550,000), which would be leased back to this
company for its own use and possession for a term of 5
years. Further details of the finance leases are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2022.

44, FJHREHHEEIE @

R_E__H#=ZA_+—RH #<M
ERE—BRAPERIZERSETAE
BYBE=A)IUMEREE URKE
AR #120,000,0007c (FBEE R LB
147,600,00070) BZ AR WBEE>
FrER WEEERRBTZAE #
WERRGE  HRAAFE - BRALLR
EREE—THBEINHENALEH
AT =B "+—HzZzA%o

RZEZZF=ZRZ+hH &
ER-BRTERIIZABREETAT
BIUFE=A)FTUMEREE » UAER
B8 AR185,000,00070 (FHZE 49 H 1K
104,550,0007t) BZ A ARIWHBEEZ
FiEf WEEEFRBTZAR #
BERRLE BRARAF -BRALSE
MEEEZE—PHBIHRNEAE
HEAZE - ZF=B=+tHza&E
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. AT BB IR L #EE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—_E_—fF —E2T2HF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT
Non-current asset ERENEE
Investment in subsidiaries RB A ZKRE 23,607 23,607
Current assets MBIEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGRS 1,333,856 1,378,713
Pledged bank deposits EIERIRTTEMR 11,942 25,438
Bank balances and cash BEFRIRESEEY 289 259
Other receivables H iU siIE 233 224
1,346,320 1,404,634
Current liabilities mENEE
Bank loan RN 666,669 697,826
Other payables Hfth I =R 1,408 1,780
Loan from immediate holding company E&?"EH’“\TZE 90,000 -
758,077 699,606
Net current assets EBEESRSE 588,243 705,028
Total assets less current liabilities ##EE R TEIAE 611,850 728,635
Capital and reserves % 2s K & 4
Share capital [N 171,233 171,233
Reserves (i 307,973 344,837
Equity attributable to owners of EATEBA
the Company FE(L RS 479,206 516,070
Non-current liabilities ERHER
Loan from immediate holding company EHiIiZZER AT 2 B - 90,000
Convertible notes Bl A IR 4 32 132,644 122,565
132,644 212,565
611,850 728,635

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March

2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

HE XIANGMING
fal 1 BR
Director

EF
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. QGBI IREEE @
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves EREFEEZESH
Convertible
Share note equity Accumulated
Premium reserve losses Total
AR ER
IR E e RitEE et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-_ZF—HF—H 725,199 56,616 (392,654) 389,161
Loss for the year REEEIE - - (44,324) (44,324)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZHF
1 January 2021 +ZB=+—HkK
e = 725,199 56,616 (436,978) 344,837
Loss for the year REEEE - - (36,864) (36,864)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+-B=+—H 725,199 56,616 (473,842) 307,973
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HE_Z—

46. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share
and is not attributable but may be applied in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to the
shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus shares
or in providing for the premiums payable on repurchases
of shares.

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserve represents general reserve and
enterprise expansion fund which are set up by
subsidiaries established and operated in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) by way of appropriation from
the profit after taxation in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC. The rate of appropriation
of the general reserve and enterprise expansion fund
is subject to the decision of the board of Directors of
the PRC subsidiaries, but the minimum appropriation
rate for the general reserve is 10% of the profit after
taxation for the each year, until when the accumulated
balance reaches 50% of the total registered capital of the
subsidiary. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
of the PRC,
government authorities, the general reserve can be used

if approvals are obtained from the relevant

in setting off accumulated losses or to increase the
capital, and the enterprise expansion fund can be used to
increase the capital.

Hotel properties revaluation reserve

Hotel properties are revalued annually based on
independent professional valuations on an open market
value basis. Changes in the values of hotel properties are
dealt with as movement in the hotel properties revaluation
reserve. If the reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation
deficit, the excess of the deficit is changed to the profit
and loss account.
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46. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the foreign subsidiaries of the Company
whose reporting currency is not Hong Kong dollars. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies of foreign currencies set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Convertible note equity reserve

Convertible note equity reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of convertible note
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy of Convertible note set out in Note
4 to the consolidation financial statements.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represented additional contributions made
by the shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries and,
in case of an acquisition of an additional non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the non-controlling interest acquired.

Other reserve

Other reserve comprises of gain on partial disposal of
interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Sino Rock.
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(vi)

(vii)
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TR B2

Five Years Financial Summary

Year ended 31 December

BE+ZA=+—-HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
T+t E-N\E ZT-hE _TTF EBZ-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E75))
RESULTS A
Revenue EER 29,846 79,550 161,065 293,555 520,846
Profit/(loss) for the year REERN/ (58) 27,630 55,815 81,428 (65,506) 10,878
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
profit/(loss) for the year KEERA/ (BB - - (1,516) (630) 9
Profit/(loss) for the year KEEXNBEEA
attributable to owners BhER,/ (BB 31,266 42,383 68,612 (83,871) (15,500)
Earnings/(loss) per share SREH/ (58)
From continuing and REFBLER
discontinued operations BRILEEE
Basic =N HK1.83 cents  HK2.48 cents  HK4.01 cents  (HK4.90 cents) (HKO0.91 cents)
B 1,831 B 481l BEE40ML  (BRE4.90M)  (FB%0.911l)
Diluted s HK1.83 cents  HK2.48 cents  HK4.01 cents  (HK4.90 cents) (HKO0.91 cents)
B 1,831 B 481l BEE40ML (BRE4.901)  (FB%0.911l)
Year ended 31 December
HE+-B=1+—HLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
2+ ZE-\E "EZ-hE "TTF [BI-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BT BT ARTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEMBE 2,277,412 3,460,537 5,147,666 6,105,371 8,299,701
Total liabilities LR (1,099,553) (2,129,217) (3,441,696) (4,117,039 (6,107,245)
Non-controlling interests EISE (157,625) (338,205) (600,764) (843,935) (1,003,167)
Equity contributable to owners ~ KAR BB AELER 1,020,234 993,115 1,105,206 1,144,397 1,189,289

*

operation.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Hp [ 8L 3% ¢ B 45 BR 23 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4E#}t

The result for the year 2019 have been restated for the discontinued *

TE-NFZEBEEMERILEEEETE
GEXIE



Particulars of Major Properties

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31 December WKW _Z_—F+_-_HA=+—H ' &x~EBFAE

2021 are as follows: ZEEMEENFMUT :
Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE TREZ L
218/ e At HEER i wEEmE  ERBR  THER
(sg.m.)
SN
Hotel properties
BIEYE
Guilin Plaza, 20 Li Jiang Lu 100 Medium Hotel 29,746 Existing N/A
Guilin, Guangxi,
The PRC.
FR B R 7 AT R B 100 #H IR 29746  HE TiEA
0SB E R
Properties for own use
BRAYZE
Unit No.1, 14 & 15 on 5th Floor, 100 Medium Commercial 429 Existing N/A
Wing On Plaza,
62 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon.
NEeRpE 100 HH [GES 429  HAE NiEm
3786257
KEZBEH5E
1 14K15%
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Particulars of Major Properties

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE RREZ L
B8/ At HEER i wEEmE  ERBR  =THER
(sg.m.)
(FHR)
Properties for own use (Continued)
HEYFE (&)
12th to 13th Floor of 100 Medium Commercial 3,048 Existing N/A
Phase 1
Guangdong - Hong Kong
Finance & Technology Park
Guicheng Street,
6 Jinke Road,
Nanhai District
Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
hEERE 100 GES 3048 HAE TEA
IR g R

ERAE SR
BESBRREE
12-1318
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Name/Location

Bt/ e

Particulars of Major Properties

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
% held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE RREZ L
At HEER i BEEmE  ERBR  =HER
(sg.m.)
(FH K

Properties for own use (Continued)

HE#WZE (&)

Block AB and F,

Xianhuwan Commercial Plaza
3 Yangguang Road,

Danzao Xianhu Resort Area,
Nanhai District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,

The PRC

FEERE

Il TR g R
FHEAOH IR R &

5 % 35355

filih 2 7 3 S5 AB L F 2

Zhen An Village, Luo Le Village,
Li Zhi Village,

Lian Tang Town,

Gao Yao District, Zhaoging City,
Guangdong Province,

The PRC

FEERE

EREE

RN - BON - HRA

72 Medium Commercial 16,218 Existing N/A

72 GES 16,218 HA TEf

51 Medium Industrial 466,165 Existing N/A

51 £ T% 466,165 HA TEHR
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Particulars of Major Properties

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE RREZ L
B8/ At HEER i wEEmE  ERBR  =THER
(sg.m.)
(FHR)
Investment properties
REYE
17th Floor 100 Medium Commercial 112 Existing N/A
Sing-Ho Finance Building,
166/168 Gloucester Road,
Hong Kong.
Bk 100 GES 112 BAE TEA
HLE
166/168%%
ENHBAEITE
1st to 11th Floor of 100 Medium Commercial 15,818 Existing N/A
Phase 1
Guangdong - Hong Kong
Finance & Technology Park
Guicheng Street,
6 Jinke Road,
Nanhai District
Foshan City,
Guangdong Province
The PRC
hEERE 100 GES 15818 BE TEA
IR g R

ERAE SR
BESBRBEE
1-1118
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Name/Location

Bt/ e

Effective Category
% held of lease
ERFE
At HEER

Type

#E

Total gross
floor area

on completion
RREZ
BEREEA
(sg.m.)
SN

Particulars of Major Properties

Stage

ERER

Expected year
of completion
R

SERER

Investment properties (Continued)

REWE (&)

Block C, D and E,
Xianhuwan Commercial Plaza
3 Yangguang Road,

Danzao Xianhu Resort Area,
Nanhai District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,

The PRC

FEERE

Il TR g R
FHEAOH IR R &

5 % 35355

fili$h 2 7 % B 35C, DRERE

C1-C12, D1-D13,

8 Li zhong Road,
Danzao Logistics Center,
Danzao Town,
Nanhai District,
Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC

mEERE
FILTEER

FHt &

FHE WAL

MR 85%

C1-12, D1-D13

72 Medium

72 R

72 Medium

72 B

Commercial

Commercial

GRS

12,335

12,335

182,572

182,572

Existing

RE

Existing

BE

N/A

TEm

N/A

NER
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Particulars of Major Properties

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE RREZ L
B8/ At HEER i wEEmE  ERBR  =THER
(sa.m.)
(FHR)
Properties held for sale
HENE
Level 2-3 of Block C of 100 Medium Commercial 1,250 Existing N/A
Shantou Commercial Plaza at
the junction of Jinsha Road East
and Huashan Road,
Shantou Special Economic Zone,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
hEERE 100 GES 1250 BE TEA

WSB AT s
SURBEEZNEIR
WERBREHEAR
CRE2-3iE
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